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Corporate Profile
ARG

China Saite Group Company Limited (“China Saite” or the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is
an integrated steel structure and prefabricated
construction solution service provider headquartered in
Yixing, Jiangsu Province, the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC"). It has been operating for nearly 22 years. The
Group’s integrated construction solution services are
customised to meet the quality, technical specifications
and requirements of different projects, and range
extensively from design planning, fabrication and assembly
of steel structure components and prefabricated
construction, transportation to on-site installation and
after-sales services. According to an industry report
prepared by Ipsos Hong Kong Ltd., in terms of revenue,
China Saite was the second largest prefabricated
construction service provider and the third largest steel
structure construction service provider in Jiangsu Province
in 2012.

The Group commenced undertaking prefabricated
construction projects in late 2010 and enjoys a first-mover
advantage in the PRC prefabricated construction industry.
Prefabricated construction is one of the advanced
construction methods deploying a majority of structural
components pre-produced and standardised in the factory,
ready for installation on site. The Group's prefabricated
construction solution is mainly provided for domestic high-
rise commercial and residential buildings as well as social
security housing projects.

China Saite has been accredited as a Grade One Steel
Structure Engineering Contractor, the highest national
qualification, by the Ministry of Housing since November
2005. This enables China Saite to undertake all kinds of
steel structure projects without limitation in category,
contract sum, construction area or total construction
weight in the PRC. The Group has participated in a wide
range of steel structure projects, including bridges, train
stations, stadiums, exhibition centres and factory premises.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Xulin (Chairman) (appointed on 18 November 2021)

Mr. Shan Hu (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 18 November 2021)
Mr. Zhang Tianbo (appointed on 14 December 2021)
Mr. Xu Fanghua
Mr. Liu Zhibo (appointed on 8 July 2019)
Mr. Hua Gang (appointed on 8 July 2019,
appointed as Chairman on 29 October 2021 and
ceased to be the Chairman on 18 November 2021)
Mr. Jiang Jiangiang (Chairman)
(resigned on 29 October 2021)
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 17 November 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Jiaming

Mr. Yan Hualin (appointed on 8 July 2019)

Mr. Choi Ho Yan (appointed on 29 June 2020)

Mr. Siu Siu Ling, Robert (appointed on 29 June 2020)
Mr. Wu Zhongxian (resigned on 21 March 2022)

Mr. Luk Chi Shing (resigned on 5 July 2019)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chang Kam Lai (appointed on 1 February 2021)

Mr. Pang Wai Ching (appointed on 1 July 2020 and
resigned on 1 February 2021)

Ms. Foo Man Yee Carina (resigned on 1 July 2020)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Li Xulin (@appointed on 18 November 2021)

Ms. Chang Kam Lai (appointed on 1 February 2021)

Mr. Hua Gang (appointed on 29 October 2021 and
resigned on 18 November 2021)

Mr. Jiang Jiangiang (resigned on 29 October 2021)

Mr. Pang Wai Ching (appointed on 1 July 2020 and
resigned on 1 February 2021)

Ms. Foo Man Yee Carina (resigned on 1 July 2020)
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Corporate Information
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Yan Hualin (Chairman) (appointed on 8 July 2019)
Mr. Xu Jiaming

Mr. Choi Ho Yan (appointed on 29 June 2020)

Mr. Siu Siu Ling, Robert (appointed on 29 June 2020)
Mr. Wu Zhongxian (resigned on 21 March 2022)

Mr. Luk Chi Shing (Chairman) (resigned on 5 July 2019)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Siu Siu Ling, Robert
(appointed as Chairman on 21 March 2022)
(appointed on 29 June 2020)
Mr. Yan Hualin (appointed on 8 July 2019)
Mr. Choi Ho Yan (appointed on 29 June 2020)
Mr. Shan Hu (appointed on 18 November 2021)
Mr. Zhang Tianbo (appointed on 14 December 2021)
Mr. Wu Zhongxian (Chairman)
(resigned on 21 March 2022)
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang (resigned on 17 November 2021)
Mr. Luk Chi Shing (resigned on 5 July 2019)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Li Xulin (Chairman) (appointed on 18 November 2021)
Mr. Xu Jiaming
Mr. Choi Ho Yan (appointed on 29 June 2020)
Mr. Siu Siu Ling, Robert (appointed on 29 June 2020)
Mr. Shan Hu (appointed on 18 November 2021)
Mr. Zhang Tianbo (appointed on 14 December 2021)
Mr. Yan Hualin (appointed on 21 March 2022)
Mr. Hua Gang (Chairman) (appointed on 29 October 2021
and ceased to be the Chairman on 18 November 2021)
Mr. Jiang Jiangiang (Chairman)
(resigned on 29 October 2021)
Mr. Wu Zhongxian (resigned on 21 March 2022)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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HEADQUARTER AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

No. 5 Peitian Avenue, Sugang Road

Economic Development Zone, Huaiyuan County
Bengbu

Anhui Province

The PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

22nd Floor of The Toy House
No. 100 Canton Road
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Messrs. BDO Limited
(appointed on 11 September 2021)

LEGAL ADVISER AS TO HONG KONG

LAW

P. C. Woo & Co.
Robertsons

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Corporation
(Yixing Gaocheng Branch)

Agricultural Bank of China Limited
(Yixing Chengzhong Branch)

Jiangsu Yixing Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.
(Gaocheng Branch)

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A

Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court, Cayman Bay

Grand Cayman, KY1-1100

Cayman Islands

STOCK CODE

153

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.chinasaite.com.cn
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board"”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of China Saite, | am pleased to present the
annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.

The Group saw the performance of its steel structure
business and prefabricated construction business declining
in 2019 as a result of the macro impact and the efforts to
assure benefits and reduce receivables. By carrying out this
restructuring, it paved the way for driving growth in the
performance for next year.

The global economic growth in future will be on a scale of
globalization. Overseas expansion is the only way for
companies to expand in line with globalization. It is,
therefore, absolutely right to follow the inexorable trend
for economic development. The 14th Five-Year Plan (the
“14th Five-Year Plan”) and the Long-term Goals for 2035
implemented by the Chinese government have made it
clear that the focus of the national development plan will
continue to include deepening cooperation between
domestic and overseas markets, as well as full integration
into the infrastructure of the “Belt and Road” and the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area.
Therefore, the Company will actively seize the opportunity
to expand our business beyond Jiangsu Province, to obtain
more orders in overseas projects, and to develop cross-
regional and cross-country connection and cooperation, so
as to perfectly realize the national strategy and the trend
of overseas business development.

Diversification and globalization are the medium- and
long-term development direction of the Group. By
leveraging China’s favorable opportunity arising from
deepening the supply-side reforms, the Group will get all
colleagues and close partners of the Company fully united,
maximize its potential and build an extensive business
network in various fields, including but not limited to
property development and collaboration in green building,
which will in turn create more strategic values for the
Group.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EFE®RE

We believe well-established business strategies, when
coupled with a management team with strong execution
capabilities, will accomplish sustainable development amid
uncertainties in the economic environment. On behalf of
the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to
all staff members of China Saite for their contribution to
the Group in the past year and to our shareholders for
their ongoing support. The new year is expected to be full
of opportunities and challenges, the Group is committed
to creating better value for shareholders.

Li Xulin
Chairman
Hong Kong, 18 April 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As an integrated steel structure and fully assembled
prefabricated structure construction solution service
provider, the Group offers integrated construction
solutions to customers according to the technical
specifications and requirements of different projects as
well as the needs of customers. The services include
design, secondary detailed design, production, installation,
and after-sale services for customers.

The Group’s steel structure solutions mainly focus on
construction of large-scale public structures (such as sports
stadiums, convention and exhibition centers, airports, and
railway stations), bridges (such as railway bridges, highway
bridges, landscape bridges, river-crossing bridges and sea-
crossing bridges), large-scale factory premises, industrial
park zones, logistics park zones, etc. The Group's
prefabricated construction solutions are mainly used in
construction of low-income housing and public utilities
during the process of urbanisation initiated by the PRC
government.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Due to the worldwide economic downturn during the year,
the Group's revenue and gross profit for the year ended
31 December 2019 (“Year 2019") dipped notably
compared to the corresponding period of 2018 (“Year
2018"). The downward pressure on China’s economy
increased in Year 2019. In particular, the downward
pressure on the Chinese economy has increased in Year
2019 against the backdrop of Sino-US economic and trade
frictions.

As industrial enterprises profit growth declined as well as
the manufacturing investment fell sharply, the growth of
total investment slowed down. There is an impact on the
demand for building materials and related services on the
overall macroeconomic environment. The management of
the Group will adjust its business strategy to deal with the
challenges faced by the Group under any circumstances.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DM

The Group’s revenue for Year 2019 amounted to
approximately RMB515.4 million (2018: RMB1,501.3
million). Gross profit for Year 2019 amounted to
approximately RMB90.4 million (2018: RMB353.8 million),
and the average gross profit margin ("GP margin”) was
approximately 17.5% (2018: 23.6%). Loss attributable to
the owners of the Company amounted to approximately
RMB6,091.5 million (2018: Profit attributable to the
owners of the Company amounted to RMB139.0 million).
Basic losses per share amounted to approximately
RMB224.6 cents (2018: basic earnings per share of
RMB6.0 cents).

Steel structure

For Year 2019, the Group's revenue generated from the
steel structure business amounted to RMB462.8 million,
decreased by 52.2% from RMB968.3 million for Year
2018. The GP margin for the steel structure business was
17.3%, decreased by 0.3 percentage point from 17.6% in
Year 2018, mainly due to corresponding adjustments on
industry profits.

During Year 2019, the Group’s steel structure business
were mainly located in Jiangsu Province, Anhui Province,
Shanghai, Zhejiang Province and Jiangxi Province in the
PRC for construction of factories, highways, bridges and
other private/public structures.
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B E F 49 A A R # 90,400,000 7T (20184 AR
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17.5% (2018 4F : 23.6%) c AR A EH AEILE
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REBHOBARE 22465 (2018F : EREAR
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Prefabricated construction

During Year 2019, revenue from the Group’s prefabricated
construction business amounted to approximately
RMB52.7 million, representing a decrease of approximately
90.1% from RMB533.0 million in Year 2018. During Year
2019, revenue from the Group's prefabricated construction
business plummeted remarkably as compared with that of
Year 2018 due to the impact of the restrictions on the
development of the real estate industry. GP margin was
approximately 19.9%, representing a shrinkage of
approximately 14.4 percentage points from approximately
34.3% in Year 2018, as a result of higher costs of
production of prefabricated parts. The revenue from the
prefabricated construction business declined from Year
2018 due to the lack of major low-income residential
projects in Jiangsu Province while the competition for
projects by private developers was intensifying. The Group
will adopt various measures to expand its clientele and
business scale.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

In 2021, the business environment in Mainland China,
Hong Kong and Macau improved gradually throughout the
year until the recent COVID-19 Omicron outbreak in
certain regions. However, the erratic global COVID-19
pandemic development and mutant variants continues to
impact market development and economic recovery in
general, so we expect the road to recovery to be
unpredictable and will depend on extent of social
distancing restrictions and effectiveness of measures
relating to the containment of COVID-19 pandemic.

Looking ahead, the Group will stay vigilant amidst these
uncertainties on the road to recovery and will strive to
manage its businesses with efficient senior management,
disciplined cost control and prudent risk management in
2022. The Group will continue to focus on its steel
structure business and prefabricated construction by
strengthening cooperation with state enterprises, central
government enterprises and multinational corporations as
well as consolidating its resources and improve internal
management to achieve better business performance. With
the goal of obtaining higher returns for its shareholders,
the Group will also pay additional attention to the
development and opportunities in the market, and devote
to the exploration of new revenue streams.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWRDN

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For Year 2019, the Group’s revenue amounted to
approximately RMB515.4 million, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB985.9 million or 65.7% as compared
with Year 2018.

The following table sets out a breakdown of the Group’s
revenue in terms of steel structure projects and
prefabricated construction projects for each of the periods

Ft %5 [ 8
Uy 2

K209 AEB KRN AEBARE
515,400,0007C © #20184 & 4 49 A R #

985,900,000 7T 5% 65.7% °

TREIZAIAEASENHEHEEE k2R
FCTERUE 2 5818 B /O IR as AAAD -

indicated:
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
Revenue Revenue
percentage percentage
RMB’000 (%) RMB'000 (%)
&3y d WGt
ARETT (%) ARBFIT (%)
Construction of B3
— Steel structure projects — $45HEIE B 462,750 89.8 968,313 64.5
— Prefabricated — 2 REBREN
construction projects FEEATEE 52,697 10.2 532,998 35.5
Total FEE 515,447 100.0 1,501,311 100.0

For Year 2019, revenue from steel structure projects
represented approximately 89.8% of the Group's total
revenue, while revenue from prefabricated construction
projects represented approximately 10.2% of the Group's
total revenue.

Revenue from steel structure projects decreased by
approximately 52.2% from approximately RMB968.3
million for Year 2018 to approximately RMB462.8 million
for Year 2019. On the other hand, revenue from
prefabricated construction projects decreased by
approximately 90.1% from approximately RMB533.0
million for Year 2018 to approximately RMB52.7 million
for Year 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

EFNRERNR

The following table sets out a breakdown of the Group'’s TRETIF 20194 % 2018 F A & H /Y i) 45 1% 18
gross profit and GP margin in terms of steel structure AR2EREREAHERBEEOERNLEF KA
projects and prefabricated construction projects for Year 48 -

2019 and Year 2018:

Gross profit and GP margin

2019 2018
2019 20184
Gross profit GP margin Gross profit GP margin
EF EFIZ= EA EFE
RMB’000 (%) RMB’ 000 (%)
AR TR (%) ARETT (%)
Construction of e
— Steel structure projects — ff] 457 18 B 79,920 17.3 170,812 17.6
— Prefabricated — 2EREEE MY
construction project EERIAR 10,494 19.9 183,011 343
Total BET 90,414 17.5 353,823 23.6

For Year 2019, overall GP margin of the Group was
approximately 17.5%, representing a decrease of 6.1
percentage points as compared to approximately 23.6%
for Year 2018.

GP margin for steel structure projects decreased
approximately 0.3 percentage point from approximately
17.6% for Year 2018 to 17.3% for Year 2019. The
decrease was mainly due to corresponding adjustment on
industry profits, which in turn resulted in the decrease of
GP margin for the Group’s steel structure business.

GP margin for prefabricated construction projects
decreased by approximately 14.4 percentage points from
approximately 34.3% for Year 2018 to 19.9% for Year
2019. The decrease was mainly due to the increase in the
production cost of prefabricated parts when compared
with Year 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWRDN

Other income and other losses

The other income of the Group for Year 2019 was
approximately RMB2.0 million (2018: RMB12.9 million),
derived mainly from sales of scrapped materials, interest
income on bank deposits, government grants and rental
income.

The net other losses of the Group for Year 2019 was
approximately RMB76.4 million (2018: RMB24.7 million),
derived mainly from write-off of property, plant and
equipment and net exchange loss.

Selling and marketing expenses and
administrative expenses

The total selling, marketing expenses and administrative
expenses for Year 2019 were approximately RMB64.4
million (2018: RMB61.8 million), represented an increase
of approximately RMB2.6 million. The increase was mainly
attributable to the transportation costs incurred for delivery
of finished goods from warehouse to site for installation,
depreciation derived from newly acquired property, plant
and equipment and the audit fee, the effect was offset by
the decrease in commission and legal fee paid for issuance
of bonds.

Finance costs

The Group's finance costs for Year 2019 was
approximately RMB99.6 million (2018: RMB36.7 million),
mainly contributed from interests on short-term
borrowings, interests on corporate bonds and commission.
The creditors regarding the corporate bonds and the short-
term borrowings are independent third parties to the
Group.

Impairment losses on financial and contract
assets

The impairment losses on financial and contract assets for
Year 2019 were approximately RMB5,933.5 million (2018:
RMB28.5 million), represented an increase of
approximately RMB5,905.0 million. The increase was
mainly attributable to increase in impairment losses on
trade and other receivables.
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Remeasurement of financial guarantee
contracts

The recognition of financial guarantee contracts during
Year 2019 was based on the investigation result of the
Independent Adviser as disclosed in note 3. The financial
guarantee contracts were recognised based on the
valuation prepared by an independent valuer engaged by
the Company for Year 2019. The directors considered the
expected payments to reimburse the holder of the
guarantees were no longer recoverable from the borrowers
and therefore recorded a loss of RMB53.0 million in Year
2019 (2018: reversal of loss of RMB1.2 million).

Total comprehensive (expenses)/income for
the year

Total comprehensive expenses attributed to the owners of
the Company for Year 2019 amounted to RMB6,091.5
million (2018: comprehensive income of RMB109.3
million). The decrease in total comprehensive income was
mainly attributable to (i) the declines in revenue and gross
profit; (ii) increases in impairment losses on trade
receivables and other receivables; (iii) increases in other
losses; (iv) increases in finance costs; and (v) increases in
remeasurement of financial guarantee contracts.

Capital structure, liquidity and financial
resources

The Group's cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December
2019 was approximately RMB40.2 million (2018:
RMB856.9 million). As at 31 December 2019, the Group
had current assets of approximately RMB1,227.4 million
(2018: RMB2,770.8 million) and current liabilities of
approximately RMB4,489.2 million (2018: RMB426.6
million). The current ratio (which is calculated on the basis
of current assets over current liabilities) was 0.3 as at 31
December 2019 (2018: 6.5). Total deficit of the Group as
at 31 December 2019 was approximately RMB3,196.8
million (2018: a surplus of RMB2,632.5 million). As at 31
December 2019, the issued share capital of the Company
was approximately HK$302.1 million (2018: HK$233.1
million) with approximately 3,020.7 million (2018: 2,330.7
million) shares in issue. Total borrowings (including
corporate bonds, short-term borrowings, problematic loans
and financial guarantee contracts) were approximately
RMB948.8 million as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
RMB362.7 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEBRWR AN

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had pledged
property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount of
RMB63.4 million and leasehold land under right-of-use
assets with a carrying amount of RMB31.2 million to
secure bank borrowings of the Group. The Group had
pledged property, plant and equipment with a carrying
amount of RMB22.2 million as at 31 December 2018 to
secure bank borrowings of the Group.

Treasury policies

The Group has adopted a prudent treasury policy and thus
maintained a healthy liquidity position throughout the
year. The Group strives to reduce credit risk by conducting
ongoing credit assessments and evaluations of the financial
status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure
that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities
and other commitments can meet its funding requirements
from time to time.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a deficit of
approximately RMB3,196.8 million. Calculation of gearing
ratio of the Group for Year 2019 is therefore not
applicable. The gearing ratio for Year 2018 was 13.8%.

Foreign exchange exposure

The Group’s businesses are principally operated in the PRC
and substantially all of its transactions are conducted in
RMB and most of the Group's assets and liabilities are also
denominated in RMB. The Group is subject to foreign
exchange rate risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities which are
denominated in currencies other than RMB. During the
year under review, the Group did not commit to any
financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign
currency risk and did not adopt any foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management of the Group
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.
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Capital expenditures

During Year 2019, the Group's capital expenditure
consisted of additions to properties, plant and equipment
amounting to approximately RMB55.8million (2018:
RMB58.0 million).

Employees

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had approximately
258 employees (2018: 591). The related staff cost
(including remuneration of Directors in the form of salaries
and other benefits) for Year 2019 was approximately
RMB25.6 million (2018: RMB60.4 million). The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice. Competitive
remuneration package is offered to retain elite employees.
Our package includes salaries, medical insurance,
discretionary bonuses, on-the-job training, other benefits
as well as mandatory provident fund schemes for
employees in Hong Kong and state managed retirement
benefit schemes for employees in the PRC.

Contingent liabilities

There were no contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2019 (2018: nil).

Final dividends

The Board does not recommend any final dividend
payment for Year 2019 to the Shareholders (2018: nil).

Events after the end of the reporting period
Details of events after the end of reporting period are set

out in note 50 to the consolidated financial statements in
this report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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UPDATE ON WINDING-UP PETITION

As of the date of this report, there is one outstanding
petition that has yet to be withdrawn or dismissed. In light
of its direction for convening the meeting (the “Scheme
Meeting”) of the scheme creditors be convened for the
purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving the
Scheme of Arrangement (with or without modification),
the Court has adjourned the winding-up hearing against
the Company to 16 May 2022. No winding-up order has
been made against the Company and the winding-up
petition has no material adverse impact on the daily
operation of the Company.

The Company is actively dealing with the remaining
petitioners and supporting creditors and targets to procure
the withdrawal or dismissal of the petition subject to the
completion of the proposed restructuring.

PROPOSED RESTRUCTURING

The Group is currently implementing a proposed
restructuring (the “Proposed Restructuring”) which
comprises:

(i) the reorganisation of the Group structure (the
“Group Reorganization”) whereby, among other
things, non-performing and/or non-core assets of the
Group would be carved out by way of creditors’
voluntary winding up of the relevant subsidiary(ies).
The Group Reorganization is aimed at, among
others, carving out a majority of the PRC-based
indebtedness of the Group;

(i)  the capital injection (the “Capital Injection”)
comprising (a) the issue of the Senior Notes in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$160 million to
investors; and (b) the allotment and issue of the
Subscription Shares at the aggregate subscription
price of HK$312 million to investors. The aggregate
gross proceeds of approximately HK$472 million
would enable the Group to, among other things,
effecting the Proposed Restructuring as well as
funding its general working capital need, hence
enabling the Group to continue sustaining its normal
business operations; and
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(i) the Scheme of Arrangement to be made between
the Company and its creditors in accordance with
sections 670 and 673 of the Companies Ordinance
of Hong Kong (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), pursuant to which all claims of the creditors
against the Company will be fully and finally
discharged by virtue of the Scheme of Arrangement
in exchange for cash and/or new shares in the
Company.

The Scheme of Arrangement was sanctioned by the
Court at the sanction hearing on 11 April 2022. The
Scheme of Arrangement shall become effective
when an office copy of the order of the Court
sanctioning the Scheme of Arrangement is registered
by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong under
Part 2 of the Companies Ordinance and the other
conditions precedent set out in the Scheme of
Arrangement are duly fulfilled.

Further announcement(s) regarding the Scheme of
Arrangement will be made by the Company as and
when appropriate.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

ESEREREEEBN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Li Xulin
Executive Director and Chairman

Mr. Li Xulin (“Mr. Li"), aged 55, was appointed as the
chairman of the Board and an executive Director of the
Company on 18 November 2021. He is also the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Li graduated from the Party School of Anhui Provincial
Committee of C.P.C (FF HZ & Z #4%) with a postgraduate
degree with major in economic management in July 2011.

Mr. Li has vast experiences in the finance area. He worked
in the finance department* (B4 EX FfT) of various districts in
Huaiyuan County, Anhui Province, the PRC (B &2 14 12
=) from October 1984 to April 1995. From April 1995 to
April 2003, Mr. Li was the Under Secretary for State-Owned
Assets Administration Bureau* (Bl B EEEE R & BK)
under the Ministry of Finance (B4 Bt ) of the PRC. From
April 2003 to May 2005, he worked in the Finance Bureau
(87 B /@) in Huaiyuan County, Anhui Province with his last
position as the Secretary for Supervision Bureau* (E5E /3 B
£). From May 2006 to December 2008, he was the Officer
of the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Office* (B8 & EEIE A= F1T). From December 2008
to August 2015, Mr. Li was the Deputy Officer* (8lFEE)
and Deputy Secretary* (g|Z52) of the Huaiyuan economic
development area of Anhui Province* (ZZ 14 12 & 45 75 B
E[@). From May 2006 to August 2018, he was responsible
for managing the Yuanchengtao Company* (S, #% A A])
and Yuan Guarantee Company* (£ #£ /R 2 &) with his
last positions as the chairman of the board (¥ % &) of
Yuanchengtao Company and the responsible officer (B &
A) of Yuan Guarantee Company. From August 2015 to
August 2018, Mr. Li was the Party Branch Secretary* (##8
£3&0) and Secretary for Finance Bureau* (M BB/ &) of
Huaiyuan County, Anhui Province. Since June 2016, he was
the member of the County Committee* (8% % 8). Since
August 2018, Mr. Li is the chairman of the board (%K)
of Huaiyuan Investment Group Co., Ltd.* (BRI EEE
BBR/AF]). He was the Party Branch Deputy Secretary* (&
425 £30) from August 2018 to March 2020 and the Party
Secretary* (#Z& £#) Huaiyuan Investment Group Co., Ltd.*
from March 2020 onwards.

*  for translation purposes only
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Shan Hu
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Shan Hu (“Mr. Shan”), aged 47, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 18 November 2021
and the chief executive officer of the Company on 16
December 2021. He is also a member of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Shan graduated from Anhui University of Finance &
Economics (ZHIE £ K E2) (formerly known as Anhui School
of Finance and Trade* (% & 81 & £ %) with a bachelor of
economics with major in finance in July 1997. From August
1997 to September 2020, Mr. Shan worked at the Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China in the PRC, with his last
position as deputy head of Bengbu branch* (#38477), and
was responsible for supervising various areas including
corporate credit, investment banking, small enterprise,
bank card, personal loan, institution, legal, bad debt,
investment management, etc. From September 2020
onwards, Mr. Shan is the executor director and general
manager of Anhui Tianhong New Type Steel Structural

Material Co., Ltd.* (ZE A B4 EM LA R A A).

*  for translation purposes only
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Zhang Tianbo
Executive Director

Mr. Zhang Tianbo (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 41, was appointed
as an executive Director of the Company on 14 December
2021. He is also a member of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Zhang graduated from the Party School of Anhui
Provincial Committee of C.P.C. (Ff HZ#HIE T EHX) with a
postgraduate degree with major in economic management
in July 2014.

Mr. Zhang has vast experiences in the accounting area. He
worked as an account staff in finance department* (EfiER
FfT) of Xuweixiang in Huaiyuan County, Anhui Province,
the People’s Republic of China (the ""PRC"") (FREIZ#I&
BIRBIRIT4E) from September 1999 to July 2004. From
July 2004 to September 2017, Mr. Zhang worked at the
Treasury Section of the Municipal Finance Bureau* (B4 /5
EERL) in Huaiyuan County, Anhui Province with his last position
as Chief* (Bl of the Treasury Section. From September
2017 to October 2018, Mr. Zhang served as the Chief
Accountant* (& 5H6M) as well as a member of the Party
Group of the Finance Bureau of Huaiyuan County* (1Z:& &
B BEMH). He was the Major Secretary* (5 —2%C) of
Zhugiao Village, Shuanggiaoji Town, Huaiyuan County (/2
RBERBEEGBAR) from May 2017 to December 2018.
He was the General Manager* (4#24%¥2) of Huaiyuan Investment
Group Co., Ltd.* (ERIEE LB B R A F]) from December
2018 to December 2019. Since November 2018, Mr.
Zhang is a director of Huaiyuan Investment Group Co.,
Ltd.*. Mr. Zhang is a director and Vice General Manager of
Saite Group (Anhui) Ltd.* (BREFEB(ZR) AR 2 7)) (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) from
April 2020 onwards.

*  for translation purposes only
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Xu Fanghua
Executive Director

Mr. Xu Fanghua (“Mr. Xu"), aged 57, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 15 December 2015.
He has over 11 years of experience in the eco-friendly
construction industry. Mr. Xu graduated from Nanjing
University of Science and Technology (F8 R ¥ T K 2) in
environmental engineering in July 2003. He was appointed
as the chairman of the board of directors and general
manager of Jiangsu Chenli Company Limited* (/T & = 7
EEEM2ATA]) in February 1991. Jiangsu Chenli Company
Limited was deregistered in January 2013. Mr. Xu then
founded Jiangsu Chenli in October 2012 and has been
appointed as the chairman of the board of directors as well
as the general manager of Jiangsu Chenli since October
2012.

Liu Zhibo
Executive Director

Mr. Liu Zhibo (“Mr. Liu”), aged 58, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 8 July 2019. He
currently serves as chairman of Shanghai Yulin Asset
Management Co., Ltd* (B8 FHEEEIEHBR A A)). Prior
to this, Mr. Liu served as teacher at Suzhou University (&%
N ARE2) from 1986 to 1988; secretary and deputy office
director of Jiangyan Agricultural Bank of Jiangsu Province*
(TERZ=1EZE4RTT) from 1989 to 1995; deputy director
and director of Jiangyan Rural Credit Cooperative
Association of Jiangsu Province* (TERZ=1EZMN{EHAE
B§4t) from 1996 to 2002; and director of Technology
Department and office director of Jiangsu Credit
Cooperative Association* (L& & 1A & fEH4L) from
2003 to 2010. Mr. Liu holds a master’s degree of Business
Management (>2&3E) from Nanjing Tech University (F3
RIEARE)in 2009.

*  for translation purposes only
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EEREREEESHNT

Hua Gang
Executive Director

Mr. Hua Gang (“Mr. Hua"), aged 44, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 8 July 2019. He was
appointed as Chairman on 29 October 2021 and ceased to
be the Chairman on 18 November 2021. He has been
serving as deputy general manager of Jiangsu Kaimeng
Investments Co., Ltd.* (T & gl BB & & B R A &) since
March 2011. From May 2008 to February 2011, Mr. Hua
served as finance manager of Shimao Group* (X5 E)
and Taizhou Shimao New City Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.* (EME XM E M EFRZEBR 2 A]) and as
project manager of Taizhou Xingrui Certified Public
Accountants Co., Ltd.* (Z= /I B Bs & 51 Al S5 7 FT). From
April 2003 to May 2008, Mr. Hua served as general
accountant of Jiangsu Fangyuan Construction Engineering
Co., Ltd.* (T & HEIZE T AR A F]). He obtained a
bachelor’s degree in accountancy from Nanjing University
of Finance and Economics. Mr. Hua holds the senior
accountant technical title and the certified public
accountant qualification.

*  for translation purposes only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Xu Jiaming
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Xu Jiaming (“Mr. Xu”), aged 51, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company
on 11 October 2013. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Xu graduated with a bachelor’s degree
in Industrial Management Engineering (Management
Information Systems)* (L% E R TE(EBE B ER))
from Wuhan Institute of Engineering* (i & T £ %) in
June 1992 and obtained a master’s degree in business
administration from Nanjing University (B & X £) in
December 2003. He is currently a candidate for
a doctorate degree in Management Science and
Engineering* (‘& 12 £} 2 B T 32) at Wuhan University of
Technology (& % 2 T X ). He has over 17 years of
experience in corporate management and consultancy.
From January 1997 to May 1998, he served at Nanjing
Toptry Information Industry Group Co., Ltd.* (& = & Al
ZEEXEBEABMR AR, a company principally engaged
in software development and information services as the
head of its marketing department, deputy manager and
the head of its department of electronic commerce (& F
£36). Since May 1998, he has served as the chief consultant
and the general manager of Nanjing Zhiyu Corporate
Management Consultants Company Limited* (& & %7 13 1
%518 A R 2 Al), a company principally engaged
in provision of business consultancy services. He acted as
the chief human resources manager of Red Star Home
Furniture Group Limited* (AL E2 RE LB BR A Al), a
company principally engaged in, among others, sale of
home furniture, between June 2005 and July 2007 and
the general manager of Red Star Macalline International
Consultancy Company Limited* (41 £ < gl 82 B X #% +3
BRAR]), a company principally engaged in provision of
business consultancy services, between June 2005 and July
2007. From December 2008 to September 2010, he also
served as the management consultant and the president
of Permanent Group Co., Ltd.* ((EA £ B AR A F), a
company principally engaged in the manufacture of steel
structures and machineries. Since September 2010, he
has acted as the corporate management consultant of
Nanjing Fullshare Holdings Group Limited* (EI R 2 E
¥ % 5 B & R A 7)), a company principally engaged in
construction projects.

*  for translation purposes only
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEREN

Yan Hualin
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Yan Hualin (“Mr. Yan”), aged 63, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 8
July 2019. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Yan worked at the People’s Bank of Jiangsu Province
(TI#& ARERTT) from January 1980 to March 1980. From
April 1980 to July 2002, he worked at Jiangsu Bank School*
(GLE R 7T 242) and Nanjing Higher Finance College* (7
e RtmSEHERER), being engaged in teaching students
in finance, accounting and other majors. At the same time,
Mr. Yan served as director of Accounting and Statistics
Department at Jiangsu Bank School, deputy director of
the Finance Department and director (director level) of
the Accounting Department at Nanjing Higher Finance
College. From August 2002 to February 2018, Mr. Yan
worked at Nanjing Audit Institute (renamed as Nanjing
Audit University in 2015), being engaged in teaching
students in finance, accounting, financial management,
auditing and other majors; at the same time, Mr. Yan also
served as the secretary to the Chief Party Committee of
Accounting School, director of Finance Department, head
of Audit Department and other roles at Nanjing Audit
University. From March 2004 to June 2019, Mr. Yan served
as independent directors and external supervisors of seven
rural commercial banks, such as Jiangyan Rural Commercial
Bank* (Z1E 2 & 7 % 3R 77), Siyang Rural Commercial
Bank* (N[5 2 4 7 % 3R 17), Jingjiang Rural Commercial
Bank* (¥5)T 2 #£77) and Yangzhou Rural Commercial
Bank* (35 ZRE4R1T). From February 1978 to December
1979, Mr. Yan studied at Jiangsu Bank School (full-time
education), majoring in banking and obtained his diploma;
From September 1983 to June 1985, Mr. Yan studied at
Shaanxi University of Finance and Economics* (P 78 B1 4%
E2 B3) (currently known as Xi‘an Jiaotong University) (full-
time education), majoring in finance and obtained his
diploma; From September 1991 to June 1993, Mr. Yan
studied at Shaanxi University of Finance and Economics*
(currently known as Xi'an Jiaotong University) (full-time
education), majoring in finance and obtained his diploma;
From September 1997 to July 1999, Mr. Yan attended
the postgraduate course in economic management of the
School of Economics and Trade at Nanjing Agricultural
University (on the-job education) and obtained the
certificate of completion. Mr. Yan holds a bachelor’s
degree in finance from Shaanxi University of Finance and
Economics* (currently known as Xi‘an Jiaotong University).
He was qualified as an associate professor and chief
accountant.

*  for translation purposes only
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Choi Ho Yan
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Choi Ho Yan (“Mr. Choi”), aged 46, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company
with effect from 29 June 2020. He is also a member of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Choi graduated from the University of Hertfordshire,
the United Kingdom in July 1998 with a bachelor of arts.
He has extensive experience in auditing, accounting,
corporate finance, advisory and restructuring and investors
relations.

Mr. Choi is currently an independent non-executive
director of Time Watch Investments Limited (stock code:
2033), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, since May 2013; and an independent non-
executive director of Jimu Group Limited (stock code:
8187), a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange,
since February 2022. Mr. Choi served as an independent
non-executive director of Long Well International Holdings
Limited, a company whose shares were delisted on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 28 May 2021, from
March 2020 to March 2021; and the chief financial officer
of KOS International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8042),
a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, from
January 2018 to December 2021.

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEESHNT

Siu Siu Ling, Robert
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Siu Siu Ling, Robert (“Mr. Siu”), aged 70, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 29 June 2020. He is also the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of
the Company.

Mr. Siu is the sole proprietor of the firm, Messrs. Robert
Siu & Co., Solicitors. Mr. Siu holds a bachelor’s degree in
laws from the University of London and a postgraduate
certificate in laws from The University of Hong Kong. He
also holds a Master of Laws from the University of
Greenwich, United Kingdom. He has been admitted as a
solicitor in Hong Kong since 1992 and has been admitted
as a solicitor in England and Wales since 1993. Mr. Siu
engages in general practice in his legal field.

Mr. Siu serves as an independent non-executive director of
Future World Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 572),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, since November 2011; and an independent
non-executive director of Finet Group Limited (stock code:
8317), a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange,
since September 2010. Mr. Siu served as an independent
non-executive director of Kaisun Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8203), a company listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange, from December 2002 to December 2020.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board has committed to achieving high corporate
governance standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance
standards are essential in providing a framework for the
Group to safeguard the interests of shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has adopted its own corporate governance
policy on 11 November 2019 in additional to the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Company has complied with all code
provisions of the CG Code for the financial year ended 31
December 2019, except for the deviation disclosed below:
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Code Provision Deviation Considered Reason for Deviation
FRI ek R BiEBEREEANRER
A.7.1  For regular board meetings, an During the year, certain The Board members of the Company were informed by

A71

agenda and accompanying board
papers should be sent to all
directors. These should be sent in
a timely manner and at least 3
days before the intended date of
a board meeting.

BRTHETEEH AR
HEFENEEHEARZEE

ad hoc Board meetings
were held and the
relevant Board meeting
papers were sent to all
Directors less than 3 days
before the date of the
Board meeting.

RER BRTETE
FemREeR  Hi0H

FoRSHERXREERE EFEERXMERE
ERTEFEERAMNRL= FEERAHNITE=
RiEH RERERES -

the management of the Company by email, by WeChat
or by phone on the updated information of proposed ad
hoc projects/transaction(s) to be entered by the Company
from time to time. Although the meeting papers could
not be sent to the Directors at least 3 days before the
meeting, the Board members still have sufficient
information to discuss the matters on proposed projects
or transactions of the Company. The Board will use its
best efforts to meet the CG Code requirements.
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EERRE

Code Provision Deviation Considered Reason for Deviation
PRI REETER REREREEANER
C.1.2 Management should provide all During the year, All the executive Directors were involved in the daily

members of the Board with
monthly updates giving a
balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail to
enable the Board as a whole and
each Director to discharge their
duties under the Listing Rules.
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30

management failed to
provide to the Directors
the management
accounts of major
subsidiary companies
each month.

RER > BEREBARGES
ARESRHETBHME
NEMERERE -

operation of the Group and were fully aware of the
performance, position and prospects of the Company,
and the management has provided to all Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) half-
yearly updates giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company's performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail prior to the reqular Board
meetings of the Company.

Further, the management of the Company has provided
all members of the Board, in a timely manner, updates
on any material changes to the performance, position
and prospects of the Company and sufficient background
or explanatory information for matters brought before
the Board. Therefore, the Company considered that all
members of the Board had been given a balanced and
understandable assessment on the Company's
performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail.
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Code Provision Deviation Considered Reason for Deviation
PRI mEETER REREREEANER
C.2.1  The Board should oversee the During the year, the Due to the inadvertent oversight, there was deficiency

Company’s risk management and
internal control systems on an
ongoing basis, ensure that a
review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and
internal control systems has been
conducted at least annually and
report to Shareholders that it has
done so in its Corporate
Governance Report. The review
should cover all material controls,
including financial , operational
and compliance controls.

* for translation purposes only

Company failed to have
effective risk
management and
internal control systems
within the Group, i.e.
deficiencies in internal
control over compliance
matters.

in internal control system of the Group. The Company
had engaged RSM Consulting (Hong Kong) Limited as
internal control consultant to review its certain existing
internal control measures on the areas agreed by the
Board and provide suggestions and recommendation to
improve its internal control systems and risk
management system to the Group.

In order to fulfill the Resumption Guidance stipulated
by the Stock Exchange (details of which are set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 22 July
2020) that the Company should conduct an
independent internal control review and demonstrate
that it has put in place adequate internal control and
procedures to comply with the Listing Rules (the “IC
Guidance"), the Company has engaged Azzura
Corporate Advisory Limited in July 2020 to conduct the
Internal Control Review and prepare the Internal
Control Report, the findings of which were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 7 May 2021.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
13 September 2021, having considered the significance
of maintaining an appropriate and effective internal
control systems and in order to provide further assurance
to the public that the Company is committed to fulfill the
IC Guidance, the Board has engaged SHINEWING Risk
Services Limited (“Shinewing”) on 31 August 2021 as
its internal control consultant to conduct a second round
of independent review of the internal control systems
and procedures of the Group (“2nd IC Review").

The 2nd IC Review and follow-up review have been
conducted from October 2021 to January 2022 as part
of the Company’'s efforts to meet the Resumption
Guidance of the Stock Exchange, in particular the IC
Guidance. Shinewing has issued an internal control
review report dated 22 February 2022 (the “2nd
Internal Control Review Report”), which sets out (i)
the deficiencies identified in the 2nd IC Review; (i) the
recommendations to the Company; and (iii) the result of
follow-up review of the remedial measures taken by the
Company and Anhui Dayu Construction Engineering Co.,
Ld* (RRABERIBERRAQA) as at 29 January
2022.

The key findings of the 2nd Internal Control Review
Report prepared by Shinewing have been published in
the announcement of the Company dated 23 February
2022.

* BEERDZ
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The Company will continue to enhance its corporate
governance practices to the conduct and growth of its
business and to review such practices from time to time to
ensure that they comply with the CG Code and align with
the latest development.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions and dealing (the “Code of
Conduct”) by Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard contained in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules.

Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, the
Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
Model Code and the Code of Conduct throughout the
year ended 31 December 2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2019, the Board comprised eight
Directors, including five executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors as named below.

Executive Directors:

Mr. Jiang Jiangiang (Chairman)

Mr. Shao Xiaogiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Xu Fanghua

Mr. Liu Zhibo (appointed on 8 July 2019)
Mr. Hua Gang (appointed on 8 July 2019)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Xu Jiaming

Mr. Yan Hualin (appointed on 8 July 2019)
Mr. Wu Zhongxian

Corporate Governance Report
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The biographical information of the current Directors are
set out in the section headed “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

None of the Directors have a relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship) with another Director.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As at 31 December 2019, the positions of chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company were held by Mr.
Jiang Jiangiang and Mr. Shao Xiaogiang respectively. The
chairman provided leadership for the Board and was
responsible for overall strategic planning and management
of our Group. The chief executive officer focused on
overseeing the production and technical teams of our
Group. Their respective responsibilities were clearly defined
and set out in writing.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to article 105(A) of the Company’s articles of
association, not less than one-third of the Directors (or
otherwise the number nearest one-third) for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting of the Company. All retiring Directors
shall be eligible for re-election.

Article 109 of the Company’s articles of association
provides that any person appointed as a Director either to
fill a casual vacancy or as an additional Director shall hold
office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at the
meeting but shall not be taken into account in determining
the Directors or the number of Directors who are to retire
by rotation at such meeting.
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Each of Mr. Jiang Jiangiang, Mr. Shao Xiaogiang and Mr.
Xu Fanghua, the executive Directors, was appointed for an
initial term of three years and was subject to renewal for
successive term of one year each commencing from the
next day after the expiry of the then current term. Mr. Liu
Zhibo and Mr. Hua Gang, the executive Directors, were
appointed for an initial term of three years commencing
from 8 July 2019. Other than Mr. Xu Jiaming, each of the
independent non-executive Directors was appointed for a
term of one year. Mr. Xu Jiaming was appointed for an
initial term of two years and is subject to renewal for
successive term of one year each commencing from the
next day after the expiry of the then current term of
appointment. All Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at least once every three years at
the annual general meeting of the Company. Their
appointments shall be reviewed by the Nomination
Committee when they are due for re-election.

Independent non-executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors are responsible to
scrutinize the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and ensuring that exercise
of the board authority is within the powers conferred to
the Board under the applicable laws, articles of association
of the Company and rules and regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, following the
resignation of Mr. Luk Chi Shing as independent non-
executive Director on 5 July 2019, the number of
independent non-executive Directors fell below the
requirement of Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, and the
number of members of Audit Committee fell below the
requirement of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

Following the appointment of Mr. Yan Hualin as an
independent non-executive Director and the chairman of
the Audit Committee on 8 July 2019, the number of
independent non-executive Directors and the number of
members of the Audit Committee meet with the
requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.21 of the Listing
Rules respectively.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive Directors in
respect of his independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board holds at least four meetings a year. The Board
convenes meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc
basis, as required by business needs. All Directors are
invited to attend the Board meetings in person or by
telephone conference.

Board papers will be given to the Board before the date of
the Board meeting by the company secretary with
reasonable time.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter, the matter will be dealt with by a
physical Board meeting rather than a written resolution.

During the reporting period, the Board held a total of
seven Board meetings.

ROLE AND FUNCTION OF THE BOARD
AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions, risk management, internal control systems and
performance and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising
its affairs. Directors make decisions objectively in the
interests of the Company.

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the
Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other
offices held by them and the Board regularly reviews the
contribution required from each Director to perform his
responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters
relating to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal
control and risk management, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the
Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and
management of the Company are delegated to the
management.
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ACCESS TO INFORMATION

All Directors have full and timely access to all the
information of the Company as well as the services and
advice from the company secretary and senior
management. The Directors may, upon request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Directors keep themselves abreast of responsibilities as a
Director and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant. Internally-
facilitated briefings for Directors will be arranged and
reading material on relevant topics will be issued to
Directors. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Directors
received training on the following areas with an emphasis
on the roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed
company in compliance with the requirement of the CG
Code on continuous professional development:
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Reading
regulatory
update or
corporate
governance
Attending related
training on or other
notifiable compliance
transaction relevant
and director’s to director’s
duties duties
REEREHD
HEBAR MHREEEERN
BF A5 R HESHIEMEE
EERENEI NHEHaERER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Jiang Jiangiang BEmirt
(resigned on 29 October 2021) (120214 10 A 29 HEHT) v
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang ANt
(resigned on 17 November 2021) (R20214F 11 A 17 HEHT) v
Mr. Xu Fanghua TRTESLE v
Mr. Liu Zhibo £ g (=Pie
(appointed on 8 July 2019) (R20194F 7 5 8 HEEZA(T) 4 v
Mr. Hua Gang W5 A4
(appointed on 8 July 2019) (R20194F 7 A 8 HEEZA(T) 4 v
Independent non-executive Directors BV FHTES
Mr. Xu Jiaming RRATE 4
Mr. Luk Chi Shing RS A
(resigned on 5 July 2019) (R20194 7 A 5 A &HT) v
Mr. Yan Hualin BREEBE ST E
(appointed on 8 July 2019) (R20194F 7 A 8 HEEZA(T) 4 v
Mr. Wu Zhongxian REBLEAE
(resigned on 21 March 2022) (202243 H21 HEHE) v

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY BEERSABECSERE

INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance RAARERHEERARBAREESTRSRE
to cover the Directors’ and officers’ risk exposure arising BARNARIEBMEENEAR ARATEFEH
out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is ZAREE o

reviewed annually.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees to
assist it in carrying out its responsibilities. All committees
have their own terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code, with the latest version adopted with effect from 28
March 2019. The full terms of reference is available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website. The
main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
in reviewing the financial information and audit plan and
relationship with external auditor, and arrangements to
enable employees of the Company to raise, in confidence,
concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, risk management, internal control or other
matters of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, three meetings
of the Audit Committee were held to review the annual
financial results in respect of the year ended 31 December
2018 and the interim financial results in respect of the six
months ended 30 June 2019 and to recommend the
appointment of external auditor of the Company. The
Audit Committee also reviewed the significant issues on
the financial reporting and compliance procedures, risk
management and internal control systems, scope of work
and re-appointment of external auditor, and arrangements
for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties. The attendance of the committee members,
namely Mr. Luk Chi Shing (Chairman) (resigned on 5 July
2019), Mr. Yan Hualin (Chairman) (appointed on 8 July
2019), Mr. Xu Jiaming and Mr. Wu Zhongxian was set out
on page 45 of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the external auditor and there was
no issue of significant importance requiring disclosure in
this annual report under the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor
without the presence of the executive Directors.
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As at the date of this CG Report, the Audit Committee
comprises four independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yan Hualin (Chairman) (appointed on 8 July
2019), Mr. Xu Jiaming, Mr. Choi Ho Yan (appointed on 29
June 2020) and Mr. Siu Siu Ling, Robert (appointed on 29
June 2020).

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code. The full terms of reference is available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website. The
primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, the remuneration policy
and structure for all Directors and senior management; and
establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no
Director or any of his/her close associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, two meetings
of the Remuneration Committee were held to review the
remuneration package of all Directors and also considered
the terms of appointment of new Directors, and other
related matters. In addition, written resolution of the
Remuneration Committee was passed to approve the
remuneration package of the newly appointed Chief
Financial Officer of the Group. The attendance of the
committee members, namely Mr. Wu Zhongxian
(Chairman), Mr. Shao Xiaogiang, Mr. Luk Chi Shing
(resigned on 5 July 2019) and Mr. Yan Hualin (appointed
on 8 July 2019) was set out on page 45 of this annual
report.

As at the date of this CG Report, the Remuneration
Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Siu Siu Ling, Robert (Chairman)
(appointed on 29 June 2020), Mr. Yan Hualin (appointed
on 8 July 2019) and Mr. Choi Ho Yan (appointed on 29
June 2020) and two executive Directors, namely Mr. Shan
Hu (appointed on 18 November 2021) and Mr. Zhang
Tianbo (appointed on 14 December 2021).

Details of the emoluments of the Directors for the year

ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code, with the latest version adopted with effect from 28
March 2019. The full terms of reference is available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website. The
principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and
formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and
appointment of Directors, making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and succession planning of
Directors, and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, two meetings
of the Nomination Committee were held to review the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board, to
assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors, to consider the qualifications of the retiring
Directors standing for election at the annual general
meeting, and to recommend the appointment of Directors.
The Nomination Committee considered that an appropriate
balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is
maintained. In addition, written resolution of the
Nomination Committee was passed to recommend the
appointment of Chief Financial Officer of the Group. The
attendance of the committee members, namely Mr. Jiang
Jiangiang (Chairman), Mr. Xu Jiaming and Mr. Wu
Zhongxian was set out on page 45 of this annual report.

As at the date of this CG Report, the Nomination
Committee comprises four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Xu Jiaming, Mr. Yan Hualin
(appointed on 8 July 2019), Mr. Choi Ho Yan (appointed
on 29 June 2020) and Mr. Siu Siu Ling, Robert (appointed
on 29 June 2020) and three executive Directors, namely
Mr. Li Xulin (Chairman) (appointed on 18 November 2021),
Mr. Shan Hu (appointed on 18 November 2021) and Mr.
Zhang Tianbo (appointed on 14 December 2021).

Corporate Governance Report
TEERBRE

REEESE

AAFEKUREZZE S  EEABESEFS
TEERSTH - BTIRAE2019F3 A28 HiRE
BN o B & E 2 ST B R A A B A9 uh I B 2 P
M- RPRZEE VT ERERIEERESE 2
B FIE B ERANEEES 2 HERF -
NEFZERETTINESSRHEEBRER
ARGHE B IERNITESE B -

REZE2019F 12 831HILFE REZESH
TMAGE BTESSHRE  RE - Al K
Lyl FHEBIERTEENBLE - BER
BREBFASZ2ENERIZEENERUERRET
EZREHERE - REZEBQRE EEEC
BEHRAEMNBEZTE N RERZEESEB
BEEAZER  BHAZAAEEZHHAE - &
BeXE (AEERLE(ERE) BRBPLERR
BEEE)NERIBERENAFIRE 458 °

RATCEEAREAY  REAZERNABEY
ERTEZ MBRBELE BEBLEE(R
2019F 7 A8 REZ(E) « (T4 (7420204F
6 A29 HEZRT) REJER £ (R 202096 A 29
AEZE)UR=ZEHITES  ITHEMEE(E
&) (R2021FE11 B18BEERE) » BRE4A (R
2021 11 B 18 BEZRT) MR AE 4 (742021
F12 A 14ABEZT) AR -

41

Annual Report 2019 —Z — AL FF R



Corporate Governance Report
EEERRE

Board Diversity

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve
and maintain diversity of the Board in order to maintain
the competitive advantage of the Company.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Company seeks
to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a
number of factors including but not limited to, gender,
age, culture, skills, experience, background and other
qualities. The differences of factors of the Director will be
taken into account in determining the optimum
composition of the Board. The ultimate selection decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates shall bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee monitors, from time to time,
the implementation of the policy, and reviews, as
appropriate, the policy to ensure the effectiveness of the
policy with the following measurable objectives throughout
the reporting period:

1. At least one-third of the member of the Board shall
be independent non-executive Directors;

2. At least one of the members of the Board shall have
qualification in accounting, financing or other
professional qualifications; and

3. At least one of the members of the Board has more
than ten years of experience in business other than
the core business of the Group.

The above measurable objectives have been met by the
Company.

Pursuant to the amended Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules
(effective from 1 January 2022), the Stock Exchange will
not regard a single gender board of directors as achieving
member diversity. As at the date of this CG Report, the
directors of the Board are all male directors, and have not
achieved diversity under the amended Rule 13.92 of the
Listing Rules. The Company will comply with the relevant
rule before 31 December 2024.

The nomination committee will monitor the

implementation of the board diversity policy from time to
time to ensure its continual effectiveness.
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Nomination Policy

The Company adopted a nomination policy (“Nomination
Policy”) which sets out, inter alia, the criteria, process and
procedures in nominating and selecting candidates to be
appointed or re-appointed as Directors. In the nomination
and selection of new Directors, the Nomination Committee
assesses the key attributes that an incoming Director
should have, based on attributes of the existing Board and
the needs of the Board. The nomination criteria include,
inter alia, diversity, business experience, board expertise,
skills, character, integrity, independency and competence.
In the nomination process, each candidate shall be
considered upon evaluation against the criteria. According
to the nomination procedure, multiple channels will be
used for identifying suitable Director candidates, including
referral from Directors, shareholders, management,
advisors of the Company and external executive search
firms. Upon compilation and interview of the list of
candidates, the potential candidates will be recommended
to the Nomination Committee and the Board for
consideration and decision.

If the candidate is nominated by the Shareholders, the
nomination and appointment shall follow the procedures
(if any) set out in the Company’s articles of association, the
Listing Rules and the Nomination Policy.

The Nomination Policy shall also be governed by other
additional and relevant requirements under the Company’s
articles of association and the Listing Rules applicable to
the nomination, appointment, election and re-election of
Directors.
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Compliance Committee

The Compliance Committee was established on 11
November 2019 and comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Xu Jiaming, Mr. Yan Hualin
and Mr. Wu Zhongxian, and two executive Directors, namely
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang and Mr. Liu Zhibo (Chairman), all being
voting members. The Compliance Committee also comprises
Mr. Lin Jiahui (ceased on 20 March 2020), the Chief
Financial Officer, as a non-voting member.

The primary functions of the Compliance Committee
include reviewing, formulating, approving and monitoring
the Group's policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, including but not limited to
reviewing the internal controls of key business operation of
the Company, arranging training and continuous
professional development for the directors, and monitoring
the corporate governance practices and functions of the
Company to ensure the Group are fully complied with the
relevant regulations and maintain the good conduct within
its Company operation.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no meeting of
the Compliance Committee was held.

Independent Board Committee

The Board has established an independent board
committee on 15 July 2020. The Independent Board
Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Choi Ho Yan (Chairman),
Mr. Yan Hualin and Mr. Siu Siu Ling, Robert.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set
out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices and make recommendations to the
Board, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Code of
Conduct and the Model Code, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS
AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and
Board Committee meetings and the general meeting of
the Company held during the year ended 31 December

2019 is set out in the table below:
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EERZEERBECHEESRTHE

HE2019F 12 A3MBIEFEERITZARRES
SREEZEeeRMNEARS LZEETHER
BREA TR

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERE EERR
Annual
General Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Name of Directors Meeting Board Committee =~ Committee =~ Committee
] RRAFAE EXe ENZEE FMzEEE REZEe
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Jiang Jiangiang Bfgmts 11+ 7 N/A N/A 22+
(Chairman) (ZF) NEA TEA
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang BB/ R s A 111 717 N/A 22 N/A
(Chief Executive Officer) (T %) TEH TEH
Mr. Xu Fanghua BRELE 11 717 N/A N/A N/A
TEA NEA TEH
Mr. Liu Zhibo £l (=bi 0/0 33 N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 8 July 2019) (R2019%7 A8 HEZ(T) T A T
Mr. Hua Gang Zf%AE 0/0 3/3 N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 8 July 2019) (R2019%7 8 HEZE) THER TER THRA
Independent Non-executive BIUFHITEES
Directors
Mr. Xu Jiaming BRPELE 7 6/7 33 N/A 2/2
NEA
Mr. Wu Zhongxian REBEEE 1 717 33 212 212
Mr. Yan Hualin RERLE 0/0 3/3 202 0/0 N/A
(appointed on 8 July 2019) (R2019%7 8 HEZ(T) i
Mr. Luk Chi Shing BEEREE ”n 23 1N 11 N/A
(resigned on 5 July 2019) (R2019% 7 A 5 HEHE) NEA
* Chairman + B

Attendances of the Directors appointed/resigned during
the year ended 31 December 2019 were made by
reference to the number of meetings held during their

respective tenures.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also
held a meeting with the independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of executive Directors

during the year.

REZE2019F 12 A B ILFEESE B EHN
EFZHEBANZZERESETHEREBITNEZ R
IREUTSE e

REHMEZSERIN TRARFRAENTE
ERETEBVIFMTEERIT - RERE
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN
RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “2019 Financial
Statements”). In preparing the 2019 Financial Statements,
the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgements and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable, and prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis.

Due to the changes of auditor of the Company in
December 2019, June 2020, November 2020 and
September 2021, the Company required additional time to
gather sufficient information for the new auditor to
perform and complete their audit procedures. As a result,
the publication of the Company’s 2019, 2020 and 2021
financial results and 2019, 2020 and 2021 annual reports
as well as 2020 and 2021 interim financial results and
interim reports were delayed, which constitute non-
compliance with Rules 13.49(1) and 13.46(1) of the Listing
Rules respectively.

The statement of the independent auditor of the
Company, BDO Limited, about its reporting responsibilities
on the 2019 Financial Statements of the Group is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 77 to 87 of
this annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid or payable to the external auditors
of the Company in respect of audit services and non-audit
services provided to the Company and its subsidiaries for
the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out as follows:

Corporate Governance Report
TEERBRE

% BB 2 A

KATFREZE2019F 12 A31 B IEFERHE TR
NEI N HME AR 2 BZRE & IEFZREE @I
BEAZ BRAD S A S B~ 2 B ENEL A a0 T

Fees Paid/Payable

et ENER

Service Category RMB’000
PR 38 5l ARETF T
Audit Services BEIZRT 8,574
Non-audit Services IET LIRS -
8,574

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Procedures have been designed for
safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or
disposition, the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publications and the compliance of
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Principles and guidelines of our risk management
framework are set for an effective and adequate approach
to be applied across the Group to manage the risks
associated with its business and operations. This
framework is designed to enhance risk management of the
Group through an integrated framework so that all
material risks faced by the Group are identified and
appropriately managed.

R B B K AR R iR

EXEeRAASENAREERABEZERG R
WA ERRR - WRBRZFAREEENRD IERE
RETEANEE  BERELRETEERBECHEINAR
WA SEM B S ERHE R E A B - WHERE
SPEFED] ~ BRA R o

ARFIEEYAREBERNRANIES - AE
BEBEEINTAEANRAEEEREAEE
REERBENER - ZEREEEE—EARER
ERMEAEENEREE  EM<ANEE#
A ZEEREMEENMEERER -
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Control Approach

Each department is responsible for identifying, assessing
and managing risks within its business, ensuring that
appropriate internal control for effective risk management
are implemented. The management is responsible for
overseeing the risk management and internal control
activities of the Group.

The Audit Committee provides independent review on
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group which prepared by the independent
consultant and gives their recommendation to the Board.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the
internal control review report and the Board is responsible
for approving policies and procedures designed by the
management.

External Consultant In Internal Control And
Risk Management

The Group also engaged an external consultant specialising
in identifying and evaluation of significant risk of our
business and operation. The external consultant does not
have any connection with the Group and the Board
believes that their involvement could enhance the
objectivity and transparency of evaluation process. In
conjunction with our staff and senior management, the
external consultant conducts an annual assessment on risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
together with suggestion and solutions and submit to the
Board for their consideration.

During the year under review, the management assisted
the Board in the implementation of the Group’s policies
and procedures within the Board’s delegation by
identifying and assessing the risks faced, and in the design,
operation and monitoring of suitable internal controls to
mitigate and control such risks. The Board conducted
reviews and discussed with the management on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems as required by code provision C.2 of the
CG Code, covering adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions and any resolutions for
material internal control defects.
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Annual Review

The risk management and internal control systems are
reviewed and assessed on an on-going basis by the Audit
Committee and the Board, and will be further reviewed
and assessed at least once each year by the Board and the
Audit Committee respectively. These systems were
considered effective and adequate.

Inside Information Policy

The Company adopted a policy and procedures on
disclosure of inside information (the “Inside Information
Policy”) setting out the Group’s procedure in handling
such information to ensure its equal and timely
dissemination to comply with the requirements under Part
XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the
Listing Rules.

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

The Group have established a system to ensure the
management and the relevant personnel have sufficient
up-to- date knowledge of relevant laws and regulations.
Under such system, the Directors and members of the
management in charge of the Group’s construction
projects shall be informed of the changes to the laws,
regulations and government policies applicable to the
Group's business and the implications thereof by email and
written notice as soon as practicable and, where the
Directors consider necessary, a briefing on such changes to
the executive Directors and members of the management
in charge of the Group’s construction projects (the
“Relevant Personnel”) shall be conducted. Moreover, the
Group will organise seminars to be attended by the
Relevant Personnel semi-annually on a compulsory basis
for each of the two full financial years after Listing
disregard whether there will be any changes to the
relevant PRC laws and regulations. Thereafter, training
session would be held when there is a change or update to
the relevant PRC laws and regulations.

In addition, the Company had engaged an external PRC
legal adviser to, among others, monitor the Group’s
compliance with the PRC laws and regulations applicable
to its business operation.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Foo Man Yee Carina (“Ms. Foo"”) of CS Legend
Corporate Services Limited, an external service provider,
was appointed as the company secretary of the Company
(the "Company Secretary”) on 1 April 2017. Ms. Foo's
primary contact person at the Company was Mr. Jiang
Jiangiang, the executive Director. Ms. Foo resigned as the
Company Secretary with effect from 1 July 2020.

Following the resignation of Ms. Foo, Mr. Pang Wai Ching
("Mr. Pang”) of Techson Management Limited, an external
service provider, was appointed as the Company Secretary
with effect from 1 July 2020 until his resignation as such
with effect from 1 February 2021. Ms. Chang Kam Lai
("Ms. Chang”) of EDM Corporate Advisory Limited, an
external service provider, was appointed as the Company
Secretary with effect from 1 February 2021 to fill the
vacancies. Mr. Pang’s primary contact person of the
Company was Mr. Jiang Jiangiang, the executive Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Ms. Foo has
attended relevant professional training to update her skills
and knowledge. She met the training requirement set out
in Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy with the
objective of achieving right balance of the amount of
dividend and the amount of profits retained in the business
for various purposes. In proposing any dividend payout,
the Company would consider, inter alia, the following
factors: (i) the Company and the Group’s actual and
expected financial performance; (ii) general business
conditions and strategies;(iii) liquidity position and future
commitment of the Group; (iv) the Group’s expected
working capital requirements and future expansion plans;
(v) shareholders’ interests; (vi) general economic conditions,
business cycle of the Group’s business and other internal
or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the
Company; and (vii) any other factors that the Board may
consider relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions

under the applicable laws and the Company’s articles of
association.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at shareholder meetings, including the election of
individual directors. All resolutions put forward at
shareholder meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to
the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after
each shareholder meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General
Meeting by Shareholders and Putting
Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Extraordinary general meetings may be convened by the
Directors on requisition of one or more shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors or the
Secretary by mail to 22nd Floor of The Toy House, No. 100
Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Directors for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one days of such deposit the Directors fail to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Furthermore, shareholders may propose a person for
election as a Director of the Company at a general
meeting, details of which are available on the website of
the Company.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.
The Company will not normally deal with verbal or
anonymous enquiries.
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Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as
mentioned above to the following:

iR
BERAFBBUATAABER EREASHRES

Address:  22nd Floor of The Toy House, No. 100 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

it : BBNERPEEREIRTESREAE 2212

Fax: (852) 3691 8124

fH :

Email: hkadmin@chinasaite.com.hk
BH

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit
and send the original duly signed written requisition,
notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the
above address and provide their full name, contact details
and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS/
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investor understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and the
investment community, and in particular, through the
Company'’s financial reports (interim and annual reports),
annual general meetings and other general meetings. At
the annual general meeting, Directors (or their delegates
as appropriate) are available to meet shareholders and
answer their enquiries.

The Company’s last annual general meeting was held on
24 May 2019. The poll results were posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange on the day of the
annual general meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
has not made any change to its articles of association. An
up-to-date version of the Company’s articles of association
is also available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

Hong Kong, 18 April 2022
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is an integrated steel structure and
prefabricated construction solution service provider. Our
integrated construction solution services are customised to
meet the technical specifications and requirements of
different projects, and span from fabrication and assembly
of steel structure parts and prefabricated construction
materials at our workshops to the installation of these
materials onsite, based on the secondary design (as to our
steel structure projects) provided by us or our customers.

The Group’s turnover is mainly derived from business
activities in the PRC. An analysis of the Group’s income for
the year is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Particulars of the Company’s major subsidiaries as at 31
December 2019 are set out in note 49 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019, including a discussion of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication
of likely future developments in the Group’s business, are
provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis set
out on pages 9 to 19 of this annual report and the Group'’s
environmental policies and performance for the year ended
31 December 2019 are set out in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report published by the Company on 21
October 2020.

Report of the Directors

ESEWRE

BEEMAZYAREEEHZ2019F12 8318 IEF
B2 REBRGEEZ AT HERE

FEER

AEBR-RGE AR NIARBIEERR
HERRGHER - RAINEERERRT RIRSE
TEREFPES  AFTATRERBNRIMRE R
2R RBEBERER  ARBRARELREHRD
—RERE (GLMABIREE M F ) RRMANEBEE
RECMAERBE T RBRBHEENE - UERS
RERZEMH  DETHFBEZA -

AEENEERTIERARTENER LS - K
KEAFRERADHE NGRS M BIREM TG -

AATTFEMBRATN20194F12 A31 BHIE
AR A IS RARMIFE49 -

FERKE

KEBEHZE2019F 12 A3THEEENEEH N
KEFIZEERMEME2AEAWERE °

EEeTEERNEE2019F12831BILFE
BIRERAY B (2018 4F « &) o

EH R

ANEBEE2019F 12831 B I FEE 2 #ERE (R
FAEEmEE 2 EBEEETMEE AR AER
¥ Alfe kR ER 2R m) SR AFRE9
ZI9OEAEMNEREBNmAoiT  MALEHZ
2019F 12 A3V HIEFE ZRBBR R RIRAH
RARBR2020F10 B21 BT MRE e
RERRE -

53

Annual Report 2019 —Z — AL FF R



Report of the Directors

ExEgE

AN ANALYSIS USING FINANCIAL KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
ended 31 December 2019 using financial performance
indicators is provided in the Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 9 to 19 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

During the year under review, as far as the Company is
aware, and save as elsewhere disclosed in this annual
report, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has
a significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements, are summarised on page
224 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of properties of the Group as at 31 December 2019
are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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ISSUE OF SHARES
Share subscription on 27 February 2019

On 27 February 2019, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with Jiangsu Kaimeng Investments
Co., Ltd.* (TERILEREBR A F]) (“Jiangsu Kaimeng”),
being an independent third party to the Group, pursuant
to which Jiangsu Kaimeng agreed to subscribe and the
Company agreed to allot and issue 260,000,000 new
ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.5 per subscription share
(the “Subscription 1”). The net subscription price was
approximately HK$0.4998 per share. The closing price of
the Company'’s share on 27 February 2019 was HK$0.43
per share. On 13 March 2019, 260,000,000 shares were
allotted and issued by the Company to Jiangsu Kaimeng at
the subscription price of HK$0.5 per share paid in cash.
The aggregate nominal value of the subscription shares is
HK$26,000,000. The gross proceeds raised was
HK$130,000,000 and the net proceeds was approximately
HK$129,950,000.

Reasons for the Subscription | were to raise additional
funding for the Group’s business operation, to strengthen
the capital base and financial position for the Group's
future business development and broaden the shareholder
base of the Company.

Share subscription on 11 July 2019

On 11 July 2019, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with Jiangsu Huami Business Management Co.,
Ltd.* (T &R ZE KB EEIEF R A A)) (“Jiangsu Huami”),
being an independent third party to the Group, pursuant
to which Jiangsu Huami agreed to subscribe and the
Company agreed to allot and issue 230,000,000 new
ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.38 per subscription
share (the “Subscription I1”). The net subscription price was
approximately HK$0.3799 per share. The closing price of
the Company’s share on 11 July 2019 was HK$0.246 per
share. On 15 August 2019, 230,000,000 shares were
allotted and issued by the Company to Jiangsu Huami at
the subscription price of HK$0.38 per share paid in cash.
The aggregate nominal value of the subscription shares is
HK$23,000,000. The gross proceeds raised was
HK$87,400,000 and the net proceeds was approximately
HK$87,380,000.

* for translation purposes only
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BRARN(NI&EX]) (AASENBIE=T7)
S RE R Bl SIEREAABSRBRAR
AE BT RRERD 0.38 8 TAE R AL 8
77230,000,000 A% 37 & @M% ([ REEIEI]) - FR
BBENAER0.3799F T - ARRIMMHIN2019F
JTAH1TT B TEASRR0.2468 7T - KR20194F
8A15H  AARIEREEERK0.38FT(AERS
) 1AL &R 5 oK e % & 8% 17 230,000,000 A% %
19 o REEPAD B9 4T E A 23,000,000/8 7 ° FTE
£ P8 FIE 4858 /5 87,400,000 7T FR8FUEF
EA# /587,380,000 7T °

* HEERSRE
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Share subscription on 12 July 2019

On 12 July 2019, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with Wenjia International Limited (3 B BB
R A7) ("Wenjia”), being an independent third party to
the Group, pursuant to which Wenijia agreed to subscribe
and the Company agreed to allot and issue 200,000,000
new ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.38 per subscription
share (the “Subscription Il1”). The net subscription price
was approximately HK$0.3799 per share. The closing price
of the Company’s share on 12 July 2019 was HK$0.249
per share. On 15 August 2019, 200,000,000 shares were
allotted and issued by the Company to Wenjia at the
subscription price of HK$0.38 per share paid in cash. The
aggregate nominal value of the subscription shares is
HK$20,000,000. The gross proceeds raised was
HK$76,000,000 and the net proceeds was approximately
HK$75,980,000.

Reasons for the Subscription Il and Subscription Ill were to
provide additional and on-time fundings with less cost of
capital and time constraint, compared to the current
capital and debt structure, which reduces cost of fundings
and bridges working capital gap between uncertain and
long fund return cycle of business projects in the PRC and
fixed maturity date from debtors, especially under the
current economic uncertainty.

Details of the Share subscriptions have been disclosed in

the Company’s announcements dated 27 February 2019,
11 July 2019 and 12 July 2019.

56

R2019F 78 12BZBR®G

R2019F7H128 - ARa|EXFREEER AT
([XRD(AAREBNBLE =1 ) L RE RS
Bl XRRERBEAQATRERAESRRE
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BEEERE
USE OF PROCEEDS FrERRIBEAR
The Company has conducted the following fund-raising RARRAFHRABAABE12EACETUATE
activities in the past 12 months preceding the date of this B -
annual report:

Remaining

Balance of Net
Proceeds as at

Allocation of Amount 31 December
Net Proceeds Utilised 2019
MN2019 5
12H31H
Fri8sIE T P8 IE S
oboadiTh EEALE HIEREE
HK’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHxT FExT
Issue of Shares on MA2019%3 A 13H
13 March 2019 BITRG
General working capital of the REREE s —MREE
Group and for the future BEe RARAEE
development of the Group's EB 2 RRER
business 129,950 129,950 Nil £
Issue of Shares on R201968H15H
15 August 2019 BTG
Repayment of certain outstanding FRRAEEREEET
financial indebtedness of the A EE I IEER
Group 163,360 163,360 Nil &
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Medium Term Bond Programme

The Company has established a medium-term bond
programme (the “Programme”) under which the
aggregate principal amount of bonds issued by the
Company and outstanding at any one time shall have
provided the Company with aggregate net proceeds not
exceeding HK$516 million.

On 11 April 2019, the Company issued HK$10 million
principal amount of 0.1 per cent bond due 2035 under the
Programme. The bond which in denomination of
HK$10,000,000 per certificate number be issued by way of
debt to professional investors.

Further details on the Programme and the bonds issued
thereunder were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 12 April 2019 and 14 November
2018.

Details of the corporate bonds issued during the year

ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 36 in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE BY THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Subordination of subrogation rights to the
bonds issued under the Programme

In connection with the Programme, the events of default
under the instrument for the bonds issued thereunder,
among others, include failure by Mr. Jiang Jiangiang, being
the controlling shareholder of the Company or any of his
associates (including but not limited to companies directly
or indirectly owned or controlled by him) to subordinate to
the bonds issued under the Programme any subrogation
rights they may have against the Company or its
subsidiaries in respect of any debts of the Company or its
subsidiaries they have paid. As such, the bonds issued
under the Programme impose, among others, a specific
performance obligation on Mr. Jiang Jiangiang as the
controlling shareholder of the Company, a breach of such
obligation will cause a default thereunder.

Further details on the Programme and the bonds issued
thereunder were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 14 November 2018, 23 November
2018, 30 November 2018 and 12 April 2019.
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ERRRABITHRESE
REZTEARTESNRUERE

FEZETEIM S - WU BITHESFXBER THELD
ZEBE(HPERE) AR RZERREREEZRELE
FEEMBEA(BRETRNAEERNBEZE
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A238 2018411 A30H k201948128 8

D -
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as disclosed below in
this report, no equity-linked agreement was entered into
by the Company during the financial year or subsisted at
the end of the financial year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, there was sufficient public float of the Company’s
securities as required under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE
OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity of this annual report. Details of
distributable reserves of the Company are set out in note
48 to the consolidated financial statements.
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EEERE
MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS TEEFREER
The percentages of sales and purchases for the year AREBETBRENBEREELAEEHEEE MEFE

attributable to the Group’s major customers and suppliers BERE Ml an T -
are as follows:

Percentage of the
total purchases/
sales accounted for

IR EE
HEEMNLA
Purchases REE
— the largest supplier — &AHER 39%
— five largest suppliers combined — AAREEREE 69%
Sales HERR
— the largest customer —HRAEP 28%
— five largest customers combined — RAAREFEE 54%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any RATIESE  HES W A (TR (&=

shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of Mo EARDTIDEITIRASY% BA ) m A e
the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's B iR AMERg SR PR AR o

issued share capital) had an interest in the five largest
suppliers or customers of the Group noted above.

At no time during the year, none of the Directors, their NERTAER > %  HSHHE A SIRE (1
close associates or shareholders (which to the knowledge BERH - BANDTDRITIRANS5% LA )
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's RN EXEN S AT P Mt Egh A T ARES o

issued share capital) had any interest in the largest
customers or suppliers disclosed above.

61

Annual Report 2019 —Z — AL FF R




Report of the Directors

ExEgE

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Xulin (Chairman) (appointed on 18 November 2021)
Mr. Shan Hu (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 18 November 2021)
Mr. Zhang Tianbo (appointed on 14 December 2021)
Mr. Xu Fanghua
Mr. Liu Zhibo (appointed on 8 July 2019)
Mr. Hua Gang (appointed on 8 July 2019)
Mr. Jiang Jiangiang (Chairman)
(resigned on 29 October 2021)
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 17 November 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xu Jiaming

Mr. Yan Hualin (appointed on 8 July 2019)

Mr. Choi Ho Yan (appointed on 29 June 2020)

Mr. Siu Siu Ling, Robert (appointed on 29 June 2020)
Mr. Wu Zhongxian (resigned on 21 March 2022)

Mr. Luk Chi Shing (resigned on 5 July 2019)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS’ CONFIRMATION

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive Directors in
respect of his independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. As at the date of this report, the Company is of the
view that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Apart from the particulars disclosed in note 47 under the
heading “Related Party Disclosures” to the consolidated
financial statements, there were no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business, to which the ultimate holding
company of the Company, any of the Company’s
subsidiaries or any subsidiaries of such ultimate holding
company was a party and in which a Director or any entity
connected with a Director (as defined in the Companies
Ordinance of Hong Kong) had, whether directly or
indirectly, a material interest subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance had been entered into between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

No contract of significance for the provision of services to
the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
entered into.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND
OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the
Group as at 31 December 2019 are set out in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO")),
as recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies (“Model Code"”), are set out below:

Long position in the shares of the Company

M2019F 12 A31H  EFHARAEBITHA
BRARE R HEMAEEE®R (X RBHFRAE
B ([ 755 R EAE &G ) BEXVEL) 2 Bfn - 187
B 15 M B % BRI B 5 M AT E K0 55 352 1§
%ﬁi$ RIATHEZBRRLZMARLE - RiRE

Tﬁ%;&ﬁ E5 R HMRESTA([1ZESF
E\JJ)%E EBAMAN T R R T2 Sk B a0
T

RAEDTRGD 2HFR

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding as at

Number of 31 December
Name of Director Nature of interest shares held 2019* Note(s)
H2019F
12A31H
FIBE A0 iR 1
EEHA ERtE igsrgvie ¢E| Bobkks  KiEE
Mr. Jiang Jiangiang Beneficial owner 42,202,000 (L) 1.40
Bt A ExnEEA
Interest of controlled Corporations 1,020,000,000 (L) 33.77 2&3
SAEEEER
Mr. Hua Gang Beneficial owner 2,580,000 (L) 0.09
=N S ExnEEA
Notes: FiaE
1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such 1. FH L RTZATREERG 2178
shares.

2. These shares are held by Keen Luck Group Limited (“Keen
Luck™), which is wholly owned by Champ Origin Limited
("Champ Origin”).

3. Champ Origin is owned as to 51% by Mr. Jiang Jiangiang and
49% by Mr. Jiang Yixuan.

4. As at 31 December 2019, the total issued capital of the
Company is 3,020,747,935 shares.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as
recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, so far as was known to the
Directors, the following persons, other than the Directors
and chief executive of the Company, had an interest or
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company, which were required to be recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO were as follows:
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B EXEr W BEES  R2019F 128318 &%
NARNBEFEBTHRAEBRERARN B S E TR
BAE (TR REBEHFRBEEMEXVED) 2G5 -
RO RESFPHERBEESF NBEKHE
2 M EARBIAETHFEZRRAMALE
SR EIZ ST BIAR T BB A AR R) B R Fr 2 48

L P IUCAS
=

hY

FTERRREMATRREG KEEE
R Ap 2 R 2 ROR

S
mp >

M2019F 12 H31H  BESFHMAM  BRESLA
RAEIFZTHABIN  TIALTHEEREBEESFR
HEGPIE 336 AR ARRBMTFERRELM
ZARRERD KRR 2 ERSORE

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding at

Number of 31 December
Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares held’ 20192  Note(s)
R20195
12A831H
YA 29 B R
BRERE MR My FERGEE" Bt FiEE
Keen Luck Group Limited Beneficial owner 1,020,000,000 (L) 33.77
(“Keen Luck”) EnlEAA
EREEGRAR (&%)
Champ Origin Limited Interest of a controlled Corporation 1,020,000,000 (L) 33.77 2
("Champ Origin”) SR L E R
BRARAR(EIR])
Ms. Zhou Xiaoying Interest of spouse 1,062,202,000 (L) 35.16 4
BA/NEZ L il B =
Mr. Jiang Yixuan Interest of a controlled corporation 1,020,000,000 (L) 33.77 2&3
BREEE SR E E A
Beneficial owner 42,202,000 (L) 1.40
EmHEEA
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding at

Number of 31 December
Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares held’ 20192 Note(s)
20195
12A31H
ML AR FE
BRERERE ME Rty FERGEE" Baotk? Mg
China Huarong International Person having a security interest 1,020,000,000 (L) 33.77 7
Holdings Limited in shares
("China Huarong”) RGO EEEFERHA LT
P EERE TR B R A
(T EIZER )
Five Seasons XIV Limited Beneficial owner 190,120,000 (L) 6.29 5&6
(“Five Seasons XIV") BEmnBEEA
Five Seasons XIV Limited
([Five Seasons XIV J)
Five Seasons XVII Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 190,120,000 (L) 6.29 5&6
(“Five Seasons XVII") S A E e A
Five Seasons XVII Limited
([Five Seasons XVIIJ)
Fullshare Holdings Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 190,120,000 (L) 6.29 5&6
(“Fullshare”) S A E A
BREIERER AR
(rel)
Mr. Ji Changqun Interest of a controlled corporation 190,120,000 (L) 6.29 5&6
TEREE XS EEER
Magnolia Wealth Interest of a controlled corporation 190,120,000 (L) 6.29 5&6
International Limited S A E A
(“Magnolia”)
Magnolia Wealth
International Limited
(TMagnolial)
Mr. Li Xiaofei Interest of controlled corporation 260,000,000 (L) 8.61 8
FEREE XS EEER
Jiangsu Kaimeng Beneficial owner 260,000,000 (L) 8.61 8

Investments Co.,Ltd*

(“Jiangsu Kaimeng")
LERE B EBR AR

(IEE D
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding at

Number of 31 December
Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares held’ 2019 Note(s)
R20195
12A31H
L4 AR RE
BRERERE ME ERME R EE" BAak?  HE
Ms. Quan Zhu Interest of controlled corporation 260,000,000 (L) 8.61 8
EX IR e RS EE R
Mr. Zhu Hong Interest of controlled corporation 230,000,000 (L) 7.61 9
KL AE S A E A
Jiangsu Huami Business Beneficial owner 230,000,000 (L) 7.61 9
Management Co., Ltd.* EmBEEA
(“Jiangsu Huami")
TEHERPEETEBR AR
([TEREXK])
Shenyang Wanjin Shiye Co., Interest of controlled corporation 230,000,000 (L) 7.61 9
Ltd.* (“Shenyang Wanjin")  S4EHAE
B REEBRAR
(MkkEER )
Shenyang Huami Shiye Co., Interest of controlled corporation 230,000,000 (L) 7.61 9
Ltd. (“Shenyang Huami") =A@
LIGEREEBR AR
(LKD)
Mr. Li Xiang Interest of controlled corporation 200,000,000 (L) 6.62 10
FHEE RS EE R
Wenjia International Limited Beneficial owner 200,000,000 (L) 6.62 10
(“Wenijia") EmlEB A
N HEERBR AR
(I3H))
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Notes:

10.

68

The letter “L" denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined

under Part XV of the SFO) in such shares.

These shares are held by Keen Luck, which is wholly owned by
Champ Origin.

Champ Origin is owned as to 51% by Mr. Jiang Jiangiang and
49% by Mr. Jiang Yixuan.

Ms. Zhou Xiaoying is the spouse of Mr. Jiang Jiangiang.

Five Seasons XVII, Fullshare, Mr. Ji Changqun and Magnolia are
deemed to be interested in the 190,120,000 shares of the
Company, as Mr. Ji Changqun holds the entire equity interest
in Magnolia, which in turn holds 44.73% equity interest in
Fullshare.

Fullshare holds the entire issued share capital of Five Seasons
XVII, and Five Seasons XVII holds the entire issued share capital
of Five Seasons XIV, the beneficial owner of the Company.

1,020,000,000 shares are legally and beneficially owned by
Keen Luck. Keen Luck is 100% owned by Champ Origin.
Champ Origin is owned as to 51% by Mr. Jiang Jiangiang and
49% by Mr. Jiang Yixuan. On 26 January 2017, Keen Luck
executed the relevant documentation to create a charge
(“Share Charge”) over 1,020,000,000 Shares in favour of China
Huarong as chargee to provide loan to Keen Luck. China
Huarong was owned by Huarong Real Estate Co., Ltd as to
88.10%. Accordingly, China Huarong is deemed to be
interested in 1,020,000,000 shares of the Company.

Jiangsu Kaimeng is owned as to 60% by Mr. Li Xiaofei and
40% by Ms. Quan Zhu.

These shares are held by Jiangsu Huami. Mr. Zhu Hong,
Shenyang Huami and Shenyang Wanjin are deemed to be
interested in the 230,000,000 shares of the Company, as Mr.
Zhu Hong holds the entire equity interest in Shenyang Huami
and Shenyang Huami holds 99% equity interest in Shenyang
Wanjin, Shenyang Wanjin holds the entire equity interest in
Jiangsu Huami.

These shares are held by Wenijia, which is wholly owned by Mr.
Li Xiang.

fiaE

REBERGOZ [FR] (EBRRE

ZERMARRFTE  MZARAERER 2 #

BEHEEZARALTERBERTRAED A HEEFS1% R
49% HEwm ©

ENRZ T B EREE 2R -

Five Seasons XVII + 2 5% « Z= 2 B /£ 4£ I Magnolia ##
RBIERZ A A1/ 190,120,000 B A5 R B 25 - 1t
Ty A ZE 8 B %k £ % BMagnoliaz 2B A% # -
Magnolia #4 255 44.73% 2 IR -

9 5% $  Five Seasons XVII &
Seasons XVIIEFB R R A E =@
EEBBITIRA -

BB BEITAR A ¢ i Five
%5 %% B A Five Seasons XIV

1,020,000,000 (R R D B EIHE AR EmFFA © Bl
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#91,020,000,000 A% % 15 A 2 o

T #R 5L B2 P 2R R
40% i ©

REEREMZEHBIHEE60% K

ZERMEIIHIRIFAE o REEE - BERRIL
5 & §5 1% 4R {E A ZK A A) /9 230,000,000 XA (5 R B
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11.  Pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, the shareholders of the
Company are required to file disclosure of interests forms (the
“DI Forms”) when certain criteria are fulfilled and the full details
of the requirements are available on the Stock Exchange's
official website. When a shareholder’s shareholdings in the
Company changes, it is not necessary to notify the Company
and the Stock Exchange unless certain criteria are fulfilled.
Therefore, substantial shareholders’ latest shareholdings in the
Company may be different to the shareholdings filed with the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The above statements of
substantial shareholders’ interests are prepared based on the
information in the relevant DI Forms received by the Company
as of 31 December 2019. The Company may not have sufficient
information on the breakdown of the relevant interests and
cannot verify the accuracy of information on the DI Forms.

12.  As at 31 December 2019, the total issued capital of the
Company is 3,020,747,935 shares.

*  for translation purposes only

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company are not aware that there is any
party who, as at 31 December 2019, had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.

There was a duplication of interest of 1,020,000,000
shares among Keen Luck, Champ Origin, China Huarong,
Mr. Jiang Yixuan and Mr. Jiang Jiangiang.

There was duplication of interest of 1,062,202,000 shares
among Mr. Jiang Jiangiang and Ms. Zhou Xiaoying.

There was duplication of interest of 190,120,000 shares
among Five Seasons XIV, Five Seasons XVII, Fullshare ,
Magnolia and Mr. Ji Changqun.

There was duplication of interest of 260,000,000 shares
among Mr. Li Xiaofei, Jiangsu Kaimeng, Ms. Quan Zhu.

There was duplication of interest of 230,000,000 shares
among Mr. Zhu Hong, Jiangsu Huami, Shenyang Wanjin
and Shenyang Huami.

There was duplication of interest of 200,000,000 shares
between Wenjia and Mr. Li Xiang.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 11 October 2013 (“Adoption Date”),
for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to
selected eligible participants for their contribution to the
Group. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the Share
Option Scheme will remain in force for ten years from the
Adoption Date.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
the following:

1.

70

any employee (whether full time or part time) of the
Group or any entity (the “Invested Entity”) in which
any member of the Group holds any shareholding
(including any executive director but excluding any
non-executive director of the Group or any Invested
Entity);

any non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Group or any Invested
Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity;

any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the
Group or any Invested Entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and

any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint
venture, business alliances or other business
arrangement to the development and growth of the
Group.
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Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
("Shares”) in issue on the date of adoption provided that
the Company may seek approval from Shareholders to
refresh such limit. Moreover, the maximum number of
Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme (and any other schemes of the
Company) shall not exceed 30% of the total number of
Shares in issue from time to time.

As at the date of this report, a total of 203,800,000 Shares
(representing approximately 6.75% of the number of
issued Shares) are available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares issuable upon exercise of
the options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group
(including both exercised and outstanding options) to each
participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company for the time
being. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to Shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
respective close associates (as defined under the Listing
Rules), are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive Directors (excluding
independent non-executive Director who is the grantee of
the options). In addition, where any grant of share options
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive Director, or to any of their respective close
associates, would result in the Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to
be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in excess of 0.1% of the
Shares in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the
closing price of the Shares at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, in a 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant, such grant of share options
are subject to Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The
exercise period for the share options granted is determined
by the Board, which period may commence from the date
of acceptance of the offer for the grant of share options
but shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the
date of the grant of the option subject to the provisions
for early termination under the Share Option Scheme.

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the Board, but shall
not be less than the highest of:

i. the closing price of Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date
of the offer of the grant, which must be a business
day;

i.  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of
the offer of grant; and

iii.  the nominal value of the Shares.

There is no minimum period for which an option granted
must be held before it can be exercised except otherwise
imposed by the Directors.

As at the year ended 31 December 2019, no share option
has been granted by the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than as disclosed in note 47 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had no related party
transactions during the year. None of the related party
transactions constituted a connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction (as defined in the Listing
Rules) that was required to be disclosed and the Company
had not entered into any connected transaction which is
subject to the disclosure requirements under the Listing
Rules.
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RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE COMPANY'S
SECURITIES

Other than as disclosed under the sections headed “Share
Option Scheme"” above, at no time during the year was
the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its ultimate holding
company, or any subsidiaries of its ultimate holding
company a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or any of their respective close
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) had any
interest in a business which competes or may compete
with the business of the Group or has any other conflict of
interest with the Group during the year and up to the date
of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s articles of association or the laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer
new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every
Director shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which he/she may incur or sustain by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of his/her duty or supposed duty in his/her office
or otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Company
has arranged appropriate liability insurance coverage for
the Directors and officers of the Group.

DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations were made by the
Group during the year (2018: Nil).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees and senior
management of the Group is set up by the Remuneration
Committee of the Company on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended and
decided by the Remuneration Committee and the Board
respectively, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, market competitiveness, individual performance
and achievement.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” of this report and note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EMPLOYEES

A review of the number of employees and the related staff
costs is provided in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on page 17 of this report. The Group ensures that
the pay levels of its employees are competitive and in line
with the market trend and its employees are rewarded on
a performance related basis within the general framework
of the Group’s salary and bonus system.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report of this
annual report.

CHANGE OF DIRECTORS’
INFORMATION

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following
confirmations from Directors, save as otherwise set out in
this report, there is no change in the information of the
Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the Company’s last
published interim report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the
requirements as set out in the Listing Rules for the
purposes of reviewing and supervising the financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control
systems of the Group.

The Audit Committee currently comprises Mr. Yan Hualin
(appointed as chairman of the Committee on 8 July 2019),
Mr. Xu Jiaming, Mr. Choi Ho Yan and Mr. Siu Siu Ling,
Robert. The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed
with the management and the external auditor financial
reporting matters including the annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2019 have been audited by
BDO Limited (“BDO")

On 27 December 2019, Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
(“Crowe") was appointed as the new auditor of the
Company to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”).
There are no disagreement between the Company and
Deloitte and there are no matter in relation to Deloitte’s
resignation that needed to be brought to the attention of
the shareholders of the Company.
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On 29 June 2020, Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited (“Ascenda
Cachet”) was appointed as the new auditor of the
Company to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of Crowe. Save as disclosed in the
announcement dated 21 June 2020, there are no other
circumstances in respect of the resignation of Crowe that
need to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of
the Company.

On 19 November 2020, McMillan Woods (Hong Kong)
CPA Limited (“McMillan Woods") was appointed as the
new auditor of the Company to fill the vacancy following
the resignation of Ascenda Cachet. Save as disclosed in the
announcement dated 19 November 2020, there are no
other circumstances in respect of the resignation of
Ascenda Cachet that need to be brought to the attention
of the shareholders of the Company.

On 11 September 2021, BDO was appointed as the new
auditor of the Company to fill the causal vacancy following
the resignation of McMillan Woods. Save as disclosed in
the announcement dated 3 June 2021, there are no other
circumstances in respect of the resignation of McMillan
Woods that need to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company.

The proposal of re-appointing BDO as the auditor of the
Company will be put forward at the coming annual
general meeting of the Company for consideration and
approval.

Save for disclosed otherwise, there has not been other

change in the auditor of the Company during the last
three years.

On behalf of the Board
Shan Hu
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 18 April 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239

B R BETRE

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
R

EEE ¢ +852 2218 8288 &5

{#H : +852 2815 2239 FEER11158

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA SAITE GROUP COMPANY
LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of China Saite Group Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set
out on pages 88 to 223, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the
matter described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion”
section of our report, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an
audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

(a)
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Authenticity of problematic loans and
guarantee contracts and related
documentation

As disclosed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, certain legal claims were filed against the
Group in relation to the Problematic Loans and
Guarantee Contracts. During the audit of the 2019
consolidated financial statements, the ex-auditors of the
Company also raised concerns in their resignation letters
to the Company over these litigations. In response, the
Board established the Independent Committee which
had engaged the Independent Adviser to conduct an
independent investigation on these Problematic Loans
and Guarantee Contracts.

As further disclosed in Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statement, during the investigation, there were
two sets of explanations and documents were obtained
by the Independent Adviser, with one set provided by a
former director of the Company and certain key finance
personnel of Jiangsu Saite Steel Structure Co., Ltd. and
Jiangsu Qifeng New Building Materials Company
Limited who already left the Group. The sources of
those documents were unidentified. Another set of
explanations and documents were based on information
obtained from the courts in the PRC. Based on the
investigation, there are significant differences identified
between the two sets of explanations and documents.

During our audit, we planned our procedures to obtain
audit evidence in respect of these Problematic Loans
and Guarantee Contracts, including those related to
resolving the significant differences identified between
the two sets of explanations and documents. However,
we were unable to obtain explanations and documents
from the Directors that we considered necessary to
satisfy ourselves as to the completeness and accuracy of
the information and documents related to Problematic
Loans and Guarantee Contracts presented to us for the
purpose of our audit; and the accuracy and
completeness of the disclosures in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in respect of financial
guarantee contracts, transactions and/or balances with
related parties, if any, in relation to the transactions,
arrangements, and/or the relevant counterparties
identified in the investigation.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(Continued)

EERTRERENER &)

(b) RERTCHEFTE

(b) Incomplete books and records

As disclosed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group encountered financial difficulties,
resulted in (1) departure without suitable replacement
of key staffs, including senior management, operating
staff of different departments, and qualified accounting
staffs and led to breakdown of administrative and
accounting functions of the Group; and (2) downsizing
of business (collectively referred to as “Business
Disruption”). The departure of senior management,
operating staff and accounting staffs resulted in
malfunction of various departments of the Group,
resulting in mishandling and loss of source documents.
As further disclosed in Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements, the findings revealed in the
investigation gave rise to the doubt about the reliability
of books and records of the Group of the current and
past years.

The Directors represented, as also disclosed in Note 3
that, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared based on incomplete books and records
available to the Group. The incomplete books and
records limited our ability to carry out the audit. We also
performed our procedures to obtain audit evidence
outside the Group but the results were not satisfactory
and there were no alternative audit procedures that we
could perform to satisfy ourselves on the above concern.
As a result, we were unable to conclude whether the
existence, completeness, accuracy, valuation and
disclosure of the assets and liabilities, as disclosed in
Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, and
therefore whether the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 have been
properly prepared in accordance with HKFRS.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(Continued)

(9]

80

Scope limitation on interests in a joint
venture and associates

As stated in Notes 20 and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has applied the equity
method to account for its investment in a joint venture
inthe PRC, IHERBERKEZRABER A 7 and
associates, JRIBEERHTER AT and RIEFERBE
T # A& B2 22 7. In applying the equity method to
prepare the consolidated financial statements, the
management obtained the financial information of
these joint venture and associates for the year ended 31
December 2019. The Group's share of the profit and
loss and net assets of these joint venture and associates
for the year ended 31 December 2019 and as at that
date included in the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out in Notes 20 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

In accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Auditing
600 (“HKSA 600") Special Considerations — Audits of
Group Financial Statements (Including the Work of
Component Auditors), the joint venture is identified as a
significant component of the Group due to its individual
financial significance to the Group. Accordingly, as part
of our audit, we shall perform an audit on the financial
information of the joint venture which is included in the
consolidated financial statements. In respect of the
associates, we planned our procedures to perform
analytical procedures on these associates in accordance
with HKSA 600.

However, we were denied access to the books and
records by the joint venture and we did not receive from
the associates the requested information that we
considered necessary to perform the analytical
procedures. As a result, the requirements of HKSA 600
have not been fulfilled. There were no other satisfactory
audit procedures that we could adopt and therefore we
were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence as to whether the carrying amount of the
Group's interests in a joint venture and associates and
the Group’s share of their results for the year as
included in the Group’'s consolidated financial
statements as at 31 December 2019 and for the year
ended were fairly stated. Consequently, we were unable
to determine whether any adjustments to these
amounts were necessary and to apply the requirements
of all of the applicable auditing standards.

EERTRERENER &)
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION EERTERNER »©

(Continued)
(d) Opening balances and corresponding (d) BANESRREEST
figures

The corresponding figures disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements are based on the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018, which were not audited
by us.

During our audit, we were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence in respect of the opening
balances as at 1 January 2019 and corresponding
figures due to the limitations mentioned in matters (a)
and (b) above. In addition, we were unable to review
the work papers of the predecessor auditor of the
Group's consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018. As a result, we were unable
to determine whether the opening balances contain
misstatements that materially affect the current period’s
financial statements and whether the corresponding
figures included in the current period’s consolidated
financial statements have been presented, in all material
respects, in accordance with the HKFRSs.

Any adjustments to the opening balances as at 1
January 2019 that would be required might have a
consequential significant effects on the Group's assets
and liabilities as at 1 January 2019 and 31 December
2019 and its results and cash flows for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2019, and the presentation and
disclosure thereof in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

RENMBHRERAMBEENEERTER B5%
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(e) Appropriateness of the use of the

82

going concern basis of accounting

As explained in Note 3(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, during the year, the Group has incurred a
loss of RMB6,091,545,000 and as at 31 December
2019, its current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB3,261,818,000. As at the same date, the Group
had cash and cash equivalents amounted to
RMB40,233,000 only. In addition, winding-up petitions
were lodged with the High Court of Hong Kong (the
“Court”) against the Company by various creditors in
pursuit of the settlement of the outstanding debts owed
to them. To deal with this situation, the Company
proposed a debt restructuring arrangement (“Scheme
of Arrangement”). These events or conditions, together
with the Business Disruption as described in Note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements, indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, and therefore, that it may be unable to
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business.

In assessing the appropriateness of the use of the going
concern basis in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements, the directors of the Company
("Directors”) have prepared a cash flow forecast (the
“Cash Flow Forecast”) covering a period exceeding 12
months from the date of approval of the consolidated
financial statements which takes into account of the
plans as set out in Note 3(b) to the consolidated
financial statements. Based on the assessment made by
the Directors, assuming the plans and measures can be
successfully implemented as scheduled, the Group is
able to continue as a going concern and it is appropriate
to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.
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(e) Appropriateness of the use of the

going concern basis of accounting
(Continued)

The appropriateness of the consolidated financial
statements prepared on a going concern basis largely
depends on whether those plans and measures as
detailed in Note 3(b) can be successfully implemented as
scheduled.

In respect of the plans that the Group would implement
including (1) Capital Injection through the issue of new
shares of the Company, and (2) the Scheme of
Arrangement. The Scheme has been approved by the
requisite majority of creditors of the Company at the
Scheme meeting on 25 February 2022, and has been
sanctioned by the High Court of Hong Kong on 11 April
2022.

Despite the restructuring effort of the Group thus far,
on 14 January 2022, the Company received a letter
from the Stock Exchange stating that the Listing
Committee of the Stock Exchange has decided to cancel
the Company'’s listing under Rule 6.01A(1) of the Listing
Rules as the Company failed to satisfy all the
Resumption Guidance by 21 December 2021 (the
“Delisting Decision”). On 21 January 2022, the
Company submitted an application requesting the
Delisting Decision be referred to the listing review
committee of the Stock Exchange for review pursuant
to Chapter 2B of the Listing Rules. The review hearing is
scheduled to be held on 19 April 2022. As the outcome
of the review hearing is unknown as at the date of this
report, there is no sufficient supportable evidence that
explains the validity of the assumption in relation to the
resumption of trading of the shares of the Company.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B M A% B R
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(e)

84

Appropriateness of the use of the
going concern basis of accounting
(Continued)

There are limitations on our scope of work as stated
above and there are no alternative audit procedures
that we can perform to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to support the above plans can be
successfully implemented, As a result, we were unable
to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence to conclude
whether the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting to prepare the consolidated financial
statements is appropriate.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying values of the Group’s assets to their
net realisable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these
adjustments have not been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements in making their
assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, the directors have considered the
Group's ability to pay off all existing loans and payables
and carry on its operations for the foreseeable future.

However, the directors have been unable to predict the
action that may be taken by the creditors, lenders and
bond holders caused by the matters disclosed in Note
3(b), or the consequential impact to the Group. In
addition, as a result of the matters disclosed in Note 3,
the directors are unable to represent that all present
and contingent liabilities or assets of the Group have
been completely identified, or that all assets recorded in
the consolidated statement of financial position are
recoverable or fairly stated. Given these circumstances,
which are more fully described in Note 3 and in the
paragraphs above, there were no practicable audit
procedures that we could perform to form an opinion
on whether management’s assessment of its ability to
continue as a going concern considers all events and
conditions which may be relevant.
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NON-COMPLIANCE WITH HKFRSs
AND OMISSION OF DOCUMENTS

As explained in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, as the consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared by the Directors based on
incomplete books and records and the Board believes it is
almost impossible and not practical to ascertain the correct
amounts. Consequently, the Directors were unable to
represent that the consolidated financial statements comply
with HKFRSs, or that the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited have been complied with. Given these circumstances,
which are more fully described in Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements, there were no practicable audit
procedures that we could perform to quantify the extent of
adjustments that might be necessary in respect of the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

DISAGREEMENT ON THE RECOGNITION
OF PROBLEMATIC LOANS AND
GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

As further explained in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, since the mid of 2019, certain legal claims were
filed against the Group in the PRC. It came to the attention of
the directors of the Company (“Directors”) that part of the
claims related to certain loans borrowed by or guarantees
provided by the Group, with the involvement of two major
operating subsidiaries, namely Jiangsu Saite Steel Structure
Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu Saite”), Jiangsu Qifeng New Building
Materials Company Limited (“Jiangsu Qifeng”), and the
Company, allegedly originated prior to 2019 that were not
recorded in the books and records of the Group (the
“Problematic Loans and Guarantee Contracts”). The Directors
determined to recognise the Problematic Loans amounting to
RMB204,617,000 (Note 38) and Guarantee Contracts
amounting to RMB53,045,000 (Note 39) as transactions
occurred on 31 December 2019. However, based on the
information available to us, the Problematic Loans and
Guarantee Contracts should have been originated in periods
prior to 2019 and been recognised in reporting periods prior
to 2019. We were unable to quantify the effects to the
current and prior periods due to the matter as stated in (b)
above.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018, were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on 28 March
2019.

DIRECTORS’ AND RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to
issue an auditor’s report. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report.

However, because of the matter described in the “Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion” section of our report, we were not
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide
a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial
statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the
“Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chow Tak Sing, Peter

Practising Certificate Number PO4659

Hong Kong, 18 April 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
MeBEmkHMEZEH KSR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 % 2019 F 12 A 31 HIEFE

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB'000
L AR¥T T ARBT T
Revenue Wzs 6 515,447 1,501,311
Cost of sales HE R AR (425,033) (1,147,488)
Gross profit EH 90,414 353,823
Other income E AU A 8a 1,953 12,890
Other gains and losses Eofth W as Jk e 18 8b (76,433) (24,708)
Impairment losses on financial and TRtk EREERERES
contract assets 10 (5,933,528) (28,519)
Selling and marketing expenses SHE REHAS (8,411) (4,027)
Administrative expenses TERF (55,975) (57,744)
Finance costs U AN 9 (99,642) (36,744)
Share of (loss)/profit of a joint venture {5 —FRI& &b
(E18) /& F 20 (1,351) 332
Share of loss of associates DG E A AlEE 21 (6,781) (1,113)
Remeasurement of financial quarantee ~ BAFSIE(R & R EHEH 2
contracts 39 (53,045) 1,200
(Loss)/profit before taxation BFiA (E18), /&R (6,142,799) 215,390
Income tax credit/(expense) Fris®iiE e, (Fx) 11 51,254 (76,378)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(E18), BT 12 (6,091,545) 139,012
Other comprehensive income HAth 2 EIRA
Items that will not be reclassified to TeEM P EEBm oA -
profit or loss:
Fair value loss on investments in equity & i@Hth 2 E W HIZ A FE
instruments at fair value through FER Z AT AIGE
other comprehensive income 2 AVEEE - (29,698)
Total comprehensive income for the year &4 YA 4258 (6,091,545) 109,314
(Losses)/earnings per share B (E518) B
— basic and diluted (RMB cents) — EAREE(ARESD) 16 (224.58) 5.96
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R 3R

At 31 December 2019 720194 12 A31H

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB’000
BsE AR¥T T ARET T
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KME 17 98,068 261,236
Prepaid lease payments A ERE 18 - 56,422
Right-of-use assets EREEE 19 33,755 -
Interest in a joint venture R—EEErEIER 20 152,892 154,243
Interests in associates NI - 2 21 2,256 7,637
Equity instruments at fair value through %@ E {h 2 W IZ A FE
other comprehensive income BIBE Z R AR T B 22 26,230 22,230
Deferred tax asset REBIEEE 23 - 40,733
313,201 542,501
Current assets REEE
Inventories VERT{ 24 47,126 10,642
Prepaid lease payments A ERE 18 - 1,329
Trade receivables EUE 58 25 194,909 1,265,749
Contract assets EREBE 26 56,204 542,105
Other receivables, deposits and HbEWIE - i2e
prepayments KIERFRIA 27 888,519 94,061
Restricted bank balances IR BRI T4 R 29 431 =
Bank balances and cash RITEHREIRS 29 40,233 856,924
1,227,422 2,770,810
Current liabilities REIEE
Trade payables & 5708 30 587,272 91,546
Other payables and accruals H b e 3R TE M EETE A 31 2,480,653 104,584
Contract liabilities ARAE 32 13,022 -
Amount due to the ultimate holding B AR A B IE
company 33 229,568 —
Amounts due to associates AR ASNGIE /S 34 2,477 3,194
Amount due to a director B —REERIE 28 446,232 =
Lease liabilities — current portion HEBE — RBHH 35 1,512 =
Corporate bonds — due within BEES — R —FREIE
one year 36 244,894 196,069
Short-term borrowings RMHER 37 199,280 4,500
Problematic loans HEER 38 204,617 -
Financial guarantee contracts B ERA R 39 53,045 -
Tax liabilities HMEAE 26,668 26,668
4,489,240 426,561
Net current (liabilities)/assets e (BR), BETE (3.261,818) 2,344,249
Total assets less current liabilities BMEERRBEE (2,948,617) 2,886,750
89
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mE MBI R

At 31 December 2019 20194 12 A31H

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE AR¥T AREFIT
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRTBEE 23 - 92,116
Lease liabilities — non-current portion ~ FAE& & — IEREZ 35 1,237 =
Corporate bonds — due after one year 1¥E&%5 — RN —F&EH 36 246,960 162,163
248,197 254,279
Net (liabilities)/assets (AR BEFHE (3,196,814) 2,632,471
Capital and reserves EAXNHE
Share capital %N 40 249,103 187,410
Reserves FHiE (3,445,917) 2,445,061
Total (deficit)/equity (BAL) HEz B R (3,196,814) 2,632,471

The consolidated financial statements on pages 88 to 223
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 18 April 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Shan Hu
BER
Director

EF
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RR1E

Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %= 2019 F 12 A 31 HILFE

Retained
profits/
Share Share Capital FvToC Statutory (accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
BREMEE
WREDTFE RERR|/
R& By ERfifE SRR AERE  (REER) Azt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETR ARBTr ARETR ARETT  ARETR
(Note a) (Note b) (Note c)
(Fitsta) (fffzED) (Fitito)
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1R 187,410 511,515 66,587 = 170,684 1,586,961 2,523,157
Profit for the year FRER - - - - - 139,012 139,012
Other comprehensive expense  ERE M 2R
for the year - - - (29,698) - - (29,698)
Total comprehensive income ~ FRZFEWALE
for the year - - - (29,698) - 139,012 109,314
Transfer to statutory reserve LT RE - - - - 36,154 (36,154) -
At 31 December 2018 M2018% 124318 187,410 511,515 66,587 (29,698) 206,338 1,689,819 2,632,471
Loss and total comprehensive  FRBER2ERS 8
expense for the year - - - - - (6,091,545)  (6,091,545)
Issue of shares (Note 40) B{TiRdn (£ 40) 61,693 200,567 - - - - 262,260
At 31 December 2019 M2019% 12831 R 249,103 712,082 66,587 (29,698) 206,838 (4,401,726)  (3,196,814)
Notes: B 5T -
(a) Capital reserve represents (a) BAREEE
(i) waiver of amount due to former immediate holding (i) = FEN AT E R AT 2 208

()

company;

(ii) the difference between the nominal value of shares of China
Saite Group Company Limited (the “Company”) issued as
consideration in exchange for the aggregate of the share
capital of the subsidiaries of the Company arising upon the
corporate reorganisation (the “Corporate Reorganisation”)
to rationalise the Group’s structure prior to listing of the
Company’s shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”); and

(iii) capital contribution from shareholders under the Corporate
Reorganisation.

The fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")
reserve represents cumulative gains and losses arising on the
revaluation of equity instruments at FVTOCI that have been
recognised in other comprehensive income. The cumulative gain or
loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will continue to be held in the FVTOCI reserve.

The statutory reserves represent the amount transferred from net
profit for the year of subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") (based on the PRC statutory financial
statements of those PRC subsidiaries) in accordance with the
relevant PRC laws until the statutory reserves reach 50% of the
registered capital of the subsidiaries. The statutory reserves cannot
be reduced except either in setting off the accumulated losses or
increasing capital.

(b)

(i) FEBSEEARAR(AAR)ETERKE
MENEEERARBRONEEHARZMAE
BRAR ([BE2FT ) L AT A B AL AEE AR
BT ZARER(RREMEEZARRF
MBS AR AR ER R

(i)  BRERBEARBAELHAEE o

BBEMEEMKRZAFEFIR (BB M2 KRR
RFEFIR]D REEEGERECE2ERERRZEER
Hi 2w Raie A FEIIR s TAMELSN R
mREE - 2sHRERBRE BN D BEHERAR
ErEH UHEERNEBEMEEKREATEIR
BHETHE -

EERBIEARTEARLNE ([ E])RIEERESE
SERRPRSLEO M R R A AR (B % B E AR
REDEEM IR BENRIA - EEZTAERBER
AP B R R & ANH) 50% A LE © ZEEE R E T A
B MR DA S R AT RS IR B A RIRRSD -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 3% 2019 F 12 A 31 HIEFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Bank interest income

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Effect of modification of corporate
bonds

Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments

Remeasurement of financial
guarantee contracts

Impairment losses on financial
and contract assets

Finance costs

Exchange differences on short-term
borrowings and corporate bonds

Share of loss/(profit) of a joint venture

Share of loss of associates

Write-off of property, plant and
equipment

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment, net

RETHELENRESRE
BB (B51R), & A
BT IHE A
RITHS WA
ME - BERRBTE

EREEENE
EREFERNTE

T E & SR i
MBERARERTE
TRk EREERERR

FATER AR
RHMERREEESFNENZ8R

AMEEEREEE(BF)
DIEEE R RER

HEME - BFERREEIRFE

2019
2019 &

RMB’000
AR®BT T

(6,142,799)

(42)

6,995
1,817

(3,152)

53,045

5,933,528
99,642

308
1,351
6,781

75,574

2018
20184
RMB’000
ARET T

215,390

(4,058)

16,830

1,414
(1,200)

28,519
36,744

27,670

(332)
1,113

25
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %= 2019 F 12 A 31 HILFE

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Operating cash flows before EEESRBINCERERE
working capital changes 33,048 322,115
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets AREERD, (M) 532,984 (174,918)
Increase in inventories FEHEM (36,484) (10,642)
Increase in trade receivables FEWE 5 FRIEE N (583,731) (56,134)
(Increase)/decrease in other HAbEWGRIA « Ze Rk
receivables, deposits and BRI\ GEm), SR
prepayments (4,772,918) 26,972
Increase in restricted bank balances Z R HIHRTT AR (431) =
Increase in contract liabilities A RIAEEMN 13,022 -
Increase in trade payables FERTE 5 5/ IEE N 495,726 22,793
Increase in other payables and F At A5 SR IE I FE 51 B A AN
accruals 2,376,069 8,086
Cash (used in)/generated from BEEE (TR, EEXNEE
operations (1,942,715) 138,272
PRC income tax paid BT B ATSH (129) (89,567)
NET CASH (USED IN)/FROM REER (A, BEENRESFH
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (1,942,844) 48,705
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHELENRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Advance to a director —BEEFERNR - (136,732)
Purchases of property, BEME - BE&&E
plant and equipment (55,870) (57,964)
Investments in associates REEE N AIHIRE (1,400) (8,550)
Prepaid lease payments paid BB EERIE - (821)
Repayment from a director —BEEMENIA - 119,102
Interest received B FIE 42 4,058
Acquisition of equity investment U B AR AR A (4,000) -
Proceeds from disposal of equity & IR A& BT 1S 50E
investments - 2,000
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REZHAANRSFE
ACTIVITIES (61,228) (78,907)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 3% 2019 F 12 A 31 HIEFE

2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RETHELENRSRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of corporate BITEEBESFASRIE
bonds 630,430 305,505
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BT BRATISE 262,260 =
New short-term borrowings raised ESEHER 194,780 4,500
Advance from a director —RESBR 446,232 =
(Repayment to)/advance from an (m—FHEERARER),
associate — A B & 2 R B (717) 2,994
Advance from the ultimate holding EREIERR N BB
company 229,568 -
Repayment of corporate bonds BEMEES (512,001) (85,011)
Repayment of short-term borrowings BEREIHER - (47,505)
Finance costs paid EANEUR I (81,605) (31,955)
Repayment of principal portion of BEHEEEEAEHD
lease liabilities (212) -
NET CASH FROM FINANCING RETHELENRESFE
ACTIVITIES 1,168,735 148,528
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN REeRBEEEYORD)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS b opiip=ed-c] (835,337) 118,326
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHNRERAESEEY
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 856,924 748,824
EFFECT OF IMPAIRMENT LOSSES RITHEBRHEBESE
ON BANK BALANCES 18,646 (10,226)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRATRREEEY
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 40,233 856,924
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF REeERASEEYNERIN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash IRTTHER NI E 40,233 856,924
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1.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

China Saite Group Company Limited (“the Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability.
Its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“The Stock
Exchange”). The address of its registered office is 22nd
Floor of The Toy House, No.100 Canton Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong, which is also its
principal place of business. The Company acts as an
investment holding company. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries are investment holding and construction
of steel structure and prefabricated construction
projects.

The Company’s parent is Keen Luck Group Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong) and the directors consider
its ultimate parent is Champ Origin Limited
(incorporated in the British Virgin Islands).

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

HKFRS 16 Leases
HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

RE R
31 December 2019 2019512 H31H
—RER

FEESEEAR AR ([ARAF]) A —EREF
ERSFMAINEREBRAR - MR
%%%éx%%ﬁ@@ﬁ@%i%ﬂiﬁi

c HfiEm Rk E S EE Ut AR B NEE
%»@ﬁ%éumﬁ CESBAE22HE - AR
AIAREZERAR - ENBARNEZELA
BB P N il 4 K 2 R TE R (2SR TE B
ML o

ARBNBRARAEREBRERAR (RER
AR REERSEZEB AR AERE
IRAR (REE R LR S ML) °

(a) RMHE BBV BR
255

ERRBRERANE 65 HE
e (EARMBRERE MAEHEEZ
ZEg)-RBF2B%  THEEH

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 23,

Borrowing Costs

Amendments to HKAS 12,

Income Taxes

Prepayment Features
with Negative
Compensation

Long-term Interests in
Associates and
Joint Ventures

BB R EbesEl
20154 % 2017 A H F23% (BFIA)
ZEENE BB

BB R EbesEl
20154 % 2017 A H F12% (BFIA)
ZEENE g

EERBHREENFER AAERHED
CHEN) RATEFSIE

BB G ERE 285 REEE AR R
CHEN) BEDEN

Riks
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fade)

BRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG

96

FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

(Continued)

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases
has been summarised below. The other new or
amended HKFRSs that are effective from 1
January 2019 did not have any a material impact
on the Group’s results and financial position for
the current or prior period. The Group has not
early applied any new or amended HKFRSs that is
not yet effective for the current accounting
period.

HKFRS 16, Leases

Effective 1 January 2019, HKFRS 16 has replaced
HKAS 17 “Leases”, HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 4
"Determining whether an Arrangement Contains
a Lease”, HK(SIC) Interpretation 15 “Operating
Leases-Incentives” and HK(SIC) Interpretation 27
“Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease”.

HKFRS 16 provides a single lessee accounting
model, requiring the recognition of assets and
liabilities for all leases, together with options to
exclude leases where the lease term is 12 months
or less, or where the underlying asset is of low
value. HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the
lessor accounting in HKAS 17, with the distinction
between operating leases and finance leases
being retained.

T»K%W%ﬁ% /..‘5%1! A ERMBR

HNBE BV BREENE16REENT
ZER T - Kb B20195F1 A1
BRAEBBISEETEBHBRE
A BI| 37 48 39 7K £ (8 72K HA i 5 B 1 B A9
EERUBRREXNTMNEATE - K
SEWERERER TR HIE M

ﬂiéE)dIE']%ﬁ uTjZ%&f; nTE/%ﬂﬁi‘%i&%ﬁ
A o

BB RS EAFE 165 —HE

H2019F 1 A1 B EEHEHREE
B 165 E MR BB EAIFE 1755
g A (ERVBREZREZES)R
BEAY [ ECLHRERERE] &
B(ERREZE )R EEI155 (£
HE — EBR] REB(CEAREZES)
REFE2VRE[FESLRBEEEFAR
BHLZAR] e

EBTEHME LD F 165 IR E — &AM
ASHEEER  EXBRAEHEZ
BERAE RTREAHA12EAK
LTS EERREERE ZEERE -
ERETBRELENF16HEARELEE
BEFERFI1I7R 2 EHBASFEE
o BERSIKEHERBERS -
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

Transition Method and Practical
Expedients Utilised

The Group adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach, with recognition of
transitional adjustments on the date of initial
application (i.e. 1 January 2019), without
restatement of comparative figures. The Group
elected to apply the practical expedient to not
reassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease
at the date of initial application. Contracts
entered into before the transition date that were
not identified as leases under HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 4 and HK(SIC)
Interpretation 27 were not reassessed. The
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 was applied
only to contracts entered into or changed on or
after 1 January 2019.

HKFRS 16 provides for certain optional practical
expedients, including those related to the initial
adoption of the standard. The Group applied the
following practical expedients when applying
HKFRS 16 to leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17:

(@  Apply a single discount rate to a portfolio
of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics;

(b) Exclude initial direct costs from the
measurement of right-of-use assets at the
date of initial application for leases where
the right-of-use asset was determined as if
HKFRS 16 had been applied since the
commencement date;

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. &
Bt

(a)

#h
%

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

B EREED(HE
HER ) ®)

RANFETR] S RIERT BB M B R

HER(E)

BB FHREERAE 1659 — HE
ERAZBETNENERERET A

AEBHBLET B ERNE B
wEERFE 165 - RYLRERB A (A
20194F1 A1 B) ERIEEFHE - MiLE
BILRET - RYIXERBE A%
EEEEAERRES AMIESHTE
ARAREGATNERRETREEHE - NB
EHHRIRBEE A ENE1TRRSE
B (BB ERERBEES)RESS
GREE(ERREZES)RES27THR
WEBNABEZBI VAR EEH
B o BB mERERE 165 TH
ENTEEEFEAN2019F1 41852
BRI ERAR o

TEMBEHREENFE 165RIRMHE TEE
MERRETE  BREARIIKRMNE
B JT% - AEBETHRIEF A S
ERFE 7RI BRKLEHENHERER
BEMBHREENE16RRERAUTE
BIEETIE

() HABARELSENEEEAR
EER TR

() MWEAREECEETE NIUIRE
RHEE A MG EEREEER S
REZERANBERTES) - AN E RS
BHREENF 1652 NG B
R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fade)

BRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG

98

FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

(Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

Transition Method and Practical
Expedients Utilised (Continued)

(0 Reliance on previous assessments on
whether leases are onerous as opposed to
preparing an impairment review under
HKAS 36 as at the date of initial
application; and

(d)  Applied the exemption not to recognise
right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases
with less than 12 months of lease term
remaining as of the date of initial
application.

As a lessee, the Group previously classified leases
as operating or finance leases based on its
assessment of whether the lease transferred
substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership. Under HKFRS 16, the Group
recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for most leases. However, the Group has elected
not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for some leases of low value assets
based on the value of the underlying asset when
new or for short-term leases with a lease term of
12 months or less. As a lessor, in accordance with
the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16, the Group
is not required to make any adjustment on
transition for leases in which the Group is a lessor
but account for these leases in accordance with
HKFRS 16 from the date of initial application and
comparative information has not been restated.

RMFE]RIETEBHBER

EAEH| (42)

A=A

A B EAE 165 — FE
(4

m=

\/

ET?K?HZL/F??/ZE& /T\fk%ﬁ/zg

(0 fEREEMEANEERS HREERN
AHETIER VIR ER B IR ERE
SR ERIE IR ETRERR
)53

(d) BEEZEVIRERBBARGHESHE
RNREANEEREBNET T 1#
REFAREERARE -

ERABA - REFGHESST KA
B LR K PR R R SR KRRy R - K
SEERFHES AR EIRERE -
REBERGERELENFE 165 - AEH
RABOHEERERAREEREER
o A AEBESEETRIEH A
MEEMNBENSIEEEEEHERX
FAAE RS 1218 A A T #9 22 HITE S FERR
EREEERMEAFBE FREBEA -
RIBE B H S ERF 16 AERE
R AEEEARAKEESLBEA
MAEENEERELTMNEE BEY)
RERBHE  NEBEEREFEMH
BEEUF 16 RHRFHELETAR
i B LA KL o
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)
The following table presents the impact of

adopting HKFRS 16 on the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 1 January

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

Z.Rmﬁﬁjﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ
BE|EER ) @)

() IRMFET RIETEBYBR

A (F)

BB &

(%)

EAIFE 165 — HHE

TRIISRAE S B RS EE 165
201991718 HEAHBHARD

2019:
At At
31 December Effect of 1 January
2018 under adoption of 2019 under
HKAS 17 HKFRS 16 HKFRS 16
#2018 F R2019 %
12 A 31 B Ri& REE 1818 R%E
R EER B %5 % 5 ZE Al BBV BRE
F175%  E16HHKE ZRIZE 165
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT AREBT T ARETT
Assets BE
Right-of-use assets EREEE - 62,470 62,470
Prepaid lease payment —  JEIFEEFHIE —
non-current portion FERBEL D 56,422 (56,422) -
Prepaid lease payment —  FAMFAEFKIE —
current portion Nk ki va) 1,329 (1,329) =
Liabilities =N
Lease liabilities HEBRE = (4,719) (4,719)
Equity =
Retained profits RE &R 1,586,961 - 1,586,961
929
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the
Group has applied incremental borrowing rates of
the relevant group entities at the date of initial
application. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rate applied is 9.41%. The following
table reconciles the operating lease commitments
disclosed in the Group’s 31 December 2018
annual financial statements to the amount of
lease liabilities recognised on 1 January 2019:

2|

PR

BEREMBREER(HE
MRS g

() IRMFET RIETEBYBR

&AER ()
TR HERAE 165 — HE
()

RERECHFERACERENHEEZHR
ERER  AEEERBYIAERBH
HRESEEEENISSERFE - FTHEA
B DNAE I EERMERIA1% - T
RENRANEH 201851 A1 BEEHMH
RERWE ELHEREFAHERN 2019
F1 A1 BERZHEREHE

RMB’000
ARBT T
Operating lease commitments as at 20184 12 A 31 B 2 & &R EHEE
31 December 2018 9,813
Less: short-term leases not recognised under o IR E S SR EERE 1658
HKFRS 16 REER 2 FEHHE (4,563)
Undiscounted lease payments ARITIREE IR 5,250
Less: effect of discounting using the incremental & : {# B %X & B B Hi1g £ £ 3
borrowing rate as at the date of initial FERPFTIE AT E
application (531)
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 MR2019F 1 A1HZHEERE 4,719

100

China Saite Group Company Limited - B4 & E AR A 7



2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BN EBUKBREERN(ER
MW EERD ) &)

(@) W]

HRA ()

A=A

BT ERY R

BRI L EAIE 169 — HE
(#)

MR2019F1A1BEERERBEEZER

own use as at 1 January 2019 comprises the HEBEATEIA :
following:
RMB’000
ARBT T
Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases A EREBMEHREELIE 165714
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 HREECEEECFREEE 4,719
Reclassified from prepaid lease payments BRENHEERBEFHHHE 57,751
Right-of-use assets as at 1 January 2019 R2019F 1 A1 B2 EREEE 62,470

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal
to the related lease liabilities, and adjusted by any
prepaid or accrued lease payments by applying
HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Upfront payments
for leasehold lands in the PRC for own used
properties were classified as prepaid lease
payments as at 31 December 2018. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the current and non-
current portion of prepaid lease payments
amounting to RMB1,329,000 and
RMB56,422,000 respectively were reclassified to
right-of-use assets.

R2019F 1818 A5ERRATEES
BENERAHATEEGESENFERESR
E UKERBEBSMBE®ELENZE 6.
C8(b)(ii) 5% 1B = st AE R TE (- sk R T A & 1+
RIEHFAE - RPBEAEE BYWENE
E A TR IR 20184 12 A31H
BRAEBNAENT - RERBEEVS
WMEEBIFE 16918 SEAIRNAARK
1,329,000 7T & A K ¥ 56,422,000 JLHYTE
NEENFNRE LRIERBED EFHH
HAFRERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG

102

FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have

been issued but are not yet
effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group. The
Group’s current intention is to apply these
changes on the date they become effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material'

and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform!

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
HK Interpretation 5 (2020),
Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand
Clause’

Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use®

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Reform — Phase 2°

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
and HKFRS Practice Policies’
Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting

Estimate’

2.

RAEBHEREERN(FB
MR EER ) &)

(b) BB & R &2 HET
BRI BB REER

7 88 [ 4R R4 T 51U 2 4B L 1 o
A 7 BL T LA 9 I 0 B 75 9 R AL
BE] R BB B o A%
HEAAER LS RD A RE B EAA
CEUR

BERRBREEANE IR
CCHEN)
EREERE1RREE EXEE
SRR 85 (BT )
ERUBREEIFEN - MEEELFE
BERGTRAEINRR

FHER'

BB B 8|
EVEACHEY)

ERMBRELERNFE 105 REEZLEERE
REBCHELFE 28 AR ARLE
CHES) ZHEREENS

S
BB ERE 15 HEEIBARD
(1B5TA) EE N
BERREST
(2020%) -
B3R M5 3R
— ERAHE
BREREE
G E T B E R
Sopr sl
BEREGTAERE 165 B{ERE BRI

(fE&Tx) SRS

ERMBRERIFEIF - MEREENE
ERGTREAER - — BRERS
BEAMBHREEETS
BERRBREEANE 4R
RERHBEREEA
#1658 (BFTA)

BRGTEUR1HRR S HRNEE
ERBBREENES
ACEVEACHES)

BERGTREAFSH
CCHEN)

SrthTMER’
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG 2. RMBEBUBKBREER(ES
FINANCIAL REPORTING B &R EZER |) ()

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

(b) BB R &M ZHET R
BRI ERMB|E R (4

miu
E

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to EFesERE 125 HE—QXHELH
Assets and Liabilities arising (1B5TA) EERBEER
from a Single Transaction’ HRIEN IR

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of B e ERE 375 BEYEER —E
Fulfilling a Contract® CHEY IE R BARS

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent BRI HREENE 165 COVID-19487
Concessions? CHEY HER5?

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent ERPEREERE 165 2021 F 21&HK
Concessions beyond 2021 CHEY COVID-19 48

Meme
Reference to the Conceptual BEREMBREEAEIR  HERMS[LS
Framework® CHES)

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Annual Improvementsto  Amendment to HKFRS 15 BB B E 2R BRI ERE
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle 2018 F & 2020 F A H] 2RI 1 5%
i 2 Uk CHEE
Annual Improvementsto  Amendment to HKFRS 9, BB B 2R Ry e
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle  Financial Instruments® 2018 F 2 2020 F1EH FIRUEETA) -
i) 2 BUE SRITAS
Annual Improvementsto  Amendment to illustrative BB B 2R Ry e
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle  examples accompanying 2018 % 2020 FiAH F16%5  HE
HKFRS 16, Leases® HOF BE R SRR 1L 1
CHEE

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
June 2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
April 2021.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022.

Effective for business combinations for which the
date of acquisition is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

The amendments shall be applied prospectively to
the sale or contribution of assets occurring in annual
periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
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REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG

104

FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have

been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition of
a Business

The amendments clarify that a business must
include, as a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs, together with
providing extensive guidance on what is meant by
a “substantive process”.

Additionally, the amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are
capable of replacing any missing inputs or
processes and continuing to produce outputs,
whilst narrowing the definition of “outputs” and
a "business” to focus on returns from selling
goods and services to customers, rather than on
cost reductions.

An optional concentration test has also been
added that permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is
not a business.

The directors of the Company are currently
assessing the impact that the application of the
amendments will have on the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG 2. BN EBUKBREERN(ER

FINANCIAL REPORTING MR EZER ) (&)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have (b) CEMEERERZHFHT &

been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
— Definition of Material

The amendments clarify the definition and
explanation of “material”, aligning the definition
across all HKFRS and the Conceptual Framework,
and incorporating supporting requirements in
HKAS 1 into the definition.

The directors of the Company are currently
assessing the impact that the application of the
amendments will have on the consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7 — Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

The amendments modify some specific hedge
accounting requirements to provide relief from
potential effects of the uncertainties caused by
interest rate benchmark reform. In addition, the
amendments require companies to provide
additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected
by these uncertainties.

The directors of the Company are currently
assessing the impact that the application of the
amendments will have on the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
— Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or
losses to be recognised when an entity sells or
contributes assets to its associate or joint venture.
When the transaction involves a business the gain
or loss is recognised in full, conversely when the
transaction involves assets that do not constitute
a business the gain or loss is recognised only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in
the joint venture or associate.

The directors of the Company are currently
assessing the impact that the application of the
amendments will have on the consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
HK Interpretation 5 (2020), Presentation
of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current is based on
rights that are in existence at the end of the
reporting period, specify that classification is
unaffected by expectations about whether an
entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of
a liability and explain that rights are in existence if
covenants are complied with at the end of the
reporting period. The amendments also introduce
a definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that
settlement refers to the transfer to the
counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other
assets or services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. BN EBUKBREERN(ER
MW EERD ) &)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have

been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
HK Interpretation 5 (2020), Presentation
of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
(Continued)

HK Int 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence of
the Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August
2020. The revision to HK Int 5 (2020) updates the
wordings in the interpretation to align with the
Amendments to HKAS 1 with no change in
conclusion and do not change the existing
requirements.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments and
revision in the future will have an impact on the
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds
before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while
bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Instead, the
proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of
producing those items, is recognised in profit or
loss.

The directors of the Company are currently
assessing the impact that the application of the
amendments will have on the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG

108

FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have

been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect
financial reporting when a company replaces the
old interest rate benchmark with an alternative
benchmark rate as a result of the interest rate
benchmark reform (the “Reform”). The
amendments complement those issued in
November 2019 and relate to (a) changes to
contractual cash flows in which an entity will not
have to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount
of financial instruments for changes required by
the Reform, but will instead update the effective
interest rate to reflect the change to the
alternative benchmark rate; (b) hedge accounting
in which an entity will not have to discontinue its
hedge accounting solely because it makes
changes required by the Reform, if the hedge
meets other hedge accounting criteria; and (c)
disclosures in which an entity will be required to
disclose information about new risks arising from
the Reform and how it manages the transition to
alternative benchmark rates.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments in the
future will have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2, Disclosures of
Accounting Policies

The amendments to HKAS 1 require companies to
disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant
accounting policies. The amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide guidance on how to
apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments in the
future will have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8, Disclosures of
Accounting Estimates

The amendments clarify how companies should
distinguish changes in accounting policies from
changes in accounting estimates. That distinction
is important because changes in accounting
estimates are applied prospectively only to future
transactions and other future events, but changes
in accounting policies are generally also applied
retrospectively to past transactions and other past
events.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments in the
future will have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG

110

FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have

been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax
related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction

The amendments clarify whether the initial
recognition exemption applies to certain
transactions that often result in both an asset and
a liability being recognised simultaneously. Such
instances might include the initial recognition of
leases from the perspective of a lessee or asset
retirement obligations (AROs)/decommissioning
liabilities.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments in the
future will have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous
Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of
fulfilling” a contract comprises the ‘costs that
relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate
directly to a contract can either be incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g. direct labour
and materials) or an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling contracts (e.g. the
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling
the contract).

The directors of the Company are currently
assessing the impact that the application of the
amendments will have on the consolidated
financial statements. The directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of the
amendments will likely have an impact on the
Group's accounting policies in respect of the
determination of when contracts are onerous,
and the measurement of provision for onerous
contracts recognised.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have

been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-
Related Rent Concessions

HKFRS 16 was amended to provide a practical
expedient to lessees in accounting for rent
concessions arising as a result of the COVID-19
pandemic, by including an additional practical
expedient in HKFRS 16 that permits entities to
elect not to account for rent concessions as
modifications. The practical expedient applies only
to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of COVID-19 pandemic and only if
all of the following criteria are satisfied:

(@  the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

(b)  the reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30
June 2021; and

(©  there is no substantive change to other
terms and conditions of the lease.

Rent concessions that satisfy these criteria may be
accounted for in accordance with this practical
expedient, which means the lessee does not need
to assess whether the rent concession meets the
definition of lease modification. Lessees shall
apply other requirements of HKFRS 16 in
accounting for the rent concession.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-
Related Rent Concessions (Continued)

Accounting for rent concessions as lease
modifications would have resulted in the Group
remeasuring the lease liability to reflect the
revised consideration using a revised discount
rate, with the effect of the change in the lease
liability recorded against the right-of-use asset. By
applying the practical expedient, the Group is not
required to determine a revised discount rate and
the effect of the change in the lease liability is
reflected in profit or loss in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the rent
concession occurs.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments in the
future will have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-
Related Rent Concessions beyond 2021

The amendment extends the practical expedient
available to lessees in accounting for COVID-19
related rent concessions by one year. The
reduction in lease payments could only affect
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021 is extended to 30 June 2022. The
amendment is effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021, with
earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments in the
future will have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG 2. RMBEBUBKBREER(ES
FINANCIAL REPORTING BRESREZER ) &)

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have

been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to
the Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers
to the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in
2010. The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a
requirement that, for obligations within the scope
of HKAS 37, an acquirer applies HKAS 37 to
determine whether at the acquisition date a
present obligation exists as a result of past events.
For a levy that would be within the scope of
HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 21, Levies, the acquirer
applies HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 21 to determine
whether the obligating event that gives rise to a
liability to pay the levy has occurred by the
acquisition date. The amendments also add an
explicit statement that an acquirer does not
recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments in the
future will have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-
2020 Cycle, Amendment to HKFRS 1

The annual improvements permit a subsidiary that
applies paragraph D16(a) of HKFRS 1 to measure
cumulative translation differences using the
amounts reported by its parent, based on the
parent’s date of transition to HKFRSs.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments in the
future will have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-
2020 Cycle, Amendment to HKFRS 9,
Financial Instruments

The annual improvements amend a number of
standards, including HKFRS 9, Financial
Instruments, which clarify the fees included in the
10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9
in assessing whether to derecognise a financial
liability, explaining that only fees paid or received
between the entity and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the entity or the lender
on other’s behalf are included.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments in the
future will have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-
2020 Cycle, Amendment to illustrative
examples accompanying HKFRS 16, Leases

The annual improvements amend a number of
standards, including HKFRS 16, Leases, which
amend lllustrative Example 13 to remove the
illustration of reimbursement of leasehold
improvements by the lessor in order to resolve
any potential confusion regarding the treatment
of lease incentives that might arise because of
how lease incentives are illustrated in that
example.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments in the
future will have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements as at and for the
year ended 31 December 2019 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”).

Since the mid of 2019, certain legal claims were filed
against the Group in the PRC. It came to the attention
of the directors of the Company (“Directors”) that part
of the claims related to certain loans borrowed by or
guarantees provided by the Group, with the
involvement of two major operating subsidiaries, namely
Jiangsu Saite Steel Structure Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu Saite”),
Jiangsu Qifeng New Building Materials Company
Limited (“Jiangsu Qifeng”), and the Company, allegedly
originated prior to 2019 that were not recorded in the
books and records of the Group (the “Problematic
Loans and Guarantee Contracts”). In addition, legal
claims were noted by business partners, which resulted
in loss of business opportunities.

Besides, the Group encountered financial difficulties,
resulted in (1) departure without suitable replacement
of key staff, including senior management, operating
staff of different departments, and qualified accounting
staff and led to breakdown of administrative and
accounting functions of the Group; and (2) downsizing
of business (collectively referred to as “Business
Disruption”).

The departure of senior management, operating staff
and accounting staff resulted in malfunction of various
departments of the Group, resulting in mishandling and
loss of source documents and transaction records.

Despite the Business Disruption, the Group strived to
retrieve the information and documents necessary for
the maintenance of proper books and records and the
preparation of 2019 consolidated financial statements,
including contacting counterparties outside the Group
such as customers, suppliers, but the Group’s effort
failed in vain. The Group has also tried to obtain bank
statements for the period from the banks and contact
bond holders through lawyers.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

3.

116

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

During the audit of the 2019 consolidated financial
statements, the ex-auditors of the Company also raised
concerns in their resignation letters to the Company
over litigations in relation to the Problematic Loans and
Guarantee Contracts that the Group has been involved.
In the interest of the Company, its shareholders and
bonds holders as a whole, on 22 June 2020, the
Company has applied for suspension of trading in the
shares on The Stock Exchange.

An independent board committee (“Independent
Committee”) comprising the independent non-executive
directors of the Company was established on 15 July
2020 to conduct an investigation with the primary
scope to fact-finding in respect of the Problematic Loans
and Guarantee Contracts . For the purpose of the
investigation, the Independent Committee, through its
legal adviser (“Independent Legal Adviser”),
commissioned a professional firm as the forensic
accountant (“Independent Adviser”) on 5 March 2021
to assist on the investigation.

During the investigation, there were two sets of
explanations and documents obtained by the
Independent Adviser, with one set provided by the
former director of the Company and certain key finance
personnel of Jiangsu Saite and Jiangsu Qifeng who
already left the Group. The sources of those documents
were unidentified. Another set of explanations and
documents were based on information obtained from
the courts in the PRC. Based on the investigation, there
are significant differences identified between the two
sets of explanations and documents. The Independent
Adviser was unable to resolve the differences due to the
limitations as set out below.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

As included in the main findings of the Independent
Adviser which were summarised in the announcement
dated 23 February 2022 (the “Main Findings
Announcement”), the below limitations were noted by
the Independent Adviser and agreed by the Directors
when conducting the investigation into the Problematic
Loans and Guarantee Contracts:

1. The Company failed to provide sufficient and
credible explanations and evidence;

2. Unavailability of information and documents in
relation to some relevant transactions due to long
history; and

3. Lack of cooperation from third-party institutions.

The findings revealed in the investigation gave rise to
the doubt about the reliability of books and records of
the Group of the current and past years. In respect of
the Problematic Loans and Guarantee Contracts, the
Directors determined to recognise the Problematic Loans
amounting to RMB204,617,000 (Note 38) and
Guarantee Contracts amounting to RMB53,045,000
(Note 39) as transactions occurred on 31 December
2019.

As of the date of this report, the management has used
its best effort, to the extent commercially practicable, to
ensure the complete books and records of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2019, applying their
best estimates and judgement based on the information
of the Group that are available to the management.
However, in light of the Business Disruption and findings
as revealed in the investigation, the Directors believed
that, as at the date of the report, it is almost impossible,
and not practical, to ascertain the correct consolidated
profit and loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of financial position for the
current year for inclusion in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. The Directors believed that it
is almost impossible, and not practical, to verify the
financial information as reported in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for past years.
Accordingly, the comparative financial information
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements only
represents such information as reported in the published
consolidated 2018 financial statements and therefore
may not be comparable with the figures for the current
year.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

3.

118

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

As the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared based on the incomplete books and records
available to the Group, the Directors are unable to
represent that all transactions entered into by the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2019 have been
properly reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

In this connection, the Directors of the Company are
also unable to represent as to the completeness,
existence and accuracy of identification and the
disclosures of revenue in Note 6, segment information
in Note 7, other income and other gains or losses in
Note 8, finance costs in Note 9, impairment loss on
financial and contract assets in Note 10, income tax in
Note 11, (loss)/profit for the year in Note 12, directors
and chief executive’s emoluments in Note 13, five
highest paid employees in Note 14, (losses)/earnings per
share in Note 16, property, plant and equipment in Note
17, right-of-use assets in Note 19, interest in a joint
venture in Note 20, interests in associates in Note 21,
equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income in Note 22, deferred tax assets
and liabilities in Note 23, inventories in Note 24, trade
receivables in Note 25, contract assets in Note 26, other
receivables, deposits and prepayments in Note 27,
amount due to a director in Note 28, bank balances and
cash and restricted bank balances in Note 29, trade
payables in Note 30, other payables and accruals in
Note 31, contract liabilities in Note 32, amount due to
the ultimate holding company in Note 33, amounts due
to associates in Note 34, lease liability in Note 35,
corporate bonds in Note 36, short-term borrowings in
Note 37, problematic loans in Note 38, financial
guarantee contracts in Note 39, notes supporting the
consolidated statement of cash flows in Note 43, capital
risk management in Note 45, financial instruments in
Note 46, and related party disclosures in Note 47.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Any adjustments arising from the matters described
above would have a consequential significant effect on
the net loss of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 and net liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2019.

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The directors have presented in these
consolidated financial statements the financial
information prepared based on all available
information to the extent provided to them in
their capacity. Except for the matters disclosed
above, these financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS"”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the
"HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement and going
concern assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair values as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

During the year, the Group has incurred a loss of
RMB6,091,545,000 and as at 31 December 2019,
its current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB3,261,818,000. As at the same date, the
Group only had cash and cash equivalents
amounted to RMB40,233,000.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

120

(b) Basis of measurement and going

concern assumption (Continued)

In addition, winding-up petitions were lodged
with the High Court of Hong Kong (the “Court”)
against the Company by various creditors in
pursuit of the settlement of the outstanding debts
owed to them. To deal with this situation, the
Company proposed a debt restructuring
arrangement (“Scheme of Arrangement”) as
detailed below. These events or conditions,
together with the Business Disruption as described
in Note 3, indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
and therefore, that it may be unable to realise its
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business.

In assessing the appropriateness of the use of the
going concern basis in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements, the Directors
prepared a cash flow forecast covering a period
of 12 months from the date of approval for issue
of these consolidated financial statements. In
preparing the cash flow forecast, the Directors
have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its
available sources of financing in assessing
whether the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to continue as a going concern. For this
purpose, the following plans and measures have
been implemented:

(i) Group Reorganisation — The Company
proceeded a carve out of Jiangsu Saite and
Jiangsu Qifeng through a shareholders’
voluntary winding up of its parent, Modern
Day Holdings Limited. On 24 December
2021, a special resolution was duly passed
to wind up Modern Day Holdings Limited.
Upon the completion of the reorganisation,
Jiangsu Saite and Jiangsu Qifeng are no
longer the subsidiaries of the Company;
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going
concern assumption (Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Capital Injection — the Group entered into
agreements with the investors on 13
September 2021 and 10 December 2021,
that the Company to issue the Senior Notes
in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$160,000,000 and to issue an aggregate
of 3,120,000,000 Subscription Shares at
the Subscription Price of HK$0.10 per
Subscription Share, amounted to
HK$312,000,000. The capital injection is
subject to, inter alia, the resumption of the
trading of the Company’s shares before 30
June 2022; and

Scheme of Arrangement — Under the
Scheme of Arrangement, each creditor of
the Company are entitled to elect
settlement in cash, to be satisfied by the
issue of senior notes totalling HK$160
million, or by allotment and issue of new
shares of the Company for settlement of all
its claims against the Company and its
subsidiaries under the Scheme of
Arrangement. The Scheme has been
approved by the requisite majority of
creditors of the Company at the Scheme
meeting on 25 February 2022, and has
been sanctioned by the High Court of Hong
Kong on 11 April 2022.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going
concern assumption (Continued)

(iif)

(Continued)

Despite the restructuring effort of the
Group thus far, on 14 January 2022, the
Company received a letter from the Stock
Exchange stating that the Listing
Committee of the Stock Exchange has
decided to cancel the Company’s listing
under Rule 6.01A(1) of the Listing Rules as
the Company failed to satisfy all the
Resumption Guidance by 21 December
2021 (the “Delisting Decision”). On 21
January 2022, the Company submitted an
application requesting the Delisting
Decision be referred to the listing review
committee of the Stock Exchange for
review pursuant to Chapter 2B of the
Listing Rules. The review hearing is
scheduled to be held on 19 April 2022.

The issue of shares under the Scheme of
Arrangement is subject to the resumption
of trading of shares of the Company, or
otherwise, approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting.

Other than the above restructuring plan, certain
measures are being contemplated to mitigate the
liquidity pressure and to improve its financial
position and performance which include, but not
limited to the following:

U)

(ii)

122

introducing new investors in order to
ensure sufficient working capital and new
business to generate revenue; and

The Group continues to develop its
construction service business to improve its
cash flow from operations.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going

(o)

concern assumption (Continued)

Assuming the successful implementation of the
above Group's restructuring plan, the Directors
are of the opinion that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to finance its operations
and to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due within the next twelve months from
the date of authorisation for issue of these
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant
uncertainties exist as to whether management
will be able to achieve its plans and measures as
described above. Whether the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern would depend
upon the following:

(i) successful to obtain funding as capital
injection from the potential investors;

(i) fulfilment of resumption guidance which
would affect the Scheme of Arrangement
and the Capital Injection; and

Should the Group fail to achieve the
abovementioned plans and measures, it might
not be able to continue to operate as a going
concern, and adjustments would have to be made
to write down the carrying value of the Group’s
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide
for any further liabilities which might arise, and to
reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effects of these adjustments
have not been reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

Functional and presentation
currency

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is also the
Company’s functional currency.

Amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand,
unless otherwise stated.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4.
POLICIES

ERETFBE

() EBEHRGEEEE

(a) Business combination and basis of

124

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”). Inter-company
transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred,
in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the dates of
acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is
accounted for using the acquisition method. The
cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of
assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are principally measured at acquisition-date fair
value. The Group's previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date
fair value and the resulting gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect,
on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed
unless they are incurred in issuing equity
instruments in which case the costs are deducted
from equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of

consolidation (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained
within the measurement period (a maximum of
12 months from the acquisition date) about the
fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability
are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (i) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of
non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such
non-controlling interest’'s share of subsequent
changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interests even
if this results in those non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fade)

BRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries

126

(9]

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
Company is able to exercise control. The
Company controls an investee if all three of the
following elements are present: power over the
investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company'’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividend received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor a joint arrangement. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but not control or joint control over
those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity
method whereby they are initially recognised at
cost and thereafter, their carrying amount are
adjusted for the Group's share of the post-
acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group's interest
in the associate are not recognised unless there is
an obligation to make good those losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9]

Associates (Continued)

Profits and losses arising on transactions between
the Group and its associates are recognised only
to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in
the associate. The investor’s share in the
associate’s profits and losses resulting from these
transactions is eliminated against the carrying
value of the associate. Where unrealised losses
provide evidence of impairment of the asset
transferred they are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair
value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
is capitalised and included in the carrying amount
of the associate. Where there is objective evidence
that the investment in an associate has been
impaired, the carrying amount of the investment
is tested for impairment in the same way as other
non-financial assets.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The results of associates
are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivable during the
year.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4, EXRETTHE#E)

(d) Joint arrangements (d) 6&=ZH

128

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement
where there is a contractual arrangement that
confers joint control over the relevant activities of
the arrangement to the Group and at least one
other party. Joint control is assessed under the
same principles as control over subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint
arrangements as either:

o Joint ventures: where the Group has rights
to only the net assets of the joint
arrangement; or

o Joint operations: where the Group has both
the rights to assets and obligations for the
liabilities of the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:
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o The contractual terms of the joint
arrangement agreement; and

o Any other facts and circumstances
(including any other contractual
arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests in joint
ventures in the same manner as investments in
associates (i.e. using the equity method — see
Note 4(c)).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint
venture above the fair value of the Group's share
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in
the carrying amount of the investment in joint
venture. Where there is objective evidence that
the investment in a joint venture has been
impaired the carrying amount of the investment is
tested for impairment in the same way as other
non-financial assets.

The Group accounts for its interests joint
operations by recognising its share of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses in accordance
with its contractually conferred rights and
obligations.

The Company’s interests in joint ventures are
stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.
Results of joint ventures are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purpose (other
than construction in progress as described below)
are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

130

POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment

(Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment
other than construction in progress less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis. The useful
lives are as follows:

Buildings and structures 5%

Plant and machinery 10%

Motor vehicles 10% to 19%

Office equipment 5% to 19%

Leasehold improvement ~ Over the remaining
period of the
related lease

Construction in progress is carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties
are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)(1) Leases (accounting policies applied

from 1 January 2019
Accounting as a lessee

All leases are accounted for by recognising a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability except for:

. Leases of low value assets; and
o Leases with a duration of 12 months or
less.

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value
of the contractual payments due to the lessor
over the lease term, with the discount rate
determined by reference to the rate inherent in
the lease unless (as is typically the case) this is not
readily determinable, in which case the Group's
incremental borrowing rate on commencement of
the lease is used. Variable lease payments are only
included in the measurement of the lease liability
if they depend on an index or rate. In such cases,
the initial measurement of the lease liability
assumes the variable element will remain
unchanged throughout the lease term. Other
variable lease payments are expensed in the
period to which they relate.

On initial recognition, the carrying value of the
lease liability also includes:

o amounts expected to be payable under any
residual value guarantee;

° the exercise price of any purchase option
granted in favour of the Group if it is
reasonable certain to assess that option;

o any penalties payable for terminating the
lease, if the term of the lease has been
estimated on the basis of termination
option being exercised.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

132

POLICIES (Continued)

(f)(1) Leases (accounting policies applied

from 1 January 2019 (Continued)
Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Right of use assets are initially measured at the
amount of the lease liability, reduced for any lease
incentives received, and increased for:

o lease payments made at or before
commencement of the lease;

. initial direct costs incurred; and

° the amount of any provision recognised
where the Group is contractually required
to dismantle, remove or restore the leased
asset.

For contracts that both convey a right to the
Group to use an identified asset and require
services to be provided to the Group by the lessor,
the Group has elected to account for the entire
contract as a lease, i.e. it does not allocate any
amount of the contractual payments to, and
account separately for, any services provided by
the supplier as part of the contract.

Subsequent to initial measurement lease liabilities
increase as a result of interest charged at a
constant rate on the balance outstanding and are
reduced for lease payments made. Right-of-use
assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the remaining term of the lease or over the
remaining economic life of the asset if, rarely, this
is judged to be shorter than the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. ERETTHE#E)

POLICIES (Continued)
MNHEE(H2019F1B81B8EEH

(f)(1) Leases (accounting policies applied

from 1 January 2019 (Continued)
Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

When the Group revises its estimate of the term
of any lease (because, for example, it re-assesses
the probability of a lessee extension or
termination option being exercised), it adjusts the
carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect the
payments to make over the revised term, which
are discounted using a revised discount rate. The
carrying value of lease liabilities is similarly revised
when the variable element of future lease
payments dependent on a rate or index is revised,
except the discount rate remains unchanged. In
both cases an equivalent adjustment is made to
the carrying value of the right-of-use asset, with
the revised carrying amount being amortised over
the remaining (revised) lease term. If the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset is adjusted to
zero, any further reduction is recognised in profit
or loss.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual
terms of a lease with the lessor, the accounting
depends on the nature of the modification:

° if the renegotiation results in one or more
additional assets being leased for an
amount commensurate with the standalone
price for the additional rights-of-use
obtained, the modification is accounted for
as a separate lease in accordance with the
above policy.

o in all other cases where the renegotiation
increases the scope of the lease (whether
that is an extension to the lease term, or
one or more additional assets being leased),
the lease liability is remeasured using the
discount rate applicable on the modification
date, with the right-of-use asset being
adjusted by the same amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)(1) Leases (accounting policies applied
from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

o if the renegotiation results in a decrease in
the scope of the lease, both the carrying
amount of the lease liability and right-of-
use asset are reduced by the same
proportion to reflect the partial of full
termination of the lease with any difference
recognised in profit or loss. The lease
liability is then further adjusted to ensure its
carrying amount reflects the amount of the
renegotiated payments over the
renegotiated term, with the modified lease
payments discounted at the rate applicable
on the modification date. The right-of-use
asset is adjusted by the same amount.

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out certain of its machinery
to a number of tenants. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on the straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. ERETTHE#E)

POLICIES (Continued)
(H2)HEEZ (201812 A31AAIERA

(f)(2) Leases (accounting policies applied

until 31 December 2018)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the
terms of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of
acquiring land held under operating leases, are
recognised as an expense on a straight line basis
over the lease terms of the relevant lease. In the
event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property
interest which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire property is
accounted as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and
building element at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

136

(f)(2) Leases (accounting policies applied

(9)

until 31 December 2018) (Continued)
Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid land
lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease
terms on a straight line basis. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the leasehold land and building elements, the
entire property is generally classified as if the
leasehold land is under finance lease.

Financial instruments
(i) Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade
receivable without a significant financing
component) is initially measured at fair
value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirely when
determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

(1)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost: Assets
that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost.
Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective
interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gains or losses on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

On initial recognition of an equity
investment that is not held for trading, the
Group could irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment's fair
value in other comprehensive income. This
election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis. Equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income
are measured at fair value. Dividend income
are recognised in profit or loss unless the
dividend income clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All
other equity instruments are classified as
fair value through profit or loss, whereby
changes in fair value, dividends and interest
income are recognised in profit or loss.
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

138

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit loss (“ECL"”) on trade
receivables and other financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The ECLs are
measured on either of the following bases:
(1) 12-month ECLs: these are the ECLs that
result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date;
and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to
receive. The shortfall is then discounted at
an approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.

The Group measures loss allowances for
trade receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on
lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

For other financial assets measured at
amortised cost of the Group, the ECLs are
based on 12-month ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since origination, the allowance
will be based on lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk
of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information
analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if
it is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non
credit-impaired financial assets, interest
income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount.
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BRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

140

(i)

(iv)

v)

POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities
at amortised costs are initially measured at
fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are
subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The
related interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 4(m).

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company

are recorded at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance
with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Group and not
designated as at fair value through profit or
loss is recognised initially at its fair value
less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contact at the higher
of: (i) the amount of the loss allowance,
being the ECL provision measured in
accordance with principles of the
accounting policy set out in Note 4(g)(ii);
and (i) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the
principles of HKFRS 15.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance
with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when
the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
(vii) Derecognition (Continued)

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the
equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised
initially and measured at their fair value on
the date the financial liability or part
thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of
the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments
are measured to reflect the fair value of the
financial liability extinguished. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

(h) Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of goods or services is
transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the
laws that apply to the contract, control of the
goods or services may be transferred over time or
at a point in time. Control of the goods or
services is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs;
or

o does not create an asset with an alternative

use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over
time, revenue is recognised over the period of the
contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control
of the goods or services.
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REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the customer a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amounts receivable, discounted using
the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the
Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under
that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For contracts where the
period between the payment and the transfer of
the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Construction services of steel structure
projects and prefabricated construction
projects

The Group has determined that for contracts with
customers under construction of steel structure
projects and prefabricated construction projects,
there is generally only one performance
obligation. The Group determines that the
customer controls all the work in progress as the
infrastructure is being constructed and installed at
the customer’s site, in the course of the
construction and installation, the work in progress
is being enhanced during the terms of the
contracts. Therefore, revenue from these
contracts are recognised over time. Invoices are
issued according to contractual terms and are
usually payable within 30 days. Uninvoiced
amounts are presented as contract assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group's
obligation to transfer goods to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or
an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

Contract asset is recognised when (i) the Group
completes the construction of steel structure
projects and prefabricated construction projects
under such services contracts but yet certified by
architects, surveyors or other representatives
appointed by customers, or (ii) the customers
retain retention money to secure the due
performance of the contracts. Any amount
previously recognised as a contract asset is
reclassified to trade receivables at the point at
which it is invoiced to the customer. If the
considerations (including advances received from
customers) exceeds the revenue recognised to
date under the output method then the Group
recognises a contract liability for the difference.
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

146

()

()

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Contract costs

The Group recognises an asset from the costs
incurred to fulfil a contract when those costs
meet all of the following criteria:

(@  the costs relate directly to a contract or to
an anticipated contract that the entity can
specifically identify;

(b)  the costs generate or enhance resources of
the entity that will be used in satisfying (or
in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future; and

(c)  the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset recognised is subsequently amortised to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of
the goods or services to which the cost relate. The
asset is subject to impairment review.

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax
and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are non-
assessable or disallowable for income tax
purposes and is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the corresponding amounts used
for tax purposes. Except for goodwill not
deductible for tax purposes and initial recognition
of assets and liabilities that are not part of the
business combination which affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangement where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised, provided that the
deductible temporary differences are not arises
from initial recognition of asset and liabilities in a
transaction other than in a business combination
that affects neither taxable profit or accounting
profit. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the
carrying amount of the asset or liability is realised
or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period, and reflects any uncertainty related to
income taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when they relate to income tax levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

4., FESTTHE®E)

()

FRE®L (&)

EXHRBEDARYBREMSEERR
RREERERVGN S 2 AESEZ
B ERAMMER - AR MR EE L)
RHERLFRBAH —HMoMITES
AP ERTOGHNNEENREBE  URE
REMBAR  BERRREERI M
EAERTERZ/8 (WA S B 6T
REFE#L BERZRAETEE
TR ARREE D) N - AR E AR
B ERERETEVIARR - HERV R
ME#SA IR E R ZME - ERE
JERIEE EE - AR A4 P HR E B 2 58
WIBNR S (R P EERTOEN R
SO AR A N PR EREE R
BEMES - BEFBENIZEANEE
FEERAESERAEE CBHATAA
B & B R B M 2 B MR 2 B R T
B URBEMRGSHE BT THEE
S

EHA Bl TARERN A BV A R
BEENHNARGEHAEREARLER
Fl— I B PT R R P IS IR A B T
AEBABRFHAALEFENHN AR
BREE BEEHAEEAHEAEE
MR -

147

Annual Report 2019 =& — N FF ¥R
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

148

()

(k)

Income taxes (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss
except when they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income in which case the
taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or when they relate to items recognised
directly in equity in which case the taxes are also
recognised directly in equity.

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by the group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it/they operate(s)
(the “functional currency”) are recorded at the
rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities are
translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

)

(m)

Short-term and other long-term
employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits)
that are expected to be settled wholly
before twelve months after the end of the
annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short
term employee benefits are recognised in
the year when the employees render the
related service.

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss when the services
are rendered by the employees.

(i)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets which require a substantial
period of time to be ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. Income earned on temporary investments
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on those assets is deducted from borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Equity-settled share-based
payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar services are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date.

For share options that vest immediately at the
date of grant, the fair value of the share options
granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to share capital and
share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to retained profits.

(o) Impairment of assets (other than
financial assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following
assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

o property, plant and equipment;

o right-of-use assets/prepaid lease payments;
and

. investments in subsidiaries, associates and

joint ventures
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Impairment of assets (other than

financial assets) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use)
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to
the extent that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the asset,
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

152

(p)

(a)

(r)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an
outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably
estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, the existence of
which will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Research expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them and
that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended to
compensate. Government grants related to
depreciable assets are recognised as deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss over the
useful lives of the related assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Related parties

(a

A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the
Company's parent.

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the group or to the group’s parent.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, TESTTBER(#)
POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Related parties (Continued) (s) BEAL(E)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of (b) fWFFE TR - IR EER

the following conditions applies: R B R E

()  The entity and the Group are () ZEEERASEBER—%5E
members of the same group (which ol A= NGRS SN
means that each parent, subsidiary IS DN e PNCIE
and fellow subsidiary is related to the ULHEIBRE) -
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint (ii) *ﬁsﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ’j — BN
venture of the other entity (or an NRAlFEERE(HS &
associate or joint venture of a BAEKERARNEEKER
member of a group of which the AIZEE ARG ERE)
other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the (i) MEEEHBRA—F=FHK
same third party. aEbEE -

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third vy —HERBEFEF=FEEMNSE
entity and the other entity is an EhE - -ME—ERERR—
associate of the third entity. FE=HERMNEE AT

(vy  The entity is a post-employment (V) ZEBARASENELRSE
benefit plan for the benefit of the B Bt E SR A M
employees of the Group or an entity HHV BRI RAETE] o
related to the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are BEANERLEKE SR REE S

those family members who may be expected to MRSGFAREZATHIZATTE

influence, or be influenced by, that person in their HREKE - B4

dealings with the entity and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or (i) FRATHTLZEREBRRERS
domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or iy RATEBIREHBHTR &
domestic partner; and

(iiiy  dependents of that person or that person’s (i) FAATHZATHOERBRRELE

spouse or domestic partner. BXEA o
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
the directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

(a) Critical judgements in applying
accounting policies

(i)  Determination of functional currency

The Group measures foreign currency
transactions in the respective functional
currencies of the Company and its
subsidiaries. In determining the functional
currencies of the group entities, judgements
are required to determine the currency that
mainly influences sales prices for goods and
services and of the country whose
competitive forces and regulations mainly
determines the sales prices of its goods and
services. The functional currencies of the
group entities are determined based on
directors’ assessment of the economic
environment in which the entities operate
and the entities’ process of determining
sales prices.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

156

(a) Critical judgements in applying
accounting policies (Continued)

(ii)

Going concern consideration

In the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies, apart from those
involving estimations, management has
prepared the consolidated financial
statements on the assumption that the
Group will be able to operate as a going
concern in the coming year, which is a
critical judgement that has the most
significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. The assessment of the going
concern assumption involves making a
judgement by the directors, at a particular
point of time, about the future outcome of
events or conditions which are inherently
uncertain. The directors consider that the
Group has the capability to continue as a
going concern and the major events or
conditions, which may give rise to business
risks, that individually or collectively may
cast significant doubt upon the going
concern assumption are set out in Note 3(b)
to the consolidated financial statements.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation
uncertainty

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in
these financial statements, other key sources of
estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk
of resulting a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within next
financial year are as follows:

0)

Onerous contracts

The Group determines whether contracts
with customers are onerous contracts based
on the latest available budgets of those
contracts with reference to the overall
contracts consideration of each contract
which requires management’s best
estimates and judgements. Construction
revenue is estimated in accordance with the
terms set out in the relevant contracts.
Because of the nature of the construction
industry, the management regularly reviews
the progress of the contracts and the
estimated construction revenue and
budgeted costs. Any change in the
estimates of construction revenue or
budgeted cost will affect the amount of
foreseeable losses arising from onerous
contracts recognised in the profit or loss in
the year of the change.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 5. EESTHEREBMGETTE
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES EMNEERE &)

158

OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation
uncertainty (Continued)

(ii)

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

Some of the Group's assets are measured
at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. The directors of the Company are
responsible in determining the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the
Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs
are not available, the Group engages
independent qualified professional valuers
to perform the valuation. The directors of
the Company work closely with the
independent qualified professional valuers
to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The
directors regularly assess the impact and
the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of
the assets.

The Group uses valuation techniques that
include inputs that are not based on
observable market data to estimate the fair
value of certain financial instruments. Note
46 provides detailed information about the
valuation techniques, inputs and key
assumptions used in the determination of
the fair value of various assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 5. EESHEREBMATIAE
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES EMNEERE2)

OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation
uncertainty (Continued)

(iif)

Provision of ECL for financial and
contract assets

The management of the Group estimates
the amount of lifetime ECL of trade
receivables and contract assets based on
provision matrix through grouping of
various debtors that have similar loss
patterns, after considering internal credit
ratings, past due status and repayment
history of respective trade receivables and
contract assets. For other financial assets
measured at amortised cost, the
management of the Group make periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability
based on historical settlement records, past
experience, and also quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportive forward-looking
information. Estimated loss rates are based
on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and are
adjusted for forward-looking information.
At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in forward-looking information are
considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes
in estimates. The information about the
ECL and the Group'’s financial and contract
assets are disclosed in Note 46.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 5. EESTHEREBESTTE
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES EMNETERE &)
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(b) AT THREMNEERRE)

(b) Key sources of estimation
uncertainty (Continued)

(iv) Estimated impairment of property, (iv) Y% - BERBZELLK

160

plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets are stated at costs less
accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise
judgement and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an
event has occurred or any indicators that
may affect the asset value; (2) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported
by the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs of disposal is based on
such available data as binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset, and in the case of value in use, the
net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied
in estimating the recoverable amounts
including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset (including
right-of-use assets), the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the assets
belongs. Changing the assumptions and
estimates, including the discount rates or
the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation
uncertainty (Continued)

5.

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

EESHHEREREMATE
EMNEERE2)

(b) AT THREMNEERRE)

(v) Deferred tax asset () BELEBEEE
As at 31 December 2019, no deferred tax R2019F 12 A31H » ERER
assets (2018: RMB40,733,000) has been THEE (20184 : AR 40,733,000
recognised in the Group's consolidated TL) ER AR KBRS AR R T
statement of financial position. Deferred o B AR B TEBIAR 208 A SRR -
tax asset that has not been recognised is MO B RIRE R IR B EE © IRIER
due to the unpredictability of future profit BEERSHZREZIVRNARZE
streams. The realisability of the deferred tax BB TR Z A ) 3 FE R T B
asset mainly depends on whether sufficient ZR o MPTE & 2 B R RERT
future profits or taxable temporary B ORKZRIER  KEERE
differences will be available in the future. In EE - BEUERT AR R ERT 5 A
cases where the actual future taxable first - BRI AE 4 H AERR S B MR ST
profits generated are less or more than MIAEE - KN A RO sE—
expected, or change in facts and SEREITHRPNE R ER o
circumstances which result in revision of
future taxable profits estimation,
recognition or reversal of deferred tax
assets may arise, which would be
recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such a reversal or further recognition
takes place.
6. REVENUE 6. U&=
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBFT
Type of services: R A
Construction of R
— Steel structure projects — A EIER 462,750 968,313
— Prefabricated construction projects — 2 REEREHESEIER 52,697 532,998
Revenue from contracts with customers EF &R 2 Wz 515,447 1,501,311
Timing of revenue recognition I = R A
Over time MR—ERR A 515,447 1,501,311
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

6. REVENUE (continued)

162

(i)

(i)

Performance obligation for
contracts with customers

Construction services

The Group provides construction services to
customers. Such services are recognised as a
performance obligation satisfied over time as the
Group creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. Revenue is recognised for these
construction services based on the stage of
completion of the contract using output method.

Retention receivables, prior to expiration of defect
liability period, are classified as contract assets,
which is usually within one year from the date of
the practical completion of the construction. The
relevant amount of contract asset is reclassified to
trade receivables when the defect liability period
expires. The defect liability period serves as an
assurance that the construction services
performed comply with agreed upon
specifications and such assurance cannot be
purchased separately.

Transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligation
for contracts with customers

The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018 and the expected timing of
recognising revenue are as follows:

()

(i)

EFERZENEE

BEIRF

AEEREFREZERY -BEASK
BRIENIEREFEEERIEHIL R
BHNEE RERBEERL/N —K
REABITEAOEE - RIBES R TR
B AE AR X SR RB R e o

KRBV REEERER CBER
BERZTHME-—FR)DBERARE
E-BRRETHERE  GREEN
EHSREFT OB REREZH A - R
B B B AR RE PR T B0 B T AR TS 1
BWMERRE - BZRBR T EEBRE -

2019412 A31H &2018F 128318 -
DEERTENEE(RTXEHART
B ) B2 5 (B8 N R i 2 &) T8 B R el 20
T

—FRN

Within one year

2019 2018
2019 5 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETFTT
74,480 162,322
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating activities are attributable to the
operating segments focusing on the construction of
steel structure and prefabricated construction projects.
These operating segments have been identified on the
basis of internal management reports that are regularly
reviewed by the executive directors of the Company
who are the chief operating decision makers of the
Group (the “CODM"). The executive directors review
revenue and gross margin analysis by each construction
contract for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

For segment reporting under HKFRS 8 Operating
Segments, the revenue and gross margin of each
construction contract with similar economic
characteristics has been aggregated into a single
reportable and operating segment. The accounting
policies of the operating segments are the same as the
Group’s accounting policies described in Note 4. The
segment revenue and segment result (i.e. gross margin)
reviewed by the CODM is the same as the Group’s
revenue and gross profit.

The CODM makes decisions according to operating
results of each segment. No analysis of segment asset
and segment liability is presented as the CODM does
not regularly review such information for the purposes
of resources allocation and performance assessment.
Therefore, only segment revenue and segment results
are presented.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H
7 2B & #

AEENELRDEBREINHEBREXR
FLTR SR ERIR B S THRE D88
REREDT RN ERREELLRETE - T
NHEEREHARRATES (REA/LE
BErEgerRs((Z8KEREE]))EH
B o MTEFEHSEES R MER
T PETTEIRDBL MR FHE ©

REBUBRELENE R LLD M TR H
WEME » SOEBLULHESHEES R MK
BRENEEEHRE A 2HMLEDH
REDHH ST RRENTIMAAEENE
STRERARR - B EBRERREZHND T
= R B RA (BER]) AR E AW R EF
GEII

TERERAREREBES D BN EREELR
Ko WEZINDHEERSHEENIH - R
ARE2KERREWETF RNRHZFTEFR A
ETERDERRBAFE - Bt B259F
Yogs b ) BRSEAE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.
(Continued)

Entity-wide information

An analysis of the Group’s revenue by major types of
construction contracts is as follows:

2019 2018

2019 & 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Construction of 0
— Steel structure projects — WM& BIER 462,750 968,313
— Prefabricated construction projects — 2HERBRIEMHEEEER 52,697 532,998

515,447 1,501,311

Geographical information

No geographical segment information is presented as all
the Group’s revenue is derived from operations in the
PRC and over 99% of the Group’s non-current assets
are located in the PRC.

Information about major customers
Revenues from customers of the corresponding years

contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group are as follows:

HEER

HAAEEN R EZEIRE P EEENRAE
®99% A LR ZEREVEE MU N E - #RI &
2R EBERY

TBREEEFHESR

REBEE  fTER RSN AE BRI =
10% A EMEFMT :

2019 2018

2019 & 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Customer A’ ZEA * 184,218
Customer B2 =5 B2 146,247 *
Customer C2 BEC? 64,945 3

211,192 184,218

L Revenue from construction of prefabricated construction
projects.

2 Revenue from construction of steel structure projects and
prefabricated construction projects.

* The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of
the total revenue of the Group for the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

8. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 8. HMWAURHEMWEREE
GAINS AND LOSSES
(a) Other income (a) Hfbug A
2019 2018
2019 2018 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
Sales of scrapped materials RERLEHE 591 4,857
Interest income on bank deposits H|ITERFEMA 42 4,058
Rental income B UA 118 2,166
Government grants R AT 4 B) 1,202 1,809
1,953 12,890
(b) Other gains and losses (b) Hftzm kg8
2019 2018
2019 20184F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Net exchange loss B N ES R R AR (4,011) (24,683)
Write-off of property, plant and WE - BE KR A
equipment (75,574) -
Effect on modification of corporate BRAEESNTE
bonds 3,152 -
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BE KRB ZER
plant and equipment - (25)
(76,433) (24,708)
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. HM#AA
2019 2018
PINEE:S 2018 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
Interests on short-term borrowings PSEEI= /RN 61,736 1,355
Interests on corporate bonds (Note 36) PEEHFE (ME36) 23,251 35,389
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 35) HE&EF B (FIE35) 7 -
Commission liien 14,584 -
99,642 36,744
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REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

10. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON 10. MR EREEREREE
FINANCIAL AND CONTRACT
ASSETS
2019 2018
2019 2018 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBT T
Impairment losses/(reversal of MUTIER ZREEE
impairment losses) on: CREREERE) :
— Trade receivables — W E 5 5RIE 1,654,571 12,025
— Other receivables — H b UK 4,344,686 =
— Contract assets —AREE (47,083) 6,268
— Bank balances — RITEERR (18,646) 10,226
5,933,528 28,519

Details of impairment assessment for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 are set out in Note 46.

HZE20194 K% 2018F 12 A31 H IL FE 2R

EFHE 2 FEIBE NI 5E46 ©

11. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 1. FR8Ht (E&) Bx
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Current tax: BEAFR 1A
PRC Enterprise Income Tax AR 1 ZE TSR 129 83,508
Deferred tax credit (Note 23) EER B % (FI7E23) (51,383) (7,130)
(51,254) 76,378
Provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax was made B0 & B S R BE T IRAR 1B 2N A B H R B B
based on the estimated taxable profits calculated in BRI EENEEETER ERE R EE s
accordance with the relevant income tax laws and shpEim R F L o
regulations applicable to the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries.
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the BE(hEARLIMBCEFERE) (2T
“EIT Law") and Implementation Regulations of the EIT BREE D) RO ERERSEEBIEH - AQ TR
Law, the tax rate of the Company’'s PRC subsidiaries is BIH B A Bl R 5 25% o
25%.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

11. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 1. BB (ER) X&)
(Continued)
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made BRASERNMRESENEEEBEEEME
as the Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong ARILAAN] - BUE I ARETR BB NS -

Kong for both years.

The income tax (credit)/expense for the year can be FAMFMER(ER) FAX AT EREBE RE
reconciled to the (loss)/profit before taxation per the fib 2T UM 25 R FT S ROBR B AT (B518) /B A4 BR
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other T

comprehensive income as follows:

2019 2018
2019 & 2018 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

(Loss)/profit before taxation BrBiAT (B51E), /2 F (6,142,799) 215,390
Tax at the PRC Enterprise Income LB EEFEBITE 25%

Tax rate of 25% (2018: 25%) (2018 4F : 25%) At HBITIIR (1,535,700) 53,848
Tax effect of expenses not deductible RO 2 M Bl 75 2 22

for tax purpose 1,531,157 22,324
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AR IEEIEN RIS E 4,067 206
Tax effect of loss utilised EEAEENTRETE - (50)
Tax effect of income not taxable BEFRBA R TS &

for tax purpose (1,428) (392)
Tax effect of share of loss/(profit) of a HME—MAEBEEE(BF)

joint venture EopTh - 338 (83)
Tax effect of share of loss of associates DIGEE R A E RN TR IE & 1,695 278
Write-down of deferred tax assets WURRE T IR B EE 40,733 =
Reversal of temporary differences BOER =R (92,116) =
Others Hith - 247
Income tax (credit)/expense for the year — FRAEFR (EE), Fx (51,254) 76,378
Details of the deferred taxation are set out in Note 23. EERIE 2 FH IS aE 23 -
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REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

12. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. £ (EE)/E’.*U
(Loss)/profit for the year has been arrived at after R (GEA) R T EHEEZEROFERN (B
charging/(crediting): B)/ &7 :

2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBT T

Auditor’s remuneration — audit services  #ZEEMEI & — Z RS 8,574 2,742
Depreciation of property, plant and Y B M EREITE (HE17)

equipment (Note 17) 6,995 16,830
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments &/~ 78 & k1B 8 - 1,414
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE (H:E19)

(Note 19) 1,817 -
Staff costs (including directors’ BETRA(BIEEEHH)

emoluments)
Salaries and other benefits e REAEF] 23,798 54,368
Retirement benefit scheme contributions Rk i@ F5H 2 5% 1,758 6,010

25,556 60,378

Operating lease rentals in respect of MERKLHENHE®

premises - 4,990
Short-term lease — office or container MHARE — M AENEER 2,882 =

Remeasurement of financial guarantee B i&#ER AR EH T2
contracts 53,045 (1,200)
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF

EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
directors, which include the Chief Executive, were as

follows:

Name of director

AR

Executive directors

HITEF

Director fees

Exe
RMB’000
ARBT R

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

13. EERETETRAEHMH

ENXEMNTEEF (BREERITHAR) WF

BT :

Salaries and
allowance

ekl
RMB’000
ARBTR

2019
20195

Retirement

benefit scheme

contribution Total
EREF

B L8 @st

RMB’000

ARETR

RMB'000
ARBTR

Mr. Jiang Jiangiang (note i) Baa st & (Fi3Ei) 212 350 14 576
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang (note i)~ BR/|Na& 5 A= (Fft 5 i) 212 300 14 526
Mr. Xu Fanghua BREELE 212 - - 212
Mr. Liu Zhibo (note iii) 2|5 1a 5 & (M tiii) 159 - - 159
Mr. Hua Gang (note iii) 1 55 A (B i) 159 - - 159
Mr. Li Xulin (note iv) FrEMTAE (Eiv) - - - -
Mr. Shan Hu (note iv) Breid (Eiv) - - - -
Mr. Zhang Tianbo (note v) aRAIE A () - - - -
Sub-total /Nt 954 650 28 1,632
Independent non-executive ¥ FEHTTEE

directors
Mr. Xu Jiaming REREASE 212 - - 212
Mr. Luk Chi Shing (note vi) ~ BERSRR 554 (BitsEvi) - - - -
Mr. Yan Hualin (note vii) B 2 8 5 AR (BT R vii) 159 - - 159
Mr. Choi Ho Yan (note viii) — £85&1= 45 4 (Bt sE viii) - - - -
Mr. Wu Zhongxian (note ix) 2 8 B 55 A (Bt sEix) 159 - - 159
Mr. Siu Siu Ling Robert #R IR ER 5t A (BT 3 viii)

(note viii) - - - -
Sub-total /et 530 - - 530
For the year ended HZE20195

31 December 2019 12A31HILLEE 1,484 650 28 2,162

169

Annual Report 2019 —Z — N FF R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 13. EERFETHRAESM =)
EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
2018
20184
Retirement
Salaries and benefit scheme
Director fees allowance contribution Total
RAER
Name of director Y EEikn b ARl &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETTT ARETTT

Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Jiang Jiangiang (note i) BEsa s (Fisri) = 1,650 15 1,665
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang (note i) BR/)Ns& 55 46 (Bt i) = 930 15 945
Mr. Xu Fanghua BFEELE - 210 - 210
Sub-total NEF - 2,790 30 2,820
Independent non-executive B EHTEE

directors
Mr. Xu Jiaming BRRBLE 210 - - 210
Mr. Luk Chi Shing (note vi) — FERSRK 5& & (Kt vi) 210 = = 210
Mr. Eddie Hurip (note x) ESERIAE (FiisEx) 88 - - 38
Mr. Wu Zhongxian (note ix) R BB 454 (Fii st ix) 66 = - 66
Sub-total N 574 - - 574
For the year ended BZ2018512A31H1

31 December 2018 IHFE 574 2,790 30 3,394
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

Notes:

(U]

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Mr. Jiang Jiangiang has resigned as an executive director on
29 October 2021.

Mr. Shao Xiaogiang has resigned as an executive director on
17 November 2021.

Mr. Liu Zhibo and Mr. Hua Gang were appointed as
executive directors on 8 July 2019.

Mr. Li Xulin and Mr. Shan Hu were appointed as executive
directors on 18 November 2021.

Mr. Zhang Tianbo was appointed as an executive director on
14 December 2021.

Mr. Luk Chi Shing has resigned as an independent non-
executive director on 5 July 2019.

Mr. Yan Hualin was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 8 July 2019.

Mr. Choi Ho Yan and Mr. Siu Siu Ling were appointed as
independent non-executive directors on 29 June 2020.

Mr. Wu Zhongxian was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 8 August 2018 and has resigned as an
independent non-executive director on 21 March 2022.

Mr. Eddie Hurip has resigned as an independent non-
executive director on 8 August 2018.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as directors
of the Company.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

13. EERTETHAEEFM =)

GEE

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

B AB R 20215610 A9 ABEHITES -
BB/ NGB EAEB 2021411 17 BBHINITES
ZEAEERERLAEN2019F7 ASHERE

RWTES -

THEMAEERBRALENR2021F11 A18HEE
ERRITES -

RRBEER2021F 12 B 14 EZTEARTE
$o

FEERREAEB R 201947 A5 BB A B IENTT
-

BREB AN 2019F7 A8 AEZR T AB I IEH
TEE-

BORC S A RARIJKERE AN 20206 6 29 A EZ
ERBILIFNITES -

REBREN201848 A8 HEZERBIIFH
TEEREN2022F3 421 HBHEBLIERITE
=

FEERAET N 201848 A8 ABHIB I IEANIT
E£E-

EXRATEENFHEZR R FRER AR
RAIRAEBEBA BRI  -

EXFRBYFRITESNHFMEERREIE
RARREENRBG AT -
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REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang was also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by him as the Chief
Executive.

None of the directors waived any emoluments for both
years. No emolument was paid by the Group to any of
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

14. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during
the year include three directors (2018: two directors),
details of whose emoluments are set out in Note 13
above. Details of the emoluments for the year of the
remaining two (2018: three) highest paid employees
who are neither a director nor chief executive of the
Company were as follows:

13. EERTETHAEEM =)

RAE E20194F K 2018F12 31 H IEF E
BB/ REAEMARAREBTRAE © EXFT
BEWEPFEEEAETEITHRABIRER T
E & o

RAEFE  SEEERETAHHN - ~5EH
I & AT EE SN RS AERBREFMA
RE B DA AR B85 ) 2R ) X A A B 47

f& -

14. 2 REHFEER

FR AEERELBERHEERE=-ZES
(20184F : MEESE) ' HEMFTMFBEN L
XHIEE13 - FRHBTMA(2018F : =8K) I
ARBEBEENEEETHRAENZSHEEDN
BT ¢

2019 2018

2019 20184

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ T ARBTT

Salaries and other benefits e REMET 1,241 1,672
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3Rk 4@ Fl 5T 214t 2% 16 32
1,257 1,704

The number of the highest paid employees who are not
the directors of the Company whose emoluments fell
within the following bands is as follows:

FENTEBNFEARRAEZNRHES
FAZIT

Nil to Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")

1,000,000 (I#7el)

Z% 1,000,000 7T

2019 2018
2019 5 20184
2 3

No emolument was paid by the Group to any of the
remaining highest paid individuals in the Group as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for both years.
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15. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shares of
the Company during 2019 and 2018, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
periods for both 2019 and 2018.

16. (LOSSES)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic (losses)/earnings per share is
based on the following data:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

15. RE
12019 4F K 2018 FBE £ LA A 7] /Y I 38 A% R
FeiEZRMEE © 520194 K 2018 F 34

HIRETEEZZIRMNEMRE

sR(BR) B

BRER(BR), /B TIRATEETE -

16.

(Losses)/earnings (5#8), B 2019 2018
2019 2018 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
(Losses)/earnings for the purpose of ATEEREAREE
basic and diluted (losses)/earnings (F518)&Fz
per share (F518) /&7
(Loss)/profit for the year FN(E18) /B (6,091,545) 139,012
Number of shares RAEE 2018
2018 4F
‘000
Fh%
Weighted average number of ordinary STEEREX(EE),
shares for the purpose of basic B2 AR hE T
(losses)/earning per share 2,712,415 2,330,748

Diluted (losses)/earnings per share for both 2019 and
2018 were same as the basic (losses)/earnings per share
as there were no potential ordinary share in issue for
2019 and 2018.

20194 K 2018 I £ B 381 7/8 1 L @AY -
20196 K 2018 F M B #E (B18) /B F &
BREXR(EE), AFER -
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REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17. % - BERFZE
EQUIPMENT
Buildings and Plant and Motor Office Leasehold  Construction
structures machinery vehicles equipment  improvement in progress Total
BEREEN  BRERES RE BOERG  RENERE HEIE h

RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RIMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT  ARETR  ARBTT  ARMTR  ARETR  ARBTT  ARETR

Cost A
At 1 January 2018 R2018E1 718 120,522 122,246 5470 1,768 322 43,983 299,311
Additions NE 24,055 324 3954 15,097 54 14,480 57,964
Disposal & - 1) = (32 = - (33)
Transfer 2 62217 - - - - 62,217) -
At 31 December 2018 R2018E 124318 206,794 122,569 9,424 16,833 376 1,246 357,242
Additions NE 35,133 19,193 548 802 - 194 55,870
Disposal ihE (161,665) (3,557) - - (376) - (165,59)
Write off i = (91,724) - (14,795) - - (106,519)
At 31 December 2019 #2019F 124317 80,262 46,481 9972 2,840 - 1,440 140,995
Accumulated depreciation ZitERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2018 R2018E1 418 33334 39,110 5,091 1327 322 - 79,184
Provided for the year EREE 6,274 9,841 102 559 54 - 16,830
Elimination on disposal iincaar - (1) - (1) - - @)
At31 December 2018 R2018E124318 1608 48950 5193 1479 376 - %06
Provided or the year FhBl 3118 3070 59 238 - - 69%
Elimination on disposal R ERH (25,825) (2,928) - - (376) = (29,129)
Witeof s - e - 83 - - (3098
At 31 December 2019 R2019E 124318 16,901 18410 5762 1,854 - - 42,927
Carrying values BEE
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 124318 63,361 28,071 4210 986 - 1,440 98,068
At 31 December 2018 R2018E 124317 167,186 713,619 4231 14,954 - 1,246 261,236
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17.

18.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The Group'’s buildings are situated on leasehold land in
the PRC.

The Group had pledged property, plant and equipment
with a carrying amount of RMB63,361,000 (2018:
RMB22,184,000) as at 31 December 2019 to secure
bank borrowings of the Group (Note 37(a)).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
had disposed property, plant and equipment with net
carrying amount of RMB136,469,000 to a third party at
a consideration of RMB136,469,000. The consideration
has not been settled and included in other receivables
as at 31 December 2019 and subject to impairment
assessment.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17.

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

% BERSZEZ)
AEBEMZEFHMAREMNEE L E -

R2019F 12 A31H ' AEBEEEHEEERSA
R #63,361,000 7T (20184 : A R # 22,184,000
T0) 2 - R MR RS AR ERIRTTE
K (MI7E37@)) °

BZE2019F 12 A31BIFE  AEBEE R —
HE=HHEREFELS AR 136,469,000
THME BEEAIE REBARK
136,469,000 7C > 2019412 A31 8 » % &
BEARBE R ALMEYTRIE - BEETTR
ErTHE °

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. N HERIE
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R AREET T
The carrying value of land comprises: THAEmAER
Leasehold land in the PRC R AFEE i - 57,751
Analysed for reporting purposes as: LA23HAB DT :
Current assets mENEE - 1,329
Non-current assets ERBEE - 56,422
- 57,751
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REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. ERAEEE
Leasehold Leased
land properties Total
AEL i HEWE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBTT ARBTT
At 1 January 2019, MR2019F1 418 -
as previously reported SR 2 - - -
Adoption of HKFRS 16 JiE A & VS B 75 i e 2
E 1658 57,751 4,719 62,470
At 1 January 2019, as restated 7201941 H1H -
gl 57,751 4,719 62,470
Additions B - 2,961 2,961
Disposals HeE (25,140) - (25,140)
Depreciation e (1,447) (370) (1,817)
Termination of lease HLIEHEE = (4,719) (4,719)
At 31 December 2019 2019412 531 H 31,164 2,591 33,755

The Group had leasehold land under right-of-use assets
with a carrying amount of RMB31,164,000 (2018: Nil)
as at 31 December 2019 to secure bank borrowings of
the Group (Note 37(a)).

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets
by class of underlying asset is as follows:

MR2019F12 A31 H » REBEKFFERAELE
JH NEREEA AR 31,164,000 7T (2018 4F :
) 2 S L LARVS A B R IRTT(E 3k (FT 5
37(@a)) °

IR EERR B D EREEENKREFE
DT

176

31 December 1 January
2019 2019
2019128318 2019%1A1H
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREFIT
Ownership interests in leasehold land, AT SR TE BR 9 LA ST B B AR B TR Y
carried at depreciated cost with THE TR R -
remaining lease term of:
— 30 years or more — 3048 31,164 57,751
Other properties leased for own use, HEEB A A -
carried at depreciated cost AT &R AT R 2,591 4,719
33,755 62,470

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
had disposed leasehold land with net carrying amount
of RMB25,140,000 to a third party at a consideration of
RMB25,140,000. The consideration has not been settled
and included in other receivables as at 31 December
2019 and subject to impairment assessment.

HZE2019F 12 A31HIEFE  AEBE R —
HE=HHEREFEARAR 25,140,000 7T
ST - REA/ARK25,140,0007T © A
2019F 12 A31H * ZREHABERGTAHE
fhEWRIE - BZEHEITRERS °
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20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

20 A—REEELECER

2019 2018
2019 F 20184F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Costs of unlisted investment JE EHIEE KA 153,000 153,000
Share of (loss)/profit of a joint venture FME—MEEERE (ER), AT (108) 1,243
152,892 154,243
Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of the AEBRRERRNELEFBOT
reporting period are as follows:
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/  Principal place of ownership interests/voting
Name establishment operation Principal activities rights/profit sharing
RERERSRER/
A% AL/ R FTEEENE TEER AMEBRAEDN
2019 2018
20195 20184
THERERRAERARAA PRC PRC Inactive 51.00% 51.00%
(“Jiangsu Huachen Saite”)
IHERERRERRERAR e i i

(IT&HZERER))

In June 2015, the Group, together with two
independent third parties, established Jiangsu Huachen
Saite, a PRC-incorporated company and engaged in
construction of steel structure and prefabricated
construction projects, which a total capital injection of
RMB153,000,000. Upon the establishment of Jiangsu
Huachen Saite, the Group held 51% equity interests in
Jiangsu Huachen Saite while the other two parties,
namely 1t 53k 2 8 18 &% & B A R 2 7 (“Beijing
Chengjian Daogiao”) and B H 5 I% ¥ & B R 2 7]
("Yixing Hongrui”) held 40% and 9%, respectively.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, Beijing
Chengjian Daogiao disposed of its entire equity interest
in Jiangsu Huachen Saite to Yixing Hongrui. The
investment is classified as investment in a joint venture
because no single party could control Jiangsu Huachen
Saite and the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control. Summarised
financial information in respect of the Group’s
investment in the joint venture is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

R2015F6 A AEBERMEBBELE =&
OIEERER (PP EFEMASZAR]) - #
FRANAREERERBUEHERIER - &
HE&E AR 153,000,000 7T © AT 2
BEE  REBBATIHESEES1% MK
MESRT - Bt ARZERERSERRA
AR EeERE]) REEmERERRA
Al ([E BTG ) 5 RIFFE 40% & 9% AR iE o &
F2018F 12 A3V BILFE @ ERWMBERE
HEERHHEENTIHRERSEFNEIR
o HREM—HHEEEH IHRERER R
HEEBZERGE S ZEHIENS T —BEE -
MZEEREAN—HAELENTRE - A&
ERaEtENRENTBERBESHZIN
T o TXFEzHEERBERESEDERE
BB HREERRENI B HRERIR SR
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REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 20 R—RIEE X R (B
(Continued)
The joint venture is accounted for using the equity EZEREVBRET G EEEUEREA
method in these consolidated financial statements. B o
2019 2018
2019 2018 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREFIT
Current assets mENEE 300,005 302,505
Non-current assets EmENEE - -
Current liabilities mEaE 216 67
Non-current liabilities ERBAE - -
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive (E518), B ke mIR AL
income (2,649) 651
The above amounts of assets include the following: B ERERIEATRIE
2019 2018
2019 F 2018 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFIT
Cash and cash equivalents NWENRESEEY 5 302,505
Other receivable H b U R IA 300,000 =

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial

information to the carrying amount of the

BB AR RBNEGE M RRAERZ

interest in a R—HRELEZEEMRE(E 2 B -

joint venture recognised in the consolidated financial

statements:
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Equity attributable to owners SR ERB AELER
of the joint venture 299,789 302,438
Proportion of the Group'’s IR P A R A L A
ownership interest 51% 51%
Carrying amount of the Group's REBRAEDE 2 HEEDN
interest in the joint venture BRTEIE 152,892 154,243
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21.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

21. REBFE RN T 2R

2019 2018

2019 F 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARBFIT

Costs of unlisted investment JE EHIEE KA 10,150 8,750
Share of loss of associates DREEE N B EE (7,894) (1,113)
2,256 7,637

Details of the Group’s associates at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

Principal place of

AEERREHRNEB LR RFBAT -

Percentage of ownership
interests/voting rights/

Name of entity establishment operation Principal activities profit sharing
SR SL PR AL i BEEREDR RERE/
BREAE L TEEEW TEEK MEBFIE D
2019 2018

2019 2018 F
RBEERBRERA PRC PRC Parking service 60.00%* 60.00%*
RBEERRERD H H FERS
REBER L/I@KEBE PRC PRC Parking service 20.00% 20.00%
RESEBIHERA HE HE EERY
e The company is accounted for as an associate of the Group * ZAREREBEAREEZAMEANNEHEEE

at the respective period end date as in accordance with the
memorandum and articles of the company, major financial
and operating policy decisions of the company require
simple majority consent of the board of directors. The Group
has appointed 1 out of 3 directors of the company, thus, the
Group has significant influence but not control over the
company.

The associates are accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

Aggregate information of associates that are not
individually material.

EE@]\EEEH’F$%IZ MEERR ZAAZ
ITRUBREERFRRAEERBFHAE
%/AETB{I%%'#E’]*M?%EE$E@§H& Itt
AEEHZARBEEATENETRHZA

EREGRAPBHRERT - BERATUEREA

FFERIE RN E R ERER

2019 2018
2019 F 2018 4F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
The Group’s share of loss and total AEBE DL ZEER
comprehensive expense 2 HE XA (6,781) (1,113)
Aggregate carrying amount of the AEBRZEHENEZ
Group's interests in these associates et AR T 4258 2,256 7,637
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Fade)

BRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

22.

180

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2018
2019 2018 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREFTT

Unlisted investments: FEMEE :
— Equity securities of entity A — BB AMNRARES 22,230 22,230
— Equity securities of entity B — BB AMARANGES 4,000 -
26,230 22,230

The above unlisted equity investments represent the
Group’s equity interest in private entities incorporated in
Hong Kong and the PRC. The directors of the Company
have elected to designate these investments as equity
instruments at FVTOCI as they consider that recognising
short-term fluctuations in these investments’ fair value
in profit or loss would not be consistent with the
Group's strategy of holding these investments for long-
term purposes and realising their performance potential
in the long run. The Group did not receive any dividend
income from the investment in these entities during the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: no dividend
income).

One of the Group’s strategic investments is a 20%
interest in Entity B. This investment is not accounted for
using the equity method (as an associate) as the Group
does not have the power to participate in the company’s
operating and financial policies, evidenced by the lack
of any direct or indirect involvement at board level.

FiidE ETR AR B EBRER S KT E
EMEAIHIAZTRBZRE - RRRIEER
B REBEERZEREZ ATEZEHKE
HAREEAREANMIFEZERERREE
WHEBERRZREIAR  FLREGEZSE
mTAREERTEAEREMEAKEZATE
HIER - BE2019F 12 A31BILEE » AEH
W& EZEE AR E WEE MRS R A
(20184F : ERRBULA) ©

MNERBIF20% EHEASNEBHREIRE 2
— o ARNAEE N EEEKREE S EZ AR
BEXREY BRLASEERESEAZERY
BHER  #ZRETERAEDE(ERBZ
NPT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

23. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND 23. EEBIEEER AR
LIABILITIES
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated MmBEEMBRARMNE - & TELERIBE
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax ERBEEHIEE MM BHREMS - BT
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is BESROTOT

the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

2019 2018

2019 % 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Deferred tax assets BIEFHIEEE - (40,733)
Deferred tax liabilities FELEFRTBEE - 92,116

- 51,383
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities/ REERBAEFEERRALEIERTHIESR
(assets) recognised and movements thereon during the &/ (BE) REZFHNT :

current and prior years:

Withholding tax

on undistributed Credit loss
earnings provision Total
i R 2K
B2 M FEBERE #ast
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETT

At 1 January 2018 ®2018F1A1H 92,116 (33,603) 58,513
Credited to profit or loss T AEE (FIEE11)

(Note 11) - (7,130) (7,130)
At 31 December 2018 and R2018F 12 A31 B K&

1 January 2019 20191 A 1H 92,116 (40,733) 51,383
Credited to profit or loss B (FIEE11)

(Note 11) (92,116) 40,733 (51,383)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 12 531 H - - -
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Fade)

BRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

23.

182

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Continued)

According to a joint circular of the Ministry of Finance
and State Administration of Taxation — Cai Shui 2008
No. 1, dividend distributed out of the profits generated
by subsidiaries established in the PRC to “non PRC-
resident” investors since 1 January 2008 shall be subject
to PRC Enterprise Income Tax and tax payment to be
withheld by the PRC entity pursuant to Articles 3 and 27
of the Income Tax Law Concerning Foreign Investment
Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises and Article 91 of the
Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the Income
Tax Law for Enterprises with Foreign Investment
Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for the years ended 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2019 in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC
subsidiaries as the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2019,
none of the PRC subsidiaries have earnings available for
distribution.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately RMB18,083,000 (2018:
RMB2,833,000) available for offsetting against future
taxable profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of such losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The
unrecognised tax losses will expire in the following
years:

23. EEBEBEEERERE®)

BIEFBEME R E RS BN — &
420085 155 © B2008F 1 A1 HEGHRHEH
R B A Rl EEMBFERRE DR T IE
FRER]ZEEEAMTECEMSH I
RIEINE IR E D EFINE S ERBRIEFE I R
27 A RINEIRE R EMINA B EFTETIEE
MEABRISE o1 R EIE I - BRAS
(] B Z 470 ) 88 00 BT A M 2 BE O B P R X S T B
MEBBAENA LRI ERHD - AR
2018412 A31 B 2019412 A31 B IFFE
IR GRE B SRR st P BB A R R & A
FEMMEE R M =B ERELERIE - )R20194F
12R318  EFBEMNBERARAAIHRIIE L
&R

R2019F 12 A31 8 @ ANEE RSB HFHIE
B84 5 AR % 18,083,000 7T (20184F : AR
2,833,000t ) - Al 1EE IR R FE R T &
Ao BREATERARBARIR - RSB
ERZEEREBEREERIBEEE - HARERZ
FRIAEBEBR AT EHEH

2019 2018

2019 % 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

2019 20194 - 1,019
2020 20204 1 1
2021 20214 1 1
2022 20224 987 987
2023 20234 825 825
2024 20244 16,269 =
18,083 2,833
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REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

24. INVENTORIES 24. ZE

2019 2018

2019 5 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Raw materials and consumables R H RO R 31,607 205
Finished goods 2I6K @ 15,519 10,437
47,126 10,642

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES 25. B E 5 NIE

2019 2018

2019 5 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Trade receivables FEWE 5 518

— construction contracts — EEAF 517,270 1,362,194
Less: Impairment losses B REEE (322,361) (96,445)
Total trade receivables JEWE 5 TR IB 4R 194,909 1,265,749
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, INTARFERIZEERBHZHMEKE 55K
presented based on the date of progress billing at the T ERER AT ©

end of the year.

2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T

0 to 30 days 0E 30K 38,759 143,459
31 to 90 days 31 290K 54,187 231,849
91 to 180 days 91 £180.K 69,937 150,519
181 days to 1 year 181 RENF 45,110 373,902
Over 1 year 1 E 309,277 462,465

517,270 1,362,194
Less: Impairment losses B REEE (322,361) (96,445)

194,909 1,265,749
Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables B E20194 K2018F 12 A31 H L FE E I
for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are E ZRIE R EE R IE AT 46 ©

set out in Note 46.

183

Annual Report 2019 —Z — N FF R
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REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

26. CONTRACT ASSETS 26. EEEE

2019 2018

2019 5 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Analysed as current: DITRTE
Retention receivables of construction ERARZEVRES
contracts (note) (PftaE) 56,883 589,867
Less: Impairment losses o REEE (679) (47,762)
56,204 542,105

Note: Retention receivables included in contract assets represent
the Group's right to receive consideration for work
performed and not yet billed because the rights are
conditional on the satisfaction of the service quality by the
customers over a certain period as stipulated in the
contracts. The contract assets are transferred to the trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional, which is
typically at the expiry date of the period for the provision of
assurance by the Group on the service quality of the
construction work performed by the Group. The due dates
for retention receivables are usually one year after the
completion of construction work.

Contract assets, that are expected to be settled within
the Group's normal operating cycle, are classified as
current based on expected settlement dates, which is
within one year.

Details of the impairment assessment are set out in Note
46.
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M : SFASREEZEBKRESEAEBURE RNT
BARETRERENEN  RERZSENERS
BEFRNERRENTESRRAEREEERTM
BROAUEE - ERSRIKGEGERCRE
RAEE B EETHRZETIZNREEEBRMR
EHRENERBEE)  AREEEREREESK
B BURESIHNABEREETIRTIR—
Fo

BHERAEENEREERRANEENSR
BERBEBEEAR(R—FRIDBRRD °

BT EFIBE I 5146 ©
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REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

27. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 27. Bt EWEIE RERBNER
AND PREPAYMENTS i}

2019 2018

2019 % 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Prepayments FAf IR 17,114 58,197
Deposits paid Bffize 539 1,711
Other receivables H i fE W sk 1E 870,866 34,153
888,519 94,061
Prepayments mainly represent the material costs prepaid ENRBEZAAFERNTEN THRERMIE
to suppliers at the total amount of RMB16,099,000 RS - 4858 A AR 16,099,000 7T (2018 4F ¢
(2018: RMB52,846,000) during the current year. AR ¥ 52,846,000 7T) °
The impairment provision of other receivables as at 31 20194 K% 20184F 12 A31H + H fth fB W X
December 2019 and 2018 were as follow: HARVRERENT

2019 2018

2019 & 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT

Other receivables, at gross H th e W R TE 4258 1,986,772 34,153
Less: Impairment losses B BEEE (1,115,906) -
Other receivables, at net H i FEU R IR F B8 870,866 34,153
Details of the impairment assessment are set out in Note AR B E46 ©
46.

28. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 28. B¥—RESEMIE
The amount due to a director is unsecured, interest-free BN —2EEFRELARER 28 RIRFEKE
and is repayable on demand. R o
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REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

29. BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND
RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES

At 31 December 2019, bank balances carr

y interest at

prevailing market rates ranged from 0.01% to 0.35%

(2018: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum.

29. ﬂ?i%ﬁ%&ﬁﬁ&&%ﬁﬂ%ﬂﬂ

'?Tnﬂﬁ%

R2019F 12 A31 B @ RRITEBRIZERNT IS
FEFEANF0.01% = 0.35% (20184 : 0.01%
Z0.35%):t8

2019 2018

2019 2018 4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AREFIT

Bank balances and cash RITHEBR RS 40,310 875,647
Less: Impairment losses B REE R (77) (18,723)
40,233 856,924

Restricted bank balances TR HISRTT A RR 431 =

Details of impairment assessment of bank

balances for

the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are set

out in Note 46.

As at 31 December 2019, restricted bank
RMB431,000 (2018: Nil) represented bala

balances of
nces held in

bank accounts frozen by the court due to litigation
claims against the Group. The frozen bank balance
cannot be used by the Group until the litigations are

resolved.
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HZE20194 % 2018F 12 A31 B It FE R 1T
g 2R BRI T A K RE46 o
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REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

30. TRADE PAYABLES 30. BN E 5 RE
Trade payables are settled in accordance with the FERNE S BIRIERB S - RBEHE]
relevant agreements. An aged analysis of the Group’s K AEENENESREGREERR) MR
trade payables (by invoice date) at the end of the EROMTUIT

reporting period is as follows:

2019 2018
2019 5 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

0 to 30 days 0£E 30K 65,176 53,320
31 to 90 days 31£90K 66,936 953
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180K 120,203 86
181 to 1 year 181 RENF 109,201 258
Over 1 year 19F U E 225,756 171
587,272 54,788
Retention payables ERHRE % - 36,758
587,272 91,546
Retention payables ERRE &
Due within 1 year 1 F A EH - 34,009
Due after 1 year 1 F 125 - 2,749
- 36,758
31. OTHER PAYABLES AND 31. Htt ENRERET B A
ACCRUALS

2019 2018
2019 & 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Accrued wages and staff benefits JEErTE KRB TEF 7,060 12,431
Other accrued expenses Hfh st 60,885 2,350
Other tax payables H A R IR 1,240 6,099
Deposit received B iz e - 51,255
Other payables H b E T 5RIR 2,411,468 32,449
2,480,653 104,584
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Fade)

BRI

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

32.

33.

34.

188

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The Group has recognised the following revenue-related
contract liabilities:

32. EEEE

AEBDER T REREAERAR

Contract liabilities ERAE

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARBTT

13,022 =

Where discrepancies arise between the milestone
payments and the Group’s assessment of the stage of
completion, contract liabilities can arise.

Movements in contract liabilities

i HE JEE FE AR A SR B A £ [ 5 ST PR B B AE H B R
mzBBEMRE  BAEELERAE -

EEEESH

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARBTT

Balance at 1 January »®1 A1 BE%EsH - =
Increase in contract liabilities as a result mE P RERTENKE

of advanced consideration received EHERBREEN

from customers 13,022 -
Balance at 31 December ®R12 A 31 BEAE & 13,022 -

AMOUNT DUE TO THE ULTIMATE
HOLDING COMPANY

The amount due to the ultimate holding company is
unsecured, interest-free and is repayable on demand.

AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES

The amounts due to associates are unsecured, interest-
free and are repayable on demand.

33.

34.

B &RAER A TRIE

RN REERARFRREER - 28 RIRE

PR B E N R FIA

FEfT Bt = A A

o

SEN
/_\F'/TQ\

BREAR . 2R NRERE
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35. LEASE LIABILITY

HKFRS 16 was adopted on 1 January 2019 without
restatement of comparative figures. For an explanation
of the transitional requirements that were applied as at
1 January 2019, see Note 2(a). The accounting policies
applied subsequent to the date of initial application, 1
January 2019, are disclosed in Note 4(f)(1).

Nature of leasing activities (in the
capacity as lessee)

The Group leases a number of properties in the
jurisdictions from which it operates. The Group leases
offices premises. Rental contracts are typically made for
fixed periods from 1 to 2 years for leased properties. All
rental contracts comprise only fixed payments over the
lease terms.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

35. HE&E

R2019F1 A1 AEABE B BRELERZE 16
SEAWAESHLLEET - @RER2019F 1A
1 BEARMBEREZRRA - B2HMTE20) - 4
AERA B EE (201941 A1) 2 B AN s
BURRMITE A1) 4K EE -

HMEERBIMEE (FREEA)

AEEREXBAENRAEERHEZIRY
X -AEEHERAYE HEVEBROBE
RIE2FZEEHR - MEHROREERR
EBEBEENK -

Leased

properties Total

Lease liabilities HEAE HEWE st

RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFTT AREF T

At 1 January 2019, as previously reported $220194E 1 B 1 B (A% AT#R4E) = =

Adoption of HKFRS 16 ERANE BB T HRE RIS 16 5% 4,719 4,719

At 1 January 2019, as restated 201941 A1 8 (KEF) 4,719 4,719

Lease commencement HERSA 2,961 2,961

Interest expense (Note 9) FEFRZ () 71 71
Lease payments HER (283) (283)
Termination of lease KIETHE (4,719) 4,719)

At 31 December 2019 M 201912 A31H 2,749 2,749
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REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

35. LEASE LIABILITY (Continued)

Nature of leasing activities (in the

capacity as lessee) (Continued)

The present value of future lease payments is analysed

35. HEEE®)

AREENFTEREDINA

MEEBMEE (FRFEBEAN) (&)

as:
2019
2019
RMB’000
ARET T
Current liabilities REE & 1,512
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE 1,237
2,749

Aggregate undiscounted commitments 5 HATH S MR BE IR AR 1A E
for short term leases 314

36.

2019
2019
RMB’000
ARET
Short term lease expense REHEERS 2,882
CORPORATE BONDS 36. BEBH
2019 2018
2019 20184F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Carrying amount as at 1 January ®1 A1 BREREE 358,232 106,634
Proceeds from issue of corporate bonds 21T E(EHM TS E 630,430 305,505
Redemption ] (512,001) (85,011)
Effect of modification (Note 8(b)) &R 22 (P 5T 8(b)) (3,152) =
Exchange differences fEH =% 308 26,315
Interest expense (Note 9) A EFSZ (EE9) 23,251 35,389
Interest paid EHE (5.214) (30,600)
Carrying amount as at 31 December M12 A31 BHEREE 491,854 358,232
Less: amounts due within one year WY ERBEER—FR

shown under current liabilities FIEAR5RIA (244,894) (196,069)
Amounts due after one year shown TIAIERBBER —F1%

under non-current liabilities E|HARy IR 246,960 162,163
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36. CORPORATE BONDS (Continued)

@)

(ii)

(iii)

In 2018, the Company issued three corporate
bonds with principal amount of HK$10,000,000
each (“2035 due HK$ Bonds”) at a discounted
amount of HK$1,290,000, HK$1,294,000 and
HK$1,297,000, respectively. The first two and
third 2035 due HK$ Bonds were issued in
November 2018 and December 2018,
respectively. The 2035 due HK$ Bonds will mature
in November 2035 and December 2035
respectively, unless the holders or the Company
exercise the option rights which entitled the
holders to sell back the bonds to the Company in
October 2027 at 40% of the par value of the
initial bonds and the Company to redeem the
bonds at 40% of par value of the initial bonds in
October 2027.

In the opinion of directors, the fair values of the
early redemption options related to the 2035 due
HK$ Bonds are insignificant at initial recognition
and the end of the reporting period.

Except for the 2035 due HK$ Bonds with option
rights, other corporate bonds are redeemable at
any time before maturity at the Company’s option
at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
principal amount of the corporate bonds plus
accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the
redemption date.

Interest are charged at fixed/floating effective
interest rates ranging from 0% to 11.66% per
annum (“p.a.”) (2018: 1.61% to 13.16% p.a.).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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36. ¥ BEH (&)

0]

(ii)

(iii)

M2018F  RRARBIT=MAELHE
% /10,000,000 7t 2 (> 2 &% ([ 2035
FHHBTESR]D WHRLS2ED
Al £ 1,290,0007% JT * 1,294,000 JT &
1,297,000 7T - & M fp & % = 192035
FEEBITESF D AINR2018F 11 A K
20184F 12 A #1717 ° BRIEFF B AA R A
TR T+ A AR AR 2027410 A
LA 2R B A E R 40% A AR 7% B {E
% K T AN A R RER AT R 2027 10 A
LA 2R B 5 E ) 40% & O 15 5 /) iR 12
7 - ZRI2035 FRHETEF B S BIR
20354 11 A K% 20354 12 A5 Hf -

BERAE BE2035FRHBTLESD
REELOE 2 ATFEREXERE R
RERTBERK ©

B B 75 38 48 2 2035 F B E B & 5
SN - Bt 1 ZE 48 75 AT 0 21 B A E ] s
RARRREFRRASREEESFA
£R100%WEEE - NEE=ED R H
FEFTHER AR HRFE (E) EE -

FEZREEFHERFENTEE([F
F[)0%ZE11.66% (20184 : FE1.61%
% 13.16%) UgER °
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37. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

192

37. RHIE R

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFIT
Bank loans due for repayment —FRRHERENEITER
within one year 199,280 4,500
Note: P 5E -
(a) The bank loans are secured by: (a) BITEFERAT -

(0]

(ii)

(ifi)

(iv)

the Group’s certain buildings and machineries
included in property, plant and equipment (Note 17)
amounted to RMB63,361,000 (2018:
RMB22,184,000);

leasehold land under right-of-use assets (Note 19)
amounted to RMB31,164,000 (2018: Nil);

corporate guarantee given by 14 non-related parties
(2018: Nil); and

individual guarantee given by 10 non-related
individuals, 2 directors and 1 senior management
(2018: Nil).

Interest are charged at fixed/floating effective interest rates
ranging from 0% to 6.65% p.a. (2018: 4.35% p.a.).

As at 31 December 2019, the short-term borrowing of
RMB4,500,000 classified as due for repayment within one

year as at 31 December 2018 was overdue. The loan was

interest bearing at 4.35% p.a. and repayable on 5 December

2019. Effective interest rate is 4.35% p.a.. The loan was

repaid in 2020 with no penalties charged.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

REBTAYE - BB REE(ME17)8
ETEFERRE 2 EAARE
63,361,000T (20185 : A R ¥
22,184,0007T) :

FERAEEERTHRE L (HE19) &
EAARM31,164,000 7T (2018 4F : ) :

PO SERAEE T R A A R FER (20184 ¢
=) R

+R2IFFEHAL MBEER—BSRE
BEASREAEAERQ0184F « &) -

FEZE R FHEREFNENTEF0%ZE6.65%
(20184F : B4 4.35%) Y °

20194612 A318  #K2018F 12 A31 B » &
B—FRNEHEE N EEE R AR 4,500,000
TEEH ZERIRNEGF435%:T R - AR
20194 12 A5 A{ER - ERFIERETF4.35% °
ZERE R 2020 FEE - WARKEEMREK
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38. PROBLEMATIC LOANS 38. MEEX
The recognition of problematic loans during the year REZE2019F 12 31 HIFFERAMEED
ended 31 December 2019 was originated from the TR B M3 TR ERN B R MAEER -
investigation findings of the Independent Adviser as HEETERFELERNENUTHEOREER :

disclosed in Note 3(a), which are related to the following
parts in the Main Findings Announcement:

(i) Section 1 “Litigations in relation to two overdue ()  F1E [FERMREEARTEHRERRHA
loans granted to Jiangsu Saite by two Individuals” MEB R E XA
(i) Section 2 “Litigation in relation to guarantee (i) 28 [ERMIRTT AREERGTFAI

provided to Bank A"

(i) Section 3 “Litigation in relation to bank loans (i) 3E0 [BER I ER B ST B HE G 1Y
undertaken by Jiangsu Saite and Jiangsu Qifeng” SRITERAERA

(iv)  Borrowings of RMB39.5 million as described in (v) S48 [HEMEHENBEE]l —MIES]T
point (a) under Background of Section 4 “Other 2 (a) Bh Pl A9 {8 FXA R ¥ 39,500,000 7T

Identified Matters”

(v)  Borrowings of RMB7.4 million as described in v) SFASHTHMWEHENEE] —HE=]T
point (b) under Background of Section 4 “Other % (b) BhFT LAY 15 3 A R 7,400,000 7T

Identified Matters”
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39. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

194

39. BIIERERE

CONTRACTS
2019 2018
2019 F 20184F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBT T
At the beginning of the year R - 1,200
Remeasurement EX e 53,045 (1,200)
At the end of the year RER 53,045 -

0]

The recognition of financial guarantee contracts
during the year ended 31 December 2019 was
based on the investigation result of the
Independent Adviser as disclosed in Note 3(b),
which are related to the following parts in the
Main Findings Announcement:

(1) Guarantee of RMB88.8 million provided by
Jiangsu Qifeng as described in point (c)
under Background of Section 4 “Other
Identified Matters”

(2)  Guarantee of RMB48.83 million provided
by Jiangsu Qifeng and RMB12 million
provided by the Company as described in
point (d) under Background of Section 4
“Other Identified Matters”

(3)  Guarantee of RMB3.2 million provided by
Jiangsu Saite as described in point (e) under
Background of Section 4 “Other Identified
Matters”

The financial guarantee contracts were recognised
based on the valuation prepared by independent
valuer engaged by the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

During the course of the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019, the directors
considered the expected payments to reimburse
the holder of the guarantees were no longer
recoverable from the borrowers and therefore
recorded a loss of RMB53 million in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

0]

RIEHEE30) T ER B LB AS
HER O REZE2019F12A31HIEFE

RIMGHEERER - MzSEWFERE
FHEFEFAEERAENUTHEI AR
B

(1) B TEMEHRNEE] —&H[F
£ | T (o) BhFTHLAY T #R RIS AT IR
AR ¥ 88,800,000 JT K HER

() HLETEMEFEE] —&H[H
5] T 5B (d) BTl M) T AR TR I AT iR
fit A R #48,830,000 7T B9 & 1% &
XA A BT iR it A K % 12,000,000
TCHIHELR

(B) HLE[HEMEHANEE] —&H &
£ T (e) BTl )T #BIF AT IR
AR ¥ 3,200,000 7T HIHE R

HHEREREREREZ 2019412
A31 B ItFEARRRZENB I EER
REEEMIED o

RESEHET2019F 12 A31BIEEER
REMBHRRBREY EFRAEER
BRAW B EREREE ANTERRM K
B AERGEERREMEAKER
ABRE18 A R 53,000,000 7T ©
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39. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE
CONTRACTS (Continued)

(ii)

For the balance as at 1 January 2018, Jiangsu
Saite Steel Structure Co., Ltd. (“Saite Steel
(Jiangsu)”), a subsidiary of the Group, and Mr.
Jiang Jiangiang, a director of the Company,
provided jointly and severally financial guarantees
to a micro credit entity B ST B L 24/ NEE R
ABRZAA] in Jiangsu, the PRC, in respect of a loan
with an amount of approximately RMB3,000,000
granted to an individual, namely, #7575 . Besides,
Saite Steel (Jiangsu) and Mr. Jiang Jiangiang and
two other individuals, namely, #81E%5 and 1§55,
provided jointly and severally financial guarantees
to the same micro credit entity in respect of a loan
of approximately RMB2,000,000 granted to
another individual, namely, 8, #§1E7 and 185
% have beneficial interest of an entity established
in the PRC, namely, /T#k A ARR TIEFR A A
("JSBN"). 18 IEF5, #8555, M B and JSBN are
independent third parties. The loans were past due
and no settlement was made as at 31 December
2015. The debtors and guarantors were then sued
collectively by the creditor for the default of
payment and requested to settle the outstanding
balance with interest. A settlement agreement is
subsequently agreed among 187575, FHE and the
micro credit entity on the repayment schedule
which 1 5 75 would repay a total amount of
RMB3,500,000, of which RMB2,100,000 by the
end of December 2016, RMB700,000 by the end
of December 2017 and RMB700,000 by the end
of December 2018; and FHE would repay a total
amount of RMB1,300,000 by the end of 31
December 2016, RMB500,000 by the end of 31
December 2017 and RMB500,000 before 31
December 2018. A reversal of provision of
RMB1,200,000 was made in respect of the
amount settled during the year ended 31
December 2018.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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39. BIIERER (&)

(ii)

R2018F 1 A1EMG&HRME &%
EmMEARIAESHEEERAR
(TBEEMAEE(OI&) ) RARFESE
Eoa A HRA RERFE T —RERA
+ (B F5) 89 AR 3,000,000 TR E
REFEI&HE — M/ EEEAREHE
MEZ RN/ NBERER A BRI B
BRIN BRMEE(CLR) RERZ
SRS AEMEA R A @B A LHBIES kig
FEH AR RERHE TS —BEBIAL
(BNAEE) 49 A R # 2,000,000 LK) E 7K [A]
HERMN/NEEERRIRETBER - 1§
EFREBHFFR—HBEFRBEKILAE R
(VI AEARETIRRERAR (IR
M) EEE=ERE - BIES - BFFS -
HEKIZANEBBILE=H R
201512 A318 - ZEEFEE 88
BWARIELBE - HEBERARIERE
HEBRARERARBEREZS 2
FENAREELEHEFE - fER - 15F
¥ BEE/NEEEQREHENEME
KW EERE Bl 8FEFHEER
424 %8 AR #3,500,0007 0 EFRER
2016 12 AR 2 BI{EE A K% 2,100,000
Jo R2017F12AEZAIEE AR K
700,000 7T M 7R 2018 F 12 AIK 2 AiI{EE
AR # 700,000t : X HEHKER2016
F12 A31 B 2 #1{EE A K% 1,300,000
JC R2017F 12 A3MHZAIEEAR
# 500,000 7T & B2018F 12 831 H 2
B8 # A R #500,0007C ° E & =
2018 F 12 AV HILFEHEE 2 RIEH
[B] 4 5 A R %5 1,200,000 7T ©
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40. SHARE CAPITAL 40. g7
Number Shown in the
of Shares consolidated
at HK$0.10 financial
per share Amount statements
FRR0.10BTH FIR A
RHEE x| e MBHE
HK$'000 RMB’000
FAT ARBTT
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2018, MR2018F1 A1 8 -
31 December 2018 2018 % 2019 4
and 2019 12A31H 50,000,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR
At 1 January 2018 and R2018F1 A1 K
31 December 2018 20184 12 A31H 2,330,747,935 233,075 187,410
Issue of shares BT AD 690,000,000 69,000 61,693
At 31 December 2019 )2019F 12 A31H 3,020,747,935 302,075 249,103

(i) On 13 March 2019, the Company issued
260,000,000 new shares to an independent third
party at the issue price of HK$0.50 per share on
the completion date, with corresponding increase
of share capital at RMB22,204,000 and an
increase of share premium at RMB88,816,000.
These new shares rank pari passu in all respects
with the existing shares of the Company.

(i) ~ On 15 August 2019, the Company issued an
aggregate of 430,000,000 new shares to two
independent third parties at the issue price of
HK$0.38 per share on the completion date, with
corresponding increase of share capital at
RMB39,489,000 and an increase of share
premium at RMB111,751,000. These new shares
rank pari passu in all respects with the existing
shares of the Company.

(i) No ordinary new shares were issued during the
year 2018.

196

() 201943 A138  KAANRTHKAH
BETEBROS0B LM —BBILE =
75317 260,000,000 fF A%+ EHEEA
FEFE 1 N A R 22,204,000 7T LA K BX 15
B N A R #588,816,000 7T ° % 5 31
BHOERARRERNESFEZAMR

(i)  M201948 A 158 * RAAMNTHKAH
BT EESROISBTAMEBYF=
7538174 ££ 430,000,000 AR » EE
% 7 A8 FE 12 0 A R ¥ 39,489,000 7T MA K&
i1 5 B AN A REE 111,751,000 7T ° 7%
EFROEARBDEERNDESHFEE
B RE R o

(i) 2018 FHMEITHELBAL -
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41.

42,

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 11 October 2013, the Company conditionally
adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
pursuant to a resolution passed by its then shareholders
on 11 October 2013 for the primary purpose of the
providing incentives or rewards to eligible employees,
non-executive directors of the Company and other
selected participants. The adoption of the Scheme
became unconditional upon the listing of the shares of
the Company on 1 November 2013.

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
no share options were granted, exercised or outstanding
under the Scheme.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC are members of state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
a specific percentage of the total monthly basic salaries
to the retirement benefit schemes. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
schemes is to make the required contributions under
the schemes.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under the control of trustee. The
Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs, which
contribution is matched by employees.

The retirement benefit contributions of the directors of
the Company and staffs for the year end are set out in
Notes 13 and 14 respectively.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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41. B RESTE

R2013F 108118 » AR AIRBEARRER
AR 201310 A 11 B BB —ERHRE
RERAERERE ([518)) - EEFEMA
NAIEERES  FPRTEFREMSEHES
EE RSB k2 E) o AR A MRDF 2013
F11 818 EWE - FHE|ZIRMB AR

HE2019F N2018F 12 A31BIEFEE - I
ERENRERIRET B IR « BT AR TE ©

42. RIRBERIFTE

ARRRFPBERZNMERBRES &+ BEK
FEFENBIRERRABHNEHKE - KB
RAARGAERF S BENIEE B D LAR
RAEMET B R - ARBRE KR F 8 R
M — B ERRIEZET LR ER SR -

AEENRSEBEERBREEBANT AR
HRERAE - FECEERAREEEDH
B WHERAZHZESRKEA - AKEE
HIRR TER AR 5% ERETEIHK - MER
DG EE GRSt /e

AAFEBENE TRFRNRKERNERS B
HNMFE13 % 14 -
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43. NOTES SUPPORTING THE 43. REREREBRNHAME
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
(a) Significant non-cash transactions (a) EXFRERS
Significant non-cash transactions from investing BRETHELNEAFREIZWT ¢
activities are as follows:
2019 2018
20194 20184F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFIT

Property, plant and equipment B & B M ARB B FIE S
(Note 17) and leasehold land under R Kkt (s 17) &
right-of-use assets (Note 19) disposed {2 A4 & 2= (FfsE19)
but proceed not yet received BN RIEE 161,609
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

43. NOTES SUPPORTING THE 43. FEHR TR E R A M

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF (#&)

CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising (b) METEELENEBLIER
from financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group's TRAMAEBERETHELNEEE
liabilities arising from financing activities, B AEESNERSES - B EE
including both cash and non-cash changes. ELENABBAESRESHAKERLR
Liabilities arising from financing activities are ERSREERERERADEARE
those for which cash flows were, or the future EHEANRERNENEE -

cash flows will be, classified in the consolidated
statement of cash flows from financing activities.

Amount
due to the
Amounts Amount ultimate
Short-term  Corporate due to Interest duetoa holding Lease
borrowings bonds  associates payables director ~ company liabilities Total
e Efi-8  ENER

BHER  0REER  DEME BEAE EERE BROARE  RERR b
RMB0OO  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMB000  RMBOOO  RMBO0D  RMB(000
ARET  ARBTT ARMTR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARBTT ARETR

At 1 January 2018 R201851 A1 46,150 106,634 - - - - = 152,784
Financing cash flow HEREE (43,005 189,894 2,99 (1,355) - - - 148,528
Finance cost incurred FREERERRA

during the year - 35,389 - 1,355 - - - 36,744
Exchange differences EHZER 1,355 26,315 - - - - - 27,670
Investment costs payable ERERERA - - 200 - - - - 200
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 124318 4,500 358,232 3,19% = = - - 365,926
Financing cash flow BERLRE 194,780 118,429 (717) (81,534) 446,232 229,568 (283) 906,475
Addition during the year ERRE - - - - - - 2,961 2,961
Effect of modification of PEEFETNFE

corporate bond - (3,152) - - - - - (3,152)
Finance costincurred during ~~ EREEMBHEAAR

the year - 18,037 - 81,534 - - n 99,642
Exchange differences EfzE - 308 - - - - - 308
At 31 December 2019 1201912 A31H 199,280 491,854 2471 - 446,232 229,568 2,749 1,372,160
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

44. OPERATING LEASE

44, REHEARE

COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee AEEEREBEA
2018
20184
RMB’000
AREFIT
Minimum lease payments paid under operating RERREBELCEHELF 2
leases during the year RIERBENK 4. EL0

At the end of reporting period, the Group had
commitment for future minimum lease payment under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
premises which fall due as follows:

RBEHR - ARERERTIHRIBANE
BEEMEO T HECEREREHNR TR
EEENFELENT

2018
20184
RMB’000
ARET T

Premises L
Within one year —FRA
F_EZZAF (PEEREMF) 4,471

In the second to fifth year inclusive

5,342

9,813

The leases of the Group are negotiated for terms
ranging from one to three years at fixed rental.

The Group as lessor
Machinery rental income earned during the year was

approximately RMB118,000 (2018: RMB2,166,000). At
the end of the reporting period, the Group has

AEEHEREEEESHTE  BHHENF—=E=
F o

AEBEALEA
FRATHREUVE S WAL A AR 118,000

(20184 : AR#¥52,166,0007T) ° 1 ¥R & Hf
K AEEBEEBER T RREERENK

contracted with a tenant for the following future HEOE
minimum lease payments:
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T AERBTT
Machinery Has
Within one year —&FR - 2,520
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_ZFEhF (BREEEMFE) - 2,520
- 5,040
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45,

46.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the
entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group's overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes corporate bonds, short-term borrowings
and problematic loans disclosed in Notes 36, 37 and 38,
respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
share capital, share premium, reserves and retained
profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a continuous basis taking into account the
cost of capital and the risk associated with the capital.
The Group will balance its overall capital structure
through payment of dividend, new Shares issue as well
as the issue of new debt or repayment of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

45. EXERER

AEBEREER  UERASENERKA
FEQLYE  WEREBKEERREIELRET
BRBRREREAER - REBENERRES
BEFEEGFTE -

AEBNENEBBEREER - Eh %05
MHIE36 - 37 M3BRBH B EES - BHE
AEBEER(HBRReRASEEY) RAQ
AEEANEEEE(BERE  RODEE - &
wRAREEF) o

ARREERHEELRMNERES Y
BEARKAREERBENRER - REEKE
BB BT BT ERERR
BEBTEEERERERE -

46. €@ T A
(a) e@MTEER

2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R AREET T
Financial assets EHMEE
Equity instruments at FVTOCI FHiREMEEWRIRATE
HER 2 IRART A 26,230 22,230
Financial assets at amortised cost LABESHRC AR DIBR Y S RU B B2 1,106,419 2,156,826
Financial liabilities SREE
Amortised cost b SN 4,696,507 489,921
201
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management

202

objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
equity instruments at FVTOCI, trade receivables,
other receivables, bank balances and cash, trade
payables, other payables, corporate bonds, short-
term borrowings, amounts due to ultimate
holding company, a director and associates and
financial guarantee contracts.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk
(foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. Directors
manage and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Foreign currency risk

Certain transactions of the Group are
denominated in HK$ and United States dollars
("USD") which is different from the functional
currency of the relevant group entities i.e. RMB,
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge against its exposure to
currency risk. Directors manage their foreign
currency risk by monitoring the movement of the
foreign currency rate and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

46. T H (&

(b)

M EREEBERBX

AEENFEeMTABERBEMS
B SR AFEIRZRATA B
BS5HE - HEEGRIE - RITAERR
Be  BNEZHHIA - EMEMNKIE -
TtEES  BHER  BNRKERD
Bl —REEREBE QR FOAN R
ERAR -

ZETMTANFRERERNSME - &
ZETRTEAANARBREMSER
(SMEREE XA ERR) - FEERRRR
HETREL o T X5 H BRI %
EFRBHOBEK EFEEMEREZFA
B - DATEAR M 5 B BUMERERE & 5

5% & R
HNEE [ B2

REFENETRZTIABTRFET( X
TTDEFHE METRBREEEREE
BEE(BIARE) INER - HEARE
BN R

AEEBAYERERTATETAGR
HhEMHENERRR EFEBE
SRONPEFE R BB EIE HINE R -
NG & B Z BEDhEAINE R
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 46. M T A (%)

(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management (b) MBEREEEERKE(E)
objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mE R (&)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) HNEE LB (48 )
As disclosed in Note 3, the directors were unable ANMIRESFTIREE EEEAETEAS
to ascertain information of denominated currency B SHTEEEER o M sE3 0
of the transactions of the Group. As disclosed in WEE - AR ERAERM RGN TE K
Note 3, on the basis that the relevant books and N FIIFEFL 20194 12 B 31 B LASMNE &+
records are incomplete, no disclosure is made by BENAEBEEN(AE)RAENIEM
the Company as to the carrying amounts of the R E D ATIEL I EE -
Group’s assets and (liabilities) denominated in
foreign currency as at 31 December 2019 and the
related sensitivity analysis.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial R2018F 12 A31 BB T RETAHE
assets and (liabilities) denominated in HK$ and WAEESHEER(BE)NEREWN
USD as at 31 December 2018 are as follows: T:
2018
20184
RMB’000
ARET T
Bank balances RITHERR 347
Other payables E At T RIE (9,983)
Corporate bonds — due within one year EEH — R —FAZH (196,069)
Corporate bonds — due after one year TEESF — R —FEEIH (162,163)

The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge against its exposure to
currency risk. Directors manage their foreign
currency risk by monitoring the movement of the

AEBBAYEEREANITETRAAR
HHEFEENESRR EFEBE
RINEERTNEHEREINEER - I
HRAFREE BEPERINERR -

foreign currency rate and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management

204

objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in RMB against
HK$ and USD. A 5% sensitivity rate represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rate. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 5% change in foreign
currency rate. A positive number below indicates
an increase in profit where RMB strengthen 5%
against HK$ and USD. For a 5% weakening of
RMB against HK$ and USD, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profit for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

46. M T A (%)

(b)

BHEREERERBEKE)

g5 ()
SN LB (4B

TRFMAEEGARE X B TLRET
FERRES%BBEE - FRE X
5% JHE 1 [E BEHNERE R M) & 1 ] gL B
TE M FTE - SKE D ATE B IR AN
STEMAGEEEEIEE  WARSREHR
1% 5% NS TE R BB ARME o TRIEHK
BNE AR BT RETLHES%
B ZF3E 00 o i AR H BT RETHR
5% @ WEE 2018 12 A31 HILFE
BIEEERNEETE -

2018
20184
RMB’000
ARET T

Profit for the year

18,393

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is unrepresentative of the foreign currency risk
inherent as the year end exposure does not reflect
the exposure during the relevant year.

AR F R R I T R R B B FE A
% WEEERABRESTEREAI
VEE o i 7 T N S BACERAE
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 46. €@ T B (&)

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management (b) MEEREEEEREE &)
objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mi5E e ()
Interest rate risk = = b
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate REEABRERZERITELNE ST
risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances (see EMERE(GERMTE29) - AEEW
Note 29 for details). The Group does not have an EHEREPEER - A EFFERF
interest rate hedging policy. However, directors % [ Bz I 70 T B R B 8 ) B KR 3K &
monitor interest rate exposure and will consider Bz o

hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

Total interest income from financial assets that BREEKNAFTECSREENBERALE
are measured at amortised cost is as follows: PN

2019 2018

2019 % 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Financial assets at amortised cost A ST BR M S B & 42 4,058
Total interest expense on financial liabilities not WIEBBERRATEIERFTE 22/
measured at fair value through profit or loss: BENEMAZEsE

2019 2018

2019 % 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Financial liabilities at amortised cost ABESHRC AN B AR £ R B 1B 99,642 36,744
The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly AEENREREMNXEAREZESRR
concentrated on the fluctuation of the interest AREBRITEREENTPREARIEIT
rates quoted by the People’s Bank of China FiT R A R &) o

arising from the Group's bank balances.
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management

206

objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank balances at the end of
each reporting period.

The analysis is prepared assuming the variable-
rate bank balances outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 25 basis point (2018: 25 basis points)
increase or decrease for bank balances is used
represent directors’ assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates on bank balances had been 25
basis points (2018: 25 basis points) higher and all
other variables were held constant, a positive
number below indicates a decrease in loss (2018:
an increase in profit) for the year.

46. M T A (%)

(b)

MBEREEBERBER(E)

55 (&)
BRE DT

AT BURE DT Thi% BIRTT AR &
& HRATE FR B9 A R R R B E

DR RS R & R HF B ERTT
EHRREEFTESRERER - BR1TEH
M= 8 Ansk e 4> 25 (8 E 25 (2018 4F : 25
EEE) REFHA RSB EEBHT
fly o

iR SRITAEEARIZE -7+ 25 (BB (2018 4F :
25 [EEE) - MATAE B SR E -
AN RIEBRFBRFARBER D (20184 -
AR

Decrease in loss (2018: Increase in
profit) for the year

FAREBERLD
(20184 : B F1Z0)

2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFIT
85 1,607

In directors’ opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

The Group also exposes to fair value interest rate
risk, which primarily relates to the Group’s fixed
rate short-term borrowings and corporate bonds.
After reviewing the Group’s exposure for the time
being, the Group did not enter into any
arrangements to minimise this interest rate risk.
Directors monitor interest rate exposure and will
consider entering into appropriate hedging
transactions should the need arise.

Pl A 4 S 0 LR 3 T S BRE O LR
HEERBEEE SN ENEARSE
EFAREM -

7N £% [ 7 e = 2 B AN 5% (B B E K K A
HEFRREGREFABENAFENER
@ o AR ERE 2 RATEERARRE
7N 6% [ 3 4 15| E A1) &2 B AP AR R R R
Rk - BEEENXER  AKEAS
EREREGEELNE RS -
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 46. TR T A (&

(Continued)
(b) MBEREEEERKEK(E)

(b) Financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group arising from the carrying
amount of the respect recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties.

The credit risk of the Group is concentrated on
trade receivables and contract assets from the
Group's five largest customers at 31 December
2019 amounting to RMB349,338,000 (2018:
RMB669,756,000) and accounted for 60.8%
(2018: 34.3%) of the Group's total trade
receivables and contract assets before impairment
losses. These five largest customers include state-
owned enterprises and private limited companies
registered and operated in the PRC. They are
mainly the main contractors of construction
projects. In order to minimise the credit risk,
directors continuously monitor the level of
exposure by frequent review of the credit
evaluation of the financial condition and credit
quality of its customers to ensure that prompt
actions will be taken to lower exposure. In
addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model of HKFRS 9 on trade
balances based on provision matrix. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

In order to minimise the credit risk of liquid fund,
the Group reviews regularly the credit rating of
the banks which they placed bank deposits in and
performs impairment assessment under ECL
model of HKFRS 9 on bank balances individually.
In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk of liquid fund
is significantly reduced.

EE R KB E A

72019412 A31 8 » A& B FTE YK
BEAGERKR (AR FRERITEME
1B AL EEEMSER) HRELE
BHRARMHENCEREBREENE
HEfE °

AEEMNEERBREFR2019F 12 A
BTHREAEERARFHNERE S XK
H & & R EE AR %349,338,000 T
(20184 : A R #669,756,0007T ) ' 15
ANEE BRI REE B AT R E W E 53K
HRE R EEHBFEE60.8% (2018 F :
343%) - ZERA AT F S5 F B
MEEHRBLERFLAGRAR &
EXTRELHEMNEZAER - A
EERRBRERK  EFEBETHRE
HEFMUBHKAREEERNEET
HERFEERATEERRRAKT - IR
BUEF R ENATE) - R ATE RR A RS © bt
G REBRBR ST FRELERFE
SRIEHEEFEEERHERBEER 2
B EBETREN G - HUmE - &
AREEERAAEBNEERKRE KE
FEAEK o

REERELADESNEERR &K
B EHEREFRROTERNRITEE
AR WIRBRBEWHHRELEANE IR
BHEREBREX G RTEMRETER
ARG - UM E  NRAREZERS
AEERBHESWEERRE RBRE -
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

46. TR T A (%)

(b) Financial risk management (b) MEEREEEEREE &)
objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment SEE R E L (E)
(Continued)
The Group's internal credit risk grading RNEE 2z AEEE R TR 2 E N
assessment comprises the following categories: TR
Trade receivables/ Bank balances/
Internal credit rating ~ Description contract assets other receivables
RBEEFR BR ELESTE/AREE Rives/ HERTE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not Lifetime ECL— not credit-impaired  12-month ECL
have any past- due amounts
Bk REHFNENRRE R EEMASE PHRBEEFE —BREENE  NEAEHEEEE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired ~ 12-month ECL
settle after due date
EHRE EHRAEERIBARES  ERERIABRES PHBEHEERE —BEENE  NEARHEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases i credit risk since initial Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired  Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired
recognition through information developed internally or
external resources
R BEREZR RENDHENARIONER FERRANEN 2HEBCEER—EREAE 2HRHCEEE—ECEHE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired Lifetime ECL — credit impaired
il ERBETAELREERE 2HREEERR —CEHE 2HREEERR —CEHE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
i ERBETEBARNRENREERASEURER FOAE B FUAC B
WEFEEE

208

China Saite Group Company Limited - B4 & E AR A 7



46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures
of the Group’s financial assets and contract
assets, which are subject to ECL assessment:

2019
20195

Notes

iiFi3

External
credit rating

AR

Financial assets at amortised costs

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

Internal
credit rating

R EERR

(b)

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

46. M T A (%)

BHEREERERBEKE)

EEER

BEF G (&)

TERA@INHAEBeREERARE
ENEERRMO ZEeREERS
REEAETRIEEERHE

12-month
or lifetime ECL
NEASREHESEEFR

Gross carrying

amount
i
RMB'000
ARET T

NRHRASIRZERER
Bank balances 29  Aa2/BBB (Note a) 12-month ECL 40,741
BT Aa2/BBB (Kia) NERRSEERE
Other receivables 271 N/A (Note b, ¢) 12-month ECL 4,877
Hth IR A (H&Eb - c) NEARSEEFR
Lifetime ECL 1,981,895
2HRSEEESE
Trade receivables 25 NA (Note ¢) Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 517,270
ENE 558 TEA (Wztc) 2HRBEEES (RREER)
Other items
HthiEE
Contract assets 26 N/A (Note ¢) Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 56,883
BREE A (W&o 2HREREERE (REER)
External Internal 12-month Gross carrying
018 Notes  credit rating credit rating or lifetime ECL amount
2018% M NMEETR A EETR REARZBRNEEER RE2HE
RMB’000
AREFT
Financial assets at amortised costs
DEBHERATIRzERERE
Bank balances 29  Aa2/BBB (Note a) 12-month ECL 875,539
RITH Aa2/BBB (M) 12EAEHREEER
Other receivables 27 NA (Note b, ¢) 12-month ECL 34,153
E bR @R (HizEb ) 12EAEHEEEE
Trade receivables 25  NA (Note ¢) Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 1,362,194
ERE S50R TEA (Mo *HESHEEHE (REEE)
Other items
HftER
Contract assets 26 NA (Note ¢) Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 589,867
RREE TER (MizEc) FHESEEEE (BEEE)
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

210

(b) Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Notes:

Except for the bank balances of RMB3,119,000 was
placed in banks with external credit rating as detailed
above, there remaining bank balances of
RMB872,420,000 was placed in a local bank which
does not have external credit rating as at 31
December 2018. The Group has applied 12-month
ECL approach to assess the impairment loss on bank
balances and determines the credit rating of this
local bank based on the scale, the operation risk and
the supervision risk of the bank.

For the purposes of internal credit risk management,
the Group uses past due information, historical
settlement records, past experience and also
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information to assess whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition. A
change in credit risk of other receivables was
observed as at 31 December 2019 due to a
significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the receivables.

The following table provides information about the
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables, contract
assets and other receivables.

46. TR T A (%)

(b)

BHEREERERBEKE)

1B KR E S ()
B eE -
a. M2018F 12 A31H * R LliTFHA AR

INBEETRBITHNRTERARY
FIRSBITHBARYE
872,420,000 7T 17 1 PA I 4 S0 ZB = B 51 4R
RAIRTT - AEBE A 12 @ AESE
EBBAATERITESRARERK - I
RIBBITHRE  KERRREERKRE

3,119,000 7T 4h

E UL ARIRTTOE BRTAR ©

b. RASEERREEMNS  ASEERA
HER  BELE&EELs  BELBRLEBA
BEREBRIFHMEEERNEE RE
HER T EEEAERAEEERREEAE
EHAN - A2019512 A31 8 » BREK
IRRHTERRIE RITANERS - Hih

FEUHRENEERREEE L -

c. TREHEREZ TR AREEREM

BUHREEERBRZ AR
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

Gross carrying amount

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

46.

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

TR

(b) MEEREERERBEE)

BRETAE AR

Average Trade Contract Other

2019 loss rate receivables assets receivables
20195 THEEE EKEZ7E EREE Hi W FE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETR ARETR

Grade 1: Low risk F15 - BEER 1.21% 38,760 56,883 946
Grade 2: Watch list FoMERGE 1.26% 26,149 - 3,931
Grade 3: Doubtful F3H R 4.15% 65,271 - 978
Grade 4: Loss FAR  BE 60.58% 387,090 - 1,980,917
517,270 56,883 1,986,772

Average Trade Contract

2018 loss rate receivables assets
20184 FHEIE R W E 5 538 eREE
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETTT ARETTT

Grade 1: Low risk FH R 0.1% = 8,817
Grade 2: Watch list F2M - BEARE 3.2% 831,726 294,998
Grade 3: Doubtful F3H : RER 13.2% 530,468 286,052
1,362,194 589,867

For bank balances, the Group assessed the ECL
on the carrying amount of RMB40,310,000 at the
loss rate of 0.19%, as at 31 December 2019
(2018: RMB872,420,000 and RMB3,119,000 at
the loss rates of 2.15% and 0.09%, respectively).

For other receivables, as at 31 December 2018,
the directors consider the default rate is not
significant, thus, the Group assessed that the
ECLs on this balance is insignificant. As at 31
December 2019, ECLs of other receivables were
assessed as presented on the above table.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

MIRITERT S - ZEEE2M20195F 12
A31H8L40.19% W EE R EEREEA
K#40,310,000 TR FBHAE E£548(2018
F: A R #872,420,0007T & A R ¥
3,119,0007T * E B X 5 5l £2.15% &
0.09%) o

MEMEWRKEMS - R2018F 12 A
31H  EERAENERTBEKR
I NREBEF RARNTEREEEE
TBEAX- R2019F12 8318 H1b
JEUGRIEMTEREEEEZ ERATRE
1TaFME ©

AFFEEETDRIBES AR A S FHH
BEBEMBRORMGE  LRBEAT
WBERAR K L5 7 BRI 1S ) A IE 1 B R
fEHARE -
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Gross carrying amount (Continued)

The following table shows the movement in
lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade
receivables and contract assets under the
simplified approach, 12-month or lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for other receivables
and bank balances under the general approach.

46.

Lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired)
2HRAEEER
(BEEHE)

Trade

Other Contract

2019 receivables  receivables assets
0195 EhE57E RMELTE AREE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

AEETR ARMTR ARETR

TR

(b) MEEREERERBE &)

FRIET B R (&)

TREFIRIBEHTTEERBEKE S
RELERAEENEHEHREEBER
MR — AR T3 A HE AR A EL A FE MU BOR IR
THEEA 128 AESEEBRR 2 A
HEEEBEERZEY -

Lifetime ECL 12-month ECL

(credit-impaired) (not credit-impaired) Total
2HRNERRE NEARHEERE

(FEEHE) (BEEHE) &t

Trade Other Other Bank
receivables  receivables  receivables halances
EhEs7E RELTE HtEEZE  BOER

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARMTR ARMTL ARETR ARETR

Asat 1 January 2019 R2019%1818 96,445 - 41,762 - - - 18723 162,930
Increase/(decrease) during the year R3E11,/(3) (92,907) I (47,083) 1747478 4,344,608 37 (18,646) 5933528
Amount written off during the ~ ERARELZ B
year as uncollectble HEne s - - - (1428655  (3.228780) - - (4657435
As at 31 December 2019 #2019% 128318 3,538 [ 679 318823 1,115,828 37 7 1,439,023
12-month ECL
Lifetime ECL (not credit-
(not credit-impaired) impaired) Total
12 {6 A
2 HEREEBHE BHEERE
(EEERE) (BEERE) maEt
Trade Contract Bank
2018 receivables assets balances
20184 [EWE 55018 SREE RITAEER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AREF T AREFT AREF T
As at 1 January 2018 R2018F 1 A1 H 84,420 41,494 8,497 134,411
Increase during the year A AN 12,025 6,268 10,226 28,519
Asat 31 December 2018 520184 12 A31H 96,445 47,762 18,723 162,930

Changes in the loss allowance are mainly due to
the change of gross amounts with different credit
ratings at 1 January 2018, 1 January 2019 and 31
December 2019.
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

objectives and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
directors to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

As disclosed in Note 3, on the basis that the
relevant books and records are incomplete, no
disclosure is made by the Company as to the
weighted-average interest rate, contractual
maturity and undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities as at 31 December 2019.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities as at 31 December 2018. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

46. M T A (%)

(b)

ERREERERBEE)
///H@jﬁji
ERRBESRMIE  AERERK

HRIR e &ﬁ%%{ﬁ MERESHRART
RHKF - DAIRMHARE .#&%Fﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ@ .
TR REREFEBHTE

BANMT ST RE - AR ARRE IR E K AT
HBTEE  AARBMEELEBEBER
2019 12 A3 B INEFEHFE - 5[
HrkERBENARTERESRENHEE

TREFNAEBP2018F12 A31 HIE
MESRBBENFIRERE - T%EJHE
BEERBEENARNTBERERERE
EoRmBBEREBEALRET A%\HME’J
R BN -

Weighted
average On demand Total
effective or less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 3-6 months 6 months-1 year 1-5 years cash flows amount
il 3371 RERY ESii)
YIS =fEAR ZE~EA ABRE-E -E5f  ReRELE KEfE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
AREFT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
As at 31 December 2018 12018128318
Trade payable e 80,542 3237 7,767 - 91,546 91,546
Other payables Hﬁ!}féﬁw\ 3,449 - - - 3,449 3,449
Amounts due to associates JEREEAFIZA - - 3,194 - 3,194 3,194
Short-term borrowings ~ EEEF 4,35% - - 4,696 - 4,69 4,500
Corporate bonds PEES 9.78% 235,664 5854 62,851 231,381 536,750 358,232
348,655 9,091 78,508 231,381 668,635 489,921
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 46. ®RT B (&)

(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of () EMIENAFEE
financial instruments
Some of the Group’s financial instruments are AEBELHEMITARPBEHRE IR
measured at fair value for financial reporting NFEEFE ©
pUrposes.
In estimating the fair value, the Group uses T AFERE  ANEBEZEfeFERAR
market-observable data to the extent it is BRMIGHIE -  EWESF — R ASE
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, ZIBERT  REBREBE=H&8EKMH
the Group engages third party qualified valuers to ERMETT(HME ©

perform the valuation.

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial () AEEFZLEMEELNF
assets that are measured at fair value B EZ 2R EET _\/7@*
on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are AEBBDEMEENRSHRETKR
measured at fair value at the end of each BAFERE - TRIBENFAEE
reporting period. The following table gives ZECREEZ ATELERRN
information about how the fair values of A EREN R AZE) 2 & o

these financial assets are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and
inputs used).
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REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 46. TRET A (&)
(Continued)
(c) Fair value measurements of (c) €EMIEMAFETEE)
financial instruments (Continued)

(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial () ANEEZREEEZEL LT
assets that are measured at fair value BifeZo@EE7NFE
on a recurring basis (Continued) (&)

Fair value as at
RPSIEHZAYE Fairvalue  Valuation techniques and
Financial assets 31122019 31122018 hierarchy  key inputs Significant unobservable input(s)
tHEE 0195128318 WBFNANE  ATEER HERARIERARE EXTUBERALE
Private equity investment at 20% equity 11.7% equity ~ Level3 Income approach — in this approach,  Long-term revenue growth rate at 2.5%,
FvTodi investment in an investment the discounted cash flow method taking into account management’'s
unlisted entity of in an unlisted entity was used capture the present value  experience and knowledge of market
RMB4,000,000and  engaging in investment of the expected future economic conditions of the specific industries.
11.7% equity holding of benefits to be derived from the (Note a)
investment in an RMB22,230,000 ownership of this investee, based
unlisted entity on an appropriate discount rate.
engaging in
investment holding of
RMB22,230,000
ERAM2 AN RELTER220% MERERRe  F=R  WNE-ERERCTREE  KBMGERR)S% ERARERE
AVESIRZ BAREARE  FLHEEZ17% RELRRCEMAEANDS  ZERRABERORWRLTH
ERARE 4,000,000 FAREARE RESSHREAEL L RE (MfzFa)
REBRERR 20,230,000 AREENENRE -
FETERB211.7%
RAREARS
2,230,007

Long-term pre-tax operating margin,
taking into account management's
experience and knowledge of market
conditions of the specific industries,
ranging from 34.4% to 40.0%.

RARASEAEENT4%E
400% " ETHREREZERR
EURETETNL TR

Discount rate, taking into account of
weighted average cost of capital
determined using a Capital Asset
Pricing Model, ranging from
20.0% 10 28.1%. (Note b)

[FRAT AR REAERTRE
NF200%Z28.1%  EFFR
BAMETRA - (Kizth)

Discount for lack of marketability at

35%.
Rz HERBER35% o
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REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

46. TR T A (%)

(c) Fair value measurements of (c)
financial instruments (Continued)

TR I ENAFETEE)

216

() Fair value of the Group’s financial () ZREFEIGAE e B LN
assets that are measured at fair value BEHEZeHEETZNFE
on a recurring basis (Continued) (&)

Notes: BT

A slight increase in the long-term revenue
growth rates used in isolation would result in
an increase in the fair value measurement of
the private equity investment, and vice versa.
A 1% increase in the long-term revenue
growth rates holding all other variables
constant would increase the carrying amount
of the shares by RMB179,000.

A slight increase in the discount rate used in
isolation would result in a decrease in the fair
value measurement of the private equity
investments, and vice versa. A 1% increase in
the discount rate holding all other variables
constant would decrease the carrying amount
of the private equity investments by
RMB1,755,000.

a. BB 0 A MY = B e R RN
RREHABRARE 2 R FET
SR RZIFA - MAAAEME
HBHRFTE - REKmEREER
1% 1§ B A BREEE AR
179,000 7T °

b. BB AR REHUE R ER
ERAKE 2 A FEFERD -
RZ IR o AnFT A b B BAERF
B R EER 1% S ERLER
AEEEREERD ARE
1,755,000 7T °
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of
financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

46. M T A (%)

() ERMIANDFEFEE)

(i) FB=RFEFAEHE

e [1114Y; Equity
instruments instruments

at FVTOCI at FVTOCI
EBRHMEM iR E A 2
WEHRAFE stz AT E
IRz RATE RSy
2019 2018

2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T

Opening balance HR WA R 22,230 53,928
Addition NE 4,000 -
Loss in other comprehensive income H i 2 U8 %5 &8 - (29,698)
Disposal funfi== - (2,000)
Closing balance BAR A ER 26,230 22,230

The directors of the Company consider that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised
costs in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their
corresponding fair values.

ARRIESERR - WBHKAIELS
BUMBRFIIEZCREERSH
BEZEAEREREARQFEMR
=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

47. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 47. BEATHEEHR
(a) Balances with related parties (a) BAEALEEER
The following balances were outstanding at the TH SRR RE R R EE -

end of the reporting period:

2019 2018
2019 5 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Amount due to a director Bt —2EEHIE (446,232) =
Amounts due to associates FET B & A B OB (2,477) (3,194)
Amount due to the ultimate FES R AZERR A R IE

holding company (229,568) -

(b) Compensation of key management (b) FEEEASNFHMH

personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members RAEFEAN  EERFTEEEAEE
of key management for both years were as fthpk B EVF B0 T
follows:

2019 2018

2019 5 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Short-term benefits x5 HifE 7| 3,375 5,396

Contributions to retirement RIRERIETEI R
benefit scheme 44 77
3,419 5,473
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

48. AR B 2 MR A KRR HE

COMPANY
2019 2018
2019 2018 4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B sE AR¥T T AREET T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHEB A BHRE - 1,427,504
- 1,427,504
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables and prepayments i [fE U kI8 I T8 1+ 7B 832 18,164
Bank balances RITEERR 34,397 308
35,229 18,472
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accruals Hih eI R ESHE A 182,489 9,827
Amounts due to subsidiaries NG Ee 18,689 75,797
Corporate bonds — due within hEESF — R —FRNZIH
one year 244,894 196,069
Financial guarantee contracts MG ERER 4,314 -
450,386 281,693
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (415,157) (263,221)
Total asset less current liabilities EEERAEBERE (415,157) 1,164,283
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Corporate bonds — due after EEH — R —FEEIH
one year 246,960 162,163
246,960 162,163
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfE) EEFE (662,117) 1,002,120
Capital and reserves ERRHE
Share capital [N 40 249,103 187,410
Reserves (Gt (911,220) 814,710
Total (deficit)/equity (E4l) fEmREEE (662,117) 1,002,120

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 18 April 2022

and was signed on its behalf.

Shan Hu
BR
Director

EF

ARNBZHEARN KRN 2022F4 F18BKEE
EefE  WHTIIESREEE -

Zhang Tianbo
RAE

Director

EF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 48. KRBl 2 M BEMRR KR FHE

POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE (#%&)
COMPANY (Continued)
Movement of capital and reserves of BARERRFESE
the Company
Share Share Capital  Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
BRA& BREE BEXGE R BB #st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBETTT ARBTT AREFT ARBTT
At 1 January 2018 R2018E1 A 18 187,410 511,515 464,556 (74,443) 1,089,038
Loss and total comprehensive  FREE R 2R A5
income for the year - - - (86,918) (86,918)
At 31 December 2018 and R2018F 12 A31HK
1 January 2019 20191 81H 187,410 511,515 464,556 (161,361) 1,002,120
Issue of share (Note 40) TR (3£ 40) 61,693 200,567 - - 262,260
Loss and total comprehensive  FRE1E Kk 2 NS BB
income for the year - - - (1,926,497) (1,926,497)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 12 A31H 249,103 712,082 464,556 (2,087,858) (662,117)

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

49. XA REFEM B QA AIFHE

220

Place of incorporation/

Equity interest attributable
to the Company
EAARERE

Issued and fully paid share

Name of subsidiary establishment 2019 2018 capital/registered capital Principal activities
HWEARER BT/ Kb 2019 W018F  ERTRARRE/EMER TEER
Maodern Day Holdings Limited HK 100% 100%  Ordinary shares HK$1,000,000 Investment holding
2EERARAR Bk L3B1%1,0000007 RARR
China Saite (Overseas) Company Limited The British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) 100% 100%  Ordinary share US$1 Investment holding
HERE (8N ERAA EERANE ((RERLES]) Bl REZR
China Saite (H.K.) Company Limited HK 100% 100%  Ordinary share HK$1 Investment holding
MEES () ARAR B ERR1 BT REZR
Yixing City Zhicheng Consultation Company PRC 100% 100%  Registered capital RMB16,667,000  Investment holding

Limited (note a) ik Paid-up capital RMB16,667,000 RERR
EEDEAFAERAA (Mia) AR ARS 16,667,000

EWER AR 16,667,007

Jiangsu Saite Steel Structure Co, Ltd. (note b) PRC 100% 100%  Registered capital RMB502,860,000  Construction of steel structure
THEFRAERERRA (Hb) h Paid-up capital RMB341,367,000 and prefabricated

FERERAR502,860,0007C
EWEARARE 341,367,000

construction projects
MERREFERLES
BEBENEEHT
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49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

49. KRBT FEMB A RFE#)

(Continued)
Equity interest attributable
to the Company
Place of incorporation/ ADARLRE Issued and fully paid share
Name of subsidiary establishment 2019 2018 capital/registered capital Principal activities
WEARER A/ R 20195 0185 BRORMERA/HRER £33 )
Jiangsu Qifeng New Building Materials Company ~ PRC 100% 100%  Registered capital RMB197,000,000  Prefabricated construction
Limited (note ¢) f Paid-up capital RMB137,000,000 projects
T RERR AR (o) HMERARE197,0000000  2EEEREHEEER
EUWERARY 137,000,000
Anhui Saite New Building Materials Company PRC 100% 100%  Registered capital RMB60,000,000  Prefabricated construction
Limited (note ¢) f Paid-up capital RMB22,000,000 projects
RHEEHURARAA (o) S &RARH 60,000,000 SRRERRIREAR
EUWER AR 2200000070
Shenzhen Saite Construction Consulting Company  PRC 100% 100%  Registered capital HK$50,000,000  Construction consulting
Limited (note ) e Paic-up capital RMB2,000,000 fe2 k)
MIEERETEFAER AN (Hia) S 50,000,000/70
EUWER AR 2,000,000
Shanghai Saite Supply Chain Company PRC 100% 100%  Registered capital RMB50,000,000  Construction consulting
Limited (note ¢) 3 Paid-up capital Nil BEAH
LEEFREEERAR (M) AR AR 50,000,000
BREARE
Notes: B EE
(@  The entity is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise established (a) ZEERNPEKZAIINEBERE - AXEH

in the PRC. The English name is for translation purpose.

The entity is a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in
the PRC. The English name is for translation purpose.

The entity is a wholly sino-owned enterprise established in
the PRC. The English name is for translation purpose.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
at the end of the year.

EERERE -

() HEBARTEKIMNTIGERE - HXEH
EERIERE -

© BEBARGERTHTEBECYE  KXEH
EERED -

ERINEARREERREIBEFEAEEEE
FEENARRMERR - EFERR - BHE
B RRNFBEEERRBENITE

RER - BLENEQRBITERNERES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

50. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

222

(a)

(b)

()

()

On 20 April 2020, the Company entered into the
Subscription Agreement with a subscriber
pursuant to which the subscriber has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for, and the Company has
conditionally agreed to allot and issue,
700,000,000 Subscription Shares at the
Subscription Price of HK$0.10 per Subscription
Share:

The Subscription was approved at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 22 July
2020. Due to the suspension of trading in shares
of the Company on the Stock Exchange in June
2020, the transaction was subsequently cancelled.

Trading in the shares of the Company on The
Stock Exchange has been suspended since 22
June 2020.

On 13 September 2021, the Company entered
into the note purchase agreements with certain
investors, pursuant to which the Company agreed
to issue, and the investors agreed to purchase
senior notes in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$160 million (the “Note Purchase
Agreements”). Details of the Note Purchase
Agreements are set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 5 October 2021 and 11
October 2021. As at the date of this report, the
transaction was not yet completed.

On 10 December 2021, the Company entered
into the subscription agreements with certain
subscribers, pursuant to which the subscribers
agreed to subscribe for, and the Company agreed
to allot and issue, an aggregate of 3,120,000,000
subscription shares at the subscription price of
HK$0.10 per subscription share (the “2021
Subscription”). Subscriber | agreed to subscribe
for 300,000,000 subscription shares, whereas
subscriber Il and subscriber Ill agreed to subscribe
for 1,360,000,000 subscription shares and
1,460,000,000 subscription shares, respectively.
Details of the 2021 Subscription are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 10
December 2021. As at the date of this report, the
2021 Subscription was not yet completed.

50. MEHRREE

(a)

(b)

(0)

(d)

R2020F 4 A20R + AAFRIE—KRE
ABIMRE W Bl REAEEK
HRERBEBMARREBIEKGEREIER
BEASKRRBRMG 0108 T % K3
7700,000,000 A% 3288 A% 17

REEEIER 202097 A 22 BETHRR
FRIRE EHE - BRARF RGN
2020F6 AR RFTEFER ' ZX %
HZBEUHE -

KARMD B 20204F 6 A 22 BB

FEEEE -

MK2021F9H13H - Zﬁﬁaﬁéﬁi%ﬁﬁﬁ
BAUEBEERZE Bt AQA

ERIMEEERAERELAS &

160,000,000,%@’\1@5‘&%%(Fﬂ%ﬁ%a
Wizl c EBRBEBEOFBIREAR
A B 8 A2021 410 A58 & 20214F 10
ANMBHAE - RAREEE -

u/<)<
W ARTEA ©
MR2021F 12108 » AR R EE TR
E\%/\ET_L Wugﬁ‘lﬁ 5% B%U:If, wugﬁAH =8

REMARFREEREESIRABER
50107 T B % &k % 17 & X
3,1zo,ooo,oooﬂ§ B8 1% 19 (12021 ¢ 2

E% % IE J) u/u Eﬁ }\ 7 H = FlLA /\ﬁ
300,000, ooo MRS - MRBAZR
REE A =5 B[R =8 1,360,000,000 Hx

.wﬁﬁﬂxfﬁw 460,000,000 P 52 88 A% 15
2021 FREBBEHEMFBHRAR TE,HH
B2021F 12 A10BMAE - RARKE
HE - 2021 FREEIEMARTHA ©
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50. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)

(e)

)

(9)

As described in details in the announcement of
the Company dated 24 December 2021, Modern
Day Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company resolved that it be wound up
voluntarily as part of reorganisation of the Group
structure.

On 14 January 2022, the Company received a
letter from the Stock Exchange stating that the
Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange has
decided to cancel the Company’s listing under
Rule 6.01A(1) of the Listing Rules as the Company
failed to satisfy all the resumption guidance and
additional resumption guidance issued by the
Stock Exchange (the “Resumption Guidance”) by
21 December 2021.

The Scheme of Arrangement as described in note
3(b) was sanctioned by the High Court at the
sanction hearing on 11 April 2022. The Scheme
of Arrangement shall become effective when an
office copy of the order of the High Court
sanctioning the Scheme of Arrangement is
registered by the Registrar of Companies in Hong
Kong under Part 2 of the Companies Ordinance
and the other conditions precedent set out in the
Scheme of Arrangement are duly fulfilled. As of
the date of this report, there is one outstanding
petition that has yet to be withdrawn or
dismissed. The High Court has adjourned the
winding-up hearing against the Company to 16
May 2022. No winding-up order has been made
against the Company.

Upon the date of this report, the hearing of
Petition did not reach the conclusion yet and the
Company was unable to assess the effect towards
the consolidated financial statements.

(e)

()

(9)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

50. SREHIREBEE (8)

MU ARNF HEA2021F12 A248H
NEFFIL - ARREENB AR 4
ERBRARZAETEREE (A%
EZRBEHEN—ED) °

R2022F1 148 - NRQBEEREFR
B BRI - 38 R AN A AR BER 2021 5
12 A 21 BRTERE R FTEM 2 FT B 1R
e 5l REEINME R IE S| ([1E Sl ]) - B
RFIEMZEBEERERE EMRAE
6.0TA(MMIEBEUE AR BIH)_EmfHb{iz ©

B 2 3(b) T3 89 2 BE 5T 8 2 70 2022 F 4
AN BZitERA EES S AR -
EREARMELHR NG SHIER
BN EE R AIEMERE RRIECA B &
I 2 BB RE MR HE A BT EL 2 E 5T
RIRMEIERBITR - ZLHEH8IA1E
R e RATRE BH] - 0B —HH AR
& Oz FRER - 2 AR S M
HARRMBRIAMRE202245A4
16 8 - WARSHEARRHEHFLRS -

HEAREBY  2HBMEARTHE
ARABEEFEE GRS UBEHRROZE -
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EFMBERE

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years
prepared on the basis set out in the note below is as

MBERRE

7N E2 [ 1 DA TS B o P e B R AR B A L (B B B
FEZEAMEEEEERABHENT ¢

follows:
Results ¥iE
Year Ended 31 December
BZ12B31RILEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
2019 20185 2017 € 20164 20154
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
INSLES ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Revenue & 515,447 1,501,311 1,411,745 1,650,760 1,834,664
Cost of sales SHER A (425,033)  (1,147,488)  (1,051,837)  (1,222,468)  (1,321,827)
Gross profit EA 90,414 353,823 359,908 428,292 512,837
Other income Hipdg A 1,953 12,890 9,985 9,737 6,373
Other gains and losses Hfthlizs R ES1E (76,433) (24,708) (7,399) (6,608) -
Impairment losses on financial €&t & & REE
and contracts assets REEE (5,933,528) (28,519) = = =
Selling and marketing expenses #4544 $5 2 (8,411) (4,027) (4,093) (2,107) (9,585)
Administrative expenses TRAX (55,975) (57,744) (37,233) (31,585) (59,918)
Finance costs BITE R AR (99,642) (36,744) (7,356) (6,554) (1,343)
Share of (loss)/profit of a PME—EEETE
joint venture (B#8)/&F (1,351) 332 409 502 -
Share of loss of associates DB EATER (6,781) (1,113) = - -
Remeasurement of M EREREN
financial guarantee G2
contracts (53,045) 1,200 - - -
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRiAT (BR),/ &R (6,142,799) 215,390 314,221 391,677 448,364
Income tax credit/(expense)  FiSHER/(FX) 51,254 (76,378) (87,021) (103,408) (122,461)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE)/ BF (6,091,545) 139,012 227,200 288,269 325,903
(Losses)/earnings per share S’k (E8R) /&
Basic (RMB cents) ER(ARES) (224.58) 5.96 9.77 14.13 17.53
Diluted (RMB cents) BEHEARED) NARER  NATEAR  NATER  NATEHR 17.51
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
Year Ended 31 December
HE12A31BILFE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
20194 20184 2017 4 2016 4 20154
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000
INSL- S ARETor ARETIT ARETrT ARETR
Non-current assets ERBEE 313,201 542,501 484,998 378,447 395,817
Current assets RENVEE 1,227,422 2,770,810 2,572,692 2,313,889 1,928,454
Current liabilities PEINENE (4,489,240) (426,561) (269,566) (264,571) (247,111)
Non-current liabilities FERBAE (248,197) (254,279) (179,551) (92,116) (92,116)
Total (deficit)/equity (B54t), e tas (3,196,814) 2,632,471 2,608,573 2,335,649 1,985,044
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1)

SATTE CROUP

#hit/Add: BBAERDEEREIFEESEAE221E
22nd Floor of The Toy House, No. 100 Canton Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Ei@/Tel: (852) 2126 7434
EE/Fax: (852) 3691 8124
#ut/Http:  www.chinasaite.com.cn
#BFE/Email: hkadmin@chinasaite.com.hk
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